Meeting of the
Oregon TECH Oregon Tech Board of Trustees

Finance and Facilities Committee

Room 130, Portland-Metro Campus in Wilsonville
December 7, 2017

Noon - 2:00pm

Finance and Facilities Committee
also Sitting as the Audit Committee

Agenda
Page

1. Call to Order/Roll/Declaration of a Quorum (Noon) Chair Slhwa
2. Consent Agenda - none
3. Reports

3.1 Fiscal Operations Advisory Council (10 min) FOAC Chair Torres via Skype
4. Action Items (12:10pm)

4.1 Adoption of the 2018 Agenda Plan (20 min) P Fox 1

4.2 Recommendation to the Board to Approve a Capital Spending Plan and 3

Authorize the Use of Cash (12:30pm) (30 min) "PF.A Fox

5. Discussion Items (1:00pm)
5.1 [FY17 Financial and Single Audit Report (30 min) CliftonlarsenAllen 6
5.2 Updated Forecast of the 2017-18 Education and General Operating Fund Budget 98
(1:30pm) (25 min) "PFA Fox

6. Other Business/New Business (1:55pm) (5 min) Chair Sliwa

7. Adjournment (2:00pm)
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ACTION ITEM
Agenda Item No. 4.1

Finance & Facilities Committee 2018 Agenda Plan

Summa

The following docket establishes a draft work plan and major topics for discussion and approval of
the Finance & Facilities Committee for the upcoming 2018 calendar year. This work plan will be
revisited and extended at the Committee’s May 17, 2018 meeting for FY19, and well as a preliminary
plan for FY20. Because of the biennial budget process used by the State of Oregon, a two year
rolling calendar can be established for the Finance & Facilities and Audit Committees of the Board
of Trustees.

Each Finance & Facilities Committee meeting has been separated into two sections, major topics
and minor topics. Major topics are those with significant strategic importance for discussion,
deliberation or information to the Committee or are major decisions reserved for the Board or its
Committees. This includes items such as budget and tuition setting as well as major capital projects
and bond issuance authorizations. Minor topics are either decisions which must reach the Board, but
are unlikely to require significant discussion or informational topics which provide background and
prepare the Committee for major topics that will be seen in subsequent meetings of the Committee.

It is expected that minor deviations or adjustments will be made from the adopted calendar with
discussion and approval of the Committee Chair in consultation with the President and the Vice
President of Finance & Administration.

Oregon Tech Board of Trustees
F&F Committee Page 1 4.1 2018 AGENDA PLAN



December 7, 2017

Calendar Year 2018 Finance & Facilities Agendas

Major Topic:
- 2018-19 Tuition Setting (Action)
- HECC Student Success and Completion Model Overview (Informational)
- Emergency Operations Planning (Informational)
Minor Topics:
- FY18 Q2 Dashboard Review (Informational)
- Internal Audit Update (Action)

Major Topic:
- 2018-19 Fiscal Year Budget (Adoption)
- 2019 Legislative Session and State budget Outlook (Informational)
- Strategic Enrollment Management Update (Informational)
Minor Topics:
- FY18 Q3 Dashboard Review (Informational)
- Capital Projects update and Summer Plan (Informational)
- FY19 and FY20 F&F Committee Work plan (Action)

Major Topics:
- Capital Project Updates (Informational)
- Internal Audit 2018-19 Action Plan (Action)
- Annual Financial Audit Report (Action)
Minor Topics
- FY18 Q4 Dashboard Review (Informational)
- FY19 Q1 Dashboard Review Fall Enrollment Update (Informational)
- Bond Issuance Resolutions (Action)
- 2019 Legislative Session Preview (Informational)

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends the adoption of the calendar year 2018 Finance & Facilities agenda plan as
outlined in the docket.
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ACTION ITEM
Agenda Item No. 4.2

Recommendation to the Board to Approve a Capital Project
Spending Plan and Authorize the Use of Cash

Summa

Oregon Tech has four large capital projects funded through three separate bond authorizations
approved during the 2017 Legislative Session. These projects include Cornett Phase 11, the Center of
Excellence in Engineering Technology (funded as a single package), OMIC Research and
Development Facility improvements, and the Student Recreation Center upgrade project. To
expedite planning, design construction and capture cost efficiencies with the approved projects,
Oregon Tech wishes to expend bond proceeds in advance of the bond sale using university cash
balances. The bonds for these projects are expected to be sold during the Spring of 2019

Overview

During the 2017 Legislative Session several large capital projects were approved for Oregon Tech.
The State of Oregon typically approves General Fund funded capital projects, including Article XI-
G and Article XI-Q bonds without also approving expenditure authority for debt service on these
bonds during the same biennia. This means that bonds are not sold, and funds from the state for
project reimbursement are not available until the last two quarters of the biennia. During this
biennia Article XI-F (self-funded) bonds for universities are also unlikely to be sold until the last two
quarters of the biennia for various reasons. However, institutions may pre-spend approved bond
proceeds up to 18 months in advance of bond issuance with approval from the Oregon Department
of Administrative Services and an executed reimbursement resolution in place. Oregon Tech has
initiated the process to execute such resolutions.

Pre-spending bond proceeds requires the university to use bridge financing, though either external
financing or utilizing internal working capital, to begin projects before bonds are sold. The cost of
capital, including foregone interest or interest on external funding are not reimbursable expenses
according to the grant agreements established by the State of Oregon and the Higher Education
Coordinating Commission. The institution also risks that the state does not sell the bonds, or delays
their sale, rendering some portion of pre-issuance expenses unreimbursable. This risk exists, but in
the opinion of management is de minimis in nature.

Oregon Tech has sufficient cash balances to self-finance the initiation of each of these projects
before bonds are issued by the state in Spring 2019.

Oregon Tech has four major projects, funded through three legislative authorizations; Cornett Phase
I1, the Center of Excellence in Engineering Technology, OMIC Research and Development Facility
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improvements and the Student Recreation Center upgrade project. Facilities and Project
Management has developed several project timelines depending on availability of cash to finance
project activity. The most aggressive plan, as outline below expects to use $11.5 million dollars in
available cash balances to support projects before bonds are issued in the spring of 2019. This allows
Oregon Tech to minimize time to completion, increase cost savings from pairing projects and
reducing construction inflation and effective sequencing, particularly as it relates to the Cornett Hall
Phase II renovation. This plan can also be modulated down if cash balances deteriorate and project
timelines pushed back if necessary to ensure the institution retains sufficient financial flexibility.

Project Spend Plan and Analysis

Center for Excellence in Engineering Technology

Project Total: $35,000,000

Design: September 2018 through June 2019

Construction: June 2019 (after bond sale) through December 2020
Reimbursed Spending: $3,000,000

Cornett Hall Phase I1

Project Total: $7,000,000

New Roof: June 2018 through September 2018 ($1.5M)

East Side Exterior: June 2018 through September 2018 (§500K)

East Side Phase 2 Partial Interior: June 2018 through September 2018 ($500K)
Reimbursed Spending: $2,500,000

Student Recreation Center

Project Total: $3,500,000

Scope: Lower Level and Exterior

Design: January 2018 through June 2018
Construction: July 2018 through September 2019
Reimbursed Spending: $2,500,000

OMIC R&D Facility Upgrade

Project Total: $3,500,000

Design: November 2017 - January 2018 (Phase I)
Design: April 2018 - July 2018 (Phase 1I)
Construction: January 2017 through June 2019
Reimbursed Spending: $3,500,000

Total Reimbursed Spending: $11,500,000

Oregon Tech’s cash balances have been strong for the past several years and are forecast to remain
that way. As of Q1 2017 Oregon Tech had $31.4 million in cash, cash equivalents and Quasi-
Endowment assets on hand, or 153 days of operating expenses. Of this $17.2 million was E&G

cash. The Quasi-Endowment can be readily converted to cash within 30 days. Cash balances are
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likely to increase in the near term as accounts receivable related to previously unbilled grant
expenditures and capital reimbursements work through the pipeline.

Over the last 16 months the average available cash balance (excluding restricted funds) was $24.8
million, and conservative estimates, which assume; flat enrollment with low tuition increases and
increases in labor, OPE and S&S expenses, anticipate that over the coming 12 months will fall to an
average of $22.7 million, with a trough of $17.2M in December 2017. There are several typical cash
balance troughs throughout the year related to Oregon Tech’s periodic business cycle driven by
relatively consistent expenses with highly concentrated cash inflows quarterly from the State and
once in October, January and March/April from student tuition payments at the start of each regular
academic term. These cash troughs typically come during December, June and September.

With anticipated project spend plans, September of 2018 appears to be the weakest cash position
with $7.7M in cash and hand, at month end and affer payroll has been deducted. This is sufficient
cash on hand to manage ongoing operations without impediment. If Oregon Tech’s cash position is
below levels management deems be sufficient, a portion of the Quasi-Endowment will be liquidated
to support the institution’s cash position and replenished once bonds are sold and reimbursements
from the State of Oregon are received in late Spring of 2019.

Management does not expect there to be any time in which cash plus the Quasi-Endowment falls
below 70 days on hand during the forecast period, and is likely to remain consistently above 100
days except during months between quarterly General Fund distributions and tuition payments at
the start of academic terms.

Staff Recommendation
Staff recommends the Finance & Facilities Committee recommend to the Board of Trustees
approval of $11.5 million dollars in expenditures in advance of bond proceeds for the following
Legislatively approved projects and associated totals:
e Center for Excellence in Engineering Technology/Cornett Hall Renovation — $5,500,000
e Oregon Manufacturing Innovation Center, Research and Development Facility — $3,500,000
o Student Recreation Center — $2,500,000 million

Staff further recommends the Finance & Facilities Committee recommend to the Board of Trustees
to authorize the President or his designee to utilize funds in excess of $1 million dollars in the
Quasi-Endowment, if deemed necessary by management, to fund capital proceeds. Funds utilized

for these purposes will be repaid when bonds are sold and the State of Oregon reimburses Oregon
Tech.
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DISCUSSION
Agenda Item No. 5.1

Annual (FY17) Financial and Single Audit Report

Background

The Oregon Tech 2017 Annual Financial Report was prepared by Oregon Tech in conjunction with
the University Shared Services Enterprise (USSE). The audit opinion issued by CliftonLarsonAllen
LLP (CLA) is an unmodified opinion. This audit opinion is attached below.

CLA has prepared a Governance Communication Letter to communicate certain matters related to
the conduct of the audit to those who have responsibility for oversight of the financial reporting
process. The Governance Communication Letter is attached below.

During the audit of the financial statements, CLA did not become aware of any significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal controls.

Staff Recommendation

No action required. Report item only.

Attachments
e (liftenlarsonAllen PowerPoint Presentation

e 2017 Annual Financial Report Audit Opinion

e 2017 Annual Financial Report Governance Communication Letter

e 2017 Annual Financial Report
e 2017 Single Audit Report
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@ CliftonLarsonAllen

F

Oregon Tech

Agenda

Responsibilities under GAAS

Results of Audit

* Financial Statement
 Single Audit

Required Communications

200
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Responsibilities under US Generally Accepted
Auditing Standards (GAAS)

Responsible for:

+ Expressing opinions whether financial statements are in conformity with
s GAAPin all material respects.

s Expressing opinions only over information identified in our report. Other
information included in your financial statement package will be
read/reviewed, but not subject to testing.

s Performing audit in accordance with required auditing standards.

= Communication of significant matters related to audit, information
reguired by law/regulations, or other information agreed upon.

CALTH ALAALOEF | DUTSOUBLIMG | & ¥, WAL R LTI -1 ﬂ & 3

Responsibilities under GAAS (continued)

An audit in accordance with GAAS:
= Does not relieve management of responsibilities.

* Includes consideration of internal control as basis for audit procedures,
but not to opine on effectiveness of internal controls.

+ Isdesigned to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance about
whether statements are free of material misstatement,

+ Includes Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards.

CALTH ALFALDET | DUTSDUBLING | & ¥, WAL R LTI a ﬂ & 4
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Financial Statements

Opinion — unmaodified

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Statements of Net Position

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

[5tatement5 of Cash Flows

rN-D'tES to the Financial Statements

lﬁequired Supplementary Information

T

Financial Statements

Presentation of Net
Pension Liability

Oitfset prirnarily
to deferred
inflows outflow:
AMmo

Met

milllion from
million to %516 0 pEnsior

OVEr neg

VER|rs.
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Financial Statements

Capital asset
additions of
S8.7 million
affsat by $5.0
million in
depreciation

Operating
Revenue
increased 10 %

Capital grants of 516 received from
state bond funded projects

Major projects included:

e

B pavamd oo Lo Hal

T brclogy muieare

Tultien and fees up 5726k, or 3 %

Grant and Contract revenue up 5867k,
or 52%

e s s B e DX o g i STEM Mk nnd
e OTCAew opbabnt i i vy Bsiare 1oning

Auxiliary up 51.1 million or 14%

Heabgund Dangup 7T

Wt rm o ey o S0

Educational ales and Services up
ShbRk or 214%

Ve b rebip w1 s o of TRV et

DUTSDURCIRG

Findings

Current year

Verification Controls

NELDS Error Resolution

10-day requirement -

Resolved

Status of Prior Year

Incarrect FSEOG Award

- Resolved
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Required Communications

I Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

—

 Accounting Policies — No significant new standards
* Accounting Estimates
* Financial Statement Disclosures

I Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit ‘

I Uncorrected Misstatements — see schedule ‘

[ .
Corrected Misstatements - none

Required Communications

] Disagreements with Management

| Management Representations

| Management Consultations with other Independent Accountants

|.’-5igniiir:ar1t Issues Discussed with Management Prior to Engagement

Other Audit Findings or Issues
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Other Items

Management

Letter

Management
was cooperative
and helpful

Questions?

F&F Committee
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Jnan Bushang
Priretipal

pran bushang@CLAcannect com

303-265-TEEY

CliftonLarsonAllen i i I { Reeresuit PNERSSP——

Oregon Tech Board of Trustees
F&F Committee Page 13 5.1 ANNUAL SINGLE AUDIT



December 7, 2017

ClifionLarsonfllen LLP

ClAconnect com

CliftonLarsonAllen

Audit Committee and Management
Cregon Tech
Klamath Falls, Oregon

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the business-type activities and the
discretely presented component unit of Oregon Tech (the University), a component unit of the State of
Oregon, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of Amenca, we considered the University's intemal control over financial
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenass of the University's internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's intemal control.

However, during our audit we became aware of deficiencies in intemal control other than significant
deficiencies and matenal weaknesses and other matters that are opportunities to strengthen your
intemal control and improve the efficiency of your operations. While the nature and magnitude of the
other deficiencies in intemal control was not considered important enough to ment the attention of the
Audit Committee, it was considerad of sufficient importance to mernt management’s attention and are
included herein to provide a single, comprehensive communication for both those charged with
govemance and management.

Cur comments and suggestions regarding those matters are surmmarized below.
Other deficiencies in internal control and other matters

Payroll Seagregation of Duties

A fundamental concept in a strong system of internal control is the segregation of duties. The basic
premise is that no one employee should have access to both assets and the related accounting records
or to all phases of a transaction. If the separation of duties is inadequate, there is a resulting risk that
intentional fraud or unintentional errors could cccur and not be detected. As it relates to information
technology and applications, controls should be assignad to employees to technically prohibit one user
from performing all phases of a transaction.

As reported to you in the prior year, during our review of segregations of duties conflicts within the
Banner system, we noted two individuals had the following abilities in the payroll system:

Add, change, and delete an employee with in the payroll system
Establish payment method and pay rates

Process payroll

Update paid-time off accrual thresholds

(S W ]

While the University had an automated compensating control in place dunng fiscal year 2017, such
access rights allow for fraud or eror to occur and potentially be undetected if certain compensating
controls are not performed consistently, or are not at a low enough level to detect certain instances of
fraud or error. In addition, we leamed that after the end of the fiscal year, the compensating control was
removed. As such, untl @ new compensating control is put in place, the University is exposed to
material emor or fraud (significant deficiency).

A member of

Nexia

It nathon:]
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Audit Committee and Management
Oregon Tech
Page 2

Recommendation

We recommend management ensure proper segregation of duties is established by removing access
rnights so that no one employee has the ability to perform incompatible functions.

If in the rare circumstance that access rights cannot be removed for certain employees, we recommend
the University strongly emphasize to the employees performing the compensating controls the
importance of such controls fo prevent and detect fraud or ermors. Such emphasis should be made
throughout the year so that the employees performing the compensating controls understand the nisk.
Perodic trainings, monthly reminders, and a separate person (for example, the intemal audit function)
ensuring the compensating control is being performed effectively are all potential avenues for the
University to ensure the compensating controls are being performed timely and effectively. For Fiscal
Year 2018, the University should implement such control as soon as possible given the cument
exposure to the University.

Oregon Tech Response:

Oregon Tech respectfully agrees with the comments and suggestions as recommended by
ChftonLarsonAllen LLF. As indicated in our prior year's response, it is management's belief that there
are inherent limitations on resources in a public entity the size of Oregon Tech, both financial and
personnel; by continuing to engage in vanous forms of training on an ongoing basis and utilizing
personnel and resources in outlying functions, that the risk related to access nghts is sufficiently
mitigated to an acceptable level. Oregon Tech is currently reviewing certain automated reporting
compensating controls, both cumently and previously, in place within multiple departments of the
university, including those outside of the payroll function, and also plans to develop key employee
training, communications, and oversight of such controls.

Cash Management

As of June 30, 2017, the balance of federal grants receivable was approximately $482,000. The
balances of state, other government, and prvate grants was 5524 ,000. Federal grants receivables were
up 82% from the prior year and make up 56% of total revenues at year-end. State and other grants
receivables were up 61% and make up 54% of total revenues at year-end. Given generally these
revenues are eamed throughout the year (versus just at year-end), the fact that these accounts
receivable balances make up such a large percentage of the revenue eamed is an indicator of untimely
cash drawdowns/reimbursement requests being performed by the University. Best cash
management/liquidly practices would include tmely draw down of reimbursements due from the
govemment and other parties (at least on a monthly basis). Per discussion with the University, the
untimely drawdowns were due to the history of lack of resources in the area of grant oversight. As such,
we would recommend the University emphasize the importance of timely cash drawdowns from the
federal govemment or other funding sources. In addition, the University should analyze roles,
responsibilities, and full-time equivalents in the Finance and Administration and Office of Sponsor
Projects departments to ensure key roles are adequately addressed.

Oregon Tech Response

Oregon Tech respectfully agrees with the comments and suggestions as recommended by
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP. Management has initiated a staffing level review in order to provide adequate
resources in the area of grant oversight. Under the University Provost Leadership Team and with
support of Finance and Administration and the Office of Sponsor Projects, management is moving
forward to improve working solutions and develop sound financial decisions to addresses the
inefficiencies and inadequacies that have resulted from significant growth in a relatively short time
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Audit Committee and Management
Oregon Tech
Page 3

penod in the area of federal, state, and other grant activities. Hiring of full-ime personnel will ensure
best cash management/liquidly practices to ensure timely draw down of reimbursements for federal,
state, and other grant monies owed to the University. Adequate staff support will provide the resources
to allow the University to improve its visibility, increase efficiency, and mitigate risk.

Vendor Payment Information Change Process

There have been several successful phishing attacks against higher education insfitutions and local
govermment entities whereby the entities sent significant payments to individuals posing as vendors.
Fraudulent individuals involved in the phishing scheme convince accounting personnel to edit vendor
payment information so that future vendor payments are sent to a fictitious account.

Upon a walk-through of the University's vendor payment information change process, we noted there

does appear to be a positive confirmation process whereas a University employee does perform an
independent venfication of the validity of requested vendor payment information changes. That being

said, phishing schemes are becoming more sophisticated each day, often “hijacking” credible, known
email addresses.

Recommendation

We recommend that management continue to strengthen controls by:

» Continuing to emphasize the requirement of having an independent venfication if a vendor
requests a change to pay information (address, ACH, etc).

 Ensuring the independent venfication is included as part of the University's wrtten
procurement policies.

¢ Providing training to employees on a regular basis to remind them of common phishing
schemes and the University's secunty standards. This should include reminding employees
the importance of passwords surrounding email accounts.

We will review the status of these comments dunng our next audit engagement. We have already
discussed these comments and suggestions with various University personnel, and we will be pleased
to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of this matter, or
to assist you in implementing the recommendation.

* & &

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Audit
Committee, and others within the University, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by
anyone other than these specified parties.

%Jm%_/_.’z_{ﬁ’

CliftonLarson&llen LLP

Denver, Colorado
October 30, 2017
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ClifionLarsonflen LLP
ClAconmect com

CliftonLarsonAllen

Cregon Tech
Members of the Audit Committes

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely presented
componant unit of Oregon Tech (the University) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2017. We have previously communicated to you
information about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, Govemment Auditing Standards, and Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit.
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our
audit.

Significant audit findings
Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Accounting policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of approprate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the University are described in Mote 1 to the financial statements.

Mo new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during 2017.

We noted no transactions entered into by the entity dunng the year for which there is a lack of
authortative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are pariculary sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial
statements were:

¢ Management's estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on based on histoncal
collection rates

« (Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. Estimated useful lives range from five to 50 years.

A member of

Nexia

|t national
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Members of the Audit Committes
Oregon Tech
Page 2

s (ther postemployment benefit expense is calculated based on the annual required contribution
of the University and the unfunded actuanal accrued liability as determined by an actuanal
estimate.

s Compensated absences and related personnel expenses are recognized based on estimated
balances due to employees for vacation and sick leave. The limitations on such payments are
defined by the rules associated with the personnel systems at the University.

« Summer session tuition unearned revenue is the estimate of the number of days of summer
courses that were incurmed subsequent to fiscal year-end, but for which tuition was charged and
collected prior to fiscal year-end.

¢ Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) net pension assetliability is recognized
based on estimated actuarial data determined by PERS. The University i1s allocated a
percentage of this liability determined by PERS and the Oregon Department of Administrative
Services and this allocated percentage is then reviewed by the Secretary of State Audits
Division.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates described above in

determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial statement disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial staterment users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Uncorrected misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropnate level of management. The
attached schedule summarizes uncomected misstatements of the financial statements. Management
has determined that their effects are immatenial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Corrected misstatements
Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any financial statement misstaterments
detected as a result of audit procedures.

Disagreements with management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditors’ report. Mo such disagreements arose during our audit.
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Members of the Audit Committee
Cregon Tech
Page 3

Management representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the attached
management representation letter dated October 30, 2017.

Management consultations with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matiers, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or a determination of
the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement

We generally discuss a vanety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the entity’s auditors. However,
these discussions occummad in the nomal course of our professional relationship and our responses
were not a condition to our engagement.

Other audit findings or issues

We have provided a separate letter to you dated October 30, 2017, communicating intemal control
related matters identified during the audit.

Audits of group financial statements

We noted no matiers related to the group audit that we consider to be significant to the responsibilities
of those charged with govemance of the group.

Quality of component auditor's work

There were no instances in which our evaluation of the work of a component auditor gave nise to a
concem about the quality of that auditor's work.

Limitations on the group audit

There were no restrictions on our access to information of components or other limitations on the group
audit.

Other information in documents containing audited financial statements

With respect to the required supplementary information (RS1) accompanying the financial statements,
we made certain inquines of management about the methods of preparing the RSI, including whether
the RSl has been measured and presented in accordance with prescnbed guidelines, whether the
methods of measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior period and the reasons
for any such changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying
the measurement or presentation of the RS1. We compared the RSI for consistency with management's
responses to the foregoing inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained
duning the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide
sufficient evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RS1L
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Members of the Audit Committes
Cregon Tech
Page 4

With respect to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the supplementary information)
accompanying the financial statements, on which we were engaged to report in relation to the financial
statements as a whole, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and
methods of preparning the information to determine that the information complies with the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period or the
reasons for such changes, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of
the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underying
accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.
We have issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2017.

The Message from the President accompanying the financial statements, which is the responsibility of
management, was prepared for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on it.

COur auditors’ opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should
only be used in their entirety. Inclusion of the audited financial statements in a document you prepare,
such as an annual report, should be done only with our prior approval and review of the document.

* & &

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and
management of the University and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than
these specified parties.

%Jm%_ L

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Greenwood Village, Colorado
October 20, 2017
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Oregon Tech
Passed Audit Adjustment
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Description Debit Credit

Passed Journal Entry JE # 1

To adjust employer level deferrals and related pension expense as
directed in Government Accounting Standard Board statement no. 68
from how they are recorded as calculated by the Department of
Administrative Services

Deferred OQutflow - Difference in Contributions 2014 3 149 DE& 5 -
Defered Inflow - Difference in Contributions 2015 - 215,081
Defered Inflow - Difference in Contributions 2016 - 81,934
Deferred Inflow - Change in Proportionate Share 2015 - 259 606
Deferred Outflow - Change in Proportionate Share 2016 433 TEB -
Pension Expense - 26,213
Total 5 582,834 $ 582,634

Cumulative Impact:
Assets/Deferred Outflows (Overstated) Understated 5 582 834

Liabilities/Deferred Inflows Overstated (Understated) (556,621)
Beginning Net Position - Prior to Restatement - Overstated (Understated) -

Beginning Net Position Restatement - Overstated (Understated) -
26,213

Support and Revenue Overstated (Understated) -
Expenses (Overstated) Understated (26,213)
Changes in Met Position Overstated (Understated) 3 (26,213)
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October 30, 2017

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
8390 East Crescent Parkway, Suite 600
Greenwood Village, CO 80111

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audits of the financial statements
of Oregon Tech (the University), which comprse the respective financial position of the
business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit as of June 30, 2017 and
2016, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of
expressing opinions on whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all matenal
respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are matenal.
ltems are considered matenial, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
Judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by
the omission or misstatement.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October 30, 2017, the following
representations made to you during your audit of the financial statements as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.

Financial Statements
1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement
letter dated Apnl 12, 2017, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The financial statements include all properly
classified funds and other financial information of the primary govemment and all
component units required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in
the financial reporting entity.

2. We acknowledge and have fulfilled our responsibility for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or
&ITor.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

4. We have identified all accounting estimates that could be matenal to the financial
statements, including the key factors and significant assumptions used in making those
estimates, and we believe the estimates (including those measured at fair valug) and the
significant assumptions used in making those accounting estimates are reasonable.
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5. Significant estimates have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of LS. GAAP. Significant estimates are estimates at
the financial statement date that could change matenally within the next year.

6. Related party relationships and transactions, including, but not limited to, revenues,
expenditures/expenses, loans, transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and
amounts receivable from or payable to related parties have been appropriately
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of U.S. GAAP.

7. All events occumng subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which
LS. GAAP requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

3. The effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in the
aggregate, to the financial statements for each opinion unit. A list of the uncorrected
misstatements is attached to the representation letter.

9. The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.5. GAAP, as applicable.

10. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the entity is contingently liable, if any,
have been properly recorded or disclosed in accordance with UL.S. GAAP.

11. Arrangements with financial institutions involving repurchase, reverse repurchase, or
securities lending agreements, compensating balances, or other amrangements involving
restrictions on cash balances and line-of-credit or similar arangements, have been
properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements.

12. Receivables recorded in the financial statements represent valid claims against debtors
for transactions ansing on or before the financial statement date and have been reduced
to their estimated net realizable value.

13. The methods and significant assumptions used result in a measure of far value
appropriate for financial statement measurement and disclosure purposas.

14.We have no plans or intentions that may matenally affect the camying value or
classification of assets, liabilities, or equity, except as disclosed in the financial
statements.

15. Capital assets have been evaluated for impairment as a result of significant and
unexpected decline in service utility. The University has disclosed the temporary
impairment of the geothermal plant due to being out of service for repairs at year end.
For other assets, impaiment loss and insurance recoveries have been properly
recorded, if applicable.

16. We believe that all materal expenditures that have been recorded as prepaid expenses
and deferred outflows will be recoverable in future periods.

17. We believe that the actuanal assumptions and methods used to measure pension and
other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liabilities and costs for financial accounting
purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.
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18. We are not aware of any potential or frequent changes to the State of Oregon pension
and other postretirement benefit plans for which the University is a participant.

19. We believe we have appropnately reported and disclosed the effect of the GASB 72
“Fair Value Measurement and Application”.

20. Qur participation in the Public Universities Risk Management and Insurance Trust has
bean propery reported and disclosed in the financial statements.

Information Provided
21. We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements such as records,
documentation, and other matters.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the
audit.

¢. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it
necessary fo obtain audit evidence.

d. Complete minutes of the meetings of the govemning board and related
committees, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have
not yet been prepared.

e. All communications from regulatory agencies, grantors, lenders, and other
funding sources conceming noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, financial

reporting practices.

f.  All communications from regulatory agencies, grantors, lenders, and other
funding sources conceming noncompliance with the provisions of laws,
regulations, confracts, and grant agreements.

g. Access to all audit or relevant monitonng reports, if any, received from funding
SOUrces.

22_ All matenal transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected
in the financial statements.

23. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be matenally misstated as a result of fraud.

24 We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the University and
involves:

a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or

c. Others when the fraud could have a matenal effect on the financial statements.
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25 We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the
University's financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,
grantors, regulators, or others.

26. We have no knowledge of any instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance
with laws and regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements, or abuse
whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.

27 We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and
assessments whose effects should be considered when preparng the financial
statements.

28. There are no other material liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be
accrued or disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

29 We have disclosed to you the identity of the University's related parties and all the
related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

30. The entity has satisfactory fitle to all owned assets, and there are no liens or
encumbrances on such assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral, except as
made known to you and disclosed in the financial statements.

31. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

32.We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other
studies related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been
implemented.

33. We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations,
as well as our planned comrective actions, for the report.

34 We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements applicable to the University, including tax or debt limits
and debt contracts; and we have identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations,
and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a direct and
miaterial effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial
data significant to the audit objectives, including legal and contractual provisions for
reporting specific activities in separate funds/accounts.

35. There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations
(including those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of
contracts and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants
whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a
basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

36. The entity has complied with all aspects of contractual or grant agreements that would
have a matenal effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

37. We have complied with all restrictions on resources (including donor restrictions) and all
aspects of contractual and grant agreements that would have a matenal effect on the
financial statements in the event of noncompliance. This includes complying with donor
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requirements to maintain a specific asset composition necessary to safisfy their
restrictions.

38. We have followed all applicable laws and regulations in adopting, approving, and
amending budgets.

39. The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an
equity interest, and properly disclose all other joint wventures, joinlly govemed
organizations, and other related organizations, as applicable.

40. The financial statements properly classify all activities.

41. Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and
unrestricted) and equity amounts are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

42, Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments
are properly valued.

43. Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

44 Expenses have been appropnately classified in or allocated to functons and programs in
the staterment of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

45 Revenues are appropnately classified within operating and nonoperating and other
(capital). Operating/exchange revenues have been recognized as eamed and non-
exchange revenues have been recognized in accordance with GASE Statement No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. (OMIC Membership
Fees were all recognized duning the fiscal year as they were considered nonexchange
transactions.)

46. Internal and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropnately eliminated.

47 Deposits and investment secunties and denvative instruments are properly classified as
to risk and are properly valued and disclosed.

48 Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized,
reported, and, if applicable, deprecated.

49. We have appropriately disclosed the entity’s practice regarding whether to first apply
restricted or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restncted and unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net
paosition is propery recognized under the cument practice.

50. We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI).
The RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of
measurement and presentation have not changed from those used in the prior penod.
We have disclosed fo you any significant assumptions and interpretations undertying the
measurement and presentation of the RSl

51. The University has not been notified by the U.5. Department of Education of the loss of
eligibility for one or all of the Title IV programs due to high default rates.
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52. The University has reported to the U.S. Department of Education for investigations all
known criminal misconduct, if any, involving Title IV funds by any student, employee,
third-party servicer, or other agent of the institution involved in the administration of the
University's Title IV programs.

53. The University or its employees have not received any direct or indirect benefits from
lenders related to the University's Title IV loan programs.

54_With respect to federal award programs:

a. We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied
with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Prnciples, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) including requirements
relating to preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

b. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards (SEFA) and related notes in accordance with the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance, and we believe the SEFA, including its form and content,
is fairly presented in accordance with the Uniform Guidance. The methods of
measurement and presentation of the SEFA have not changed from those used
in the prior period and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and
interpretations underlying the measurement and presantation of the SEFA.

c. If the SEFA is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make
the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the
SEFA.

d. We have identified and disclosed to you all of our government programs and
related activities subject to the Uniform Guidance compliance audit, and included
in the SEFA expenditures made during the audit peried for all awards provided
by federal agencies in the form of federal awards, federal cost-reimbursement
contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property (including donated surplus property),
cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct
appropnations, and other direct assistance.

e. We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied
with, the requirements of laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts and
grant agreements related fo each of our federal programs and have identified
and disclosed to you the requirements of laws, regulations, and the provisions of
contracts and grant agreements that are considered to have a direct and material
effect on each major program.

f. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and
maintained, effective internal control over compliance requirements applicable to
federal programs that provides reasonable assurance that we are managing our
federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations, and the provisions of
contracts and grant agreements that could have a material effect on our federal
programs. We believe the intemal control system is adequate and is functioning
as intended.
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g. We have made available to you all contracts and grant agreements (including
amendments, if any) and any other correspondence with federal agencies or
pass-through entities relevant to federal programs and related activities.

h. We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more
specific programs as a major program.

i. We have complied with the direct and matenal compliance, including when
applicable, those set forth in the OMB Compliance Supplement, relating to
federal awards and have identified and disclosed to you all amounts questioned
and all known noncompliance with the direct and matenal compliance
requirements of federal awards.

]-  We have disclosed to you any communications from grantors and pass-through
entities conceming possible noncompliance with the direct and matenal
compliance requirements, including communications received from the end of the
period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditors’ report.

k. We have disclosed to you the findings received and related comective actions
taken for previous audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external
monitoring that directly relate to the objectives of the compliance audit, including
findings received and comective actions taken from the end of the penod coverad
by the compliance audit to the date of the auditors’ report.

I. Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with
relevant guidelines in OMB's Uniform Guidance (2 CFR part 200, subpart E)

m. We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance requirements that may
have varying interpratations.

n. We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the
direct and material compliance requirements, including information related to
federal program financial reports and claims for advancas and reimbursements.

o. We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period affecting noncompliance during the reporting penod.

p. There are no known instances of noncompliance with direct and matenal
compliance requirements that occurred subsequent to the period covered by the
auditors' report.

g. We have disclosed to you whether any changes in internal control over
compliance or other factors that might significantly affect internal control,
including any comective action we have taken regarding significant deficiencies
and/or matenal weaknesses in internal control over compliance, have occurrad
subsaquent to the date as of which compliance was audited.

r. Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements
are supported by the books and records from which the basic financial
statements have been prepared.
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s. The copies of federal program financial reports provided to you are true copies of
the reports submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal
agency or pass-through entity, as applicable.

t. We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost
principles.

u. We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of
prior audit findings to include all findings required to be included by the Uniform
Guidance, and we have provided you with all information on the status of the
follow-up on prior audit findings by federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities, including all management decisions.

v. We are responsible for and have ensured the reporting package does not contain
protected personally identifiable information.

w. We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the auditee section of the
Data Collection Form as required by the Uniform Guidance.

x. We are responsible for taking corrective action on each audit finding of the
compliance audit and have developed a comective action plan that meets the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance.

y. We have disclosed to you all contracts or other agreements with service
organizations, and we have disclosed to you all communications from the service
organizations relating to noncompliance at the service organizations.

z. The University did not pass any grant funds through to subrecipients during the
year.

Michelle Meyer
Director of Business Affairs

Brian Fox
Vice President of Finance and Administration

Dr. Magi G. Naganathan
President
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About the University

The Oregon Institute of Technology (Oregon Tech) is an
institution founded on the principE\' of excellence through
hands-on knowledge. We believe in giving students a rigorous,
practical education while applying cutting-edge concepts for
real-world solutions.

As the Pacific Northwest’s only polytechnic university, we
take pride in our mission to deliver technalogy education. We
continually partner with industry leaders to ensure that we
adapt to new technology and that our programs and classes are
high-quality to prepare students for workforce demands.

This rca]-world fOClls giw:s our studcnl‘s a CO'IT[PCti(iVC Cdg".‘}
almost 95 percent are either employed or enrolled in graduate
S{'hnﬂll within six months aﬁl‘r gfﬂdlla[’if!ﬂ. Year ﬂﬂ'l‘r year, our
baccalaureate graduates earn excellent starting salaries. New
graduates earn an average starting salary of $56,000 per year.
We also atrribute this to our dedicated professors, who provide
personalized attention and are genuinely invested in their
students’ learning. A total enrollment of abour 5,200 allows
for an intimate campus environment distinguished by small
classes and a student-to-faculty ratio of 20:1. This personal
:{1.1}1 rUﬂCI'I PrU\"idL‘S rI'IfLI'I)' bCJ'lL‘ﬁl.( UF a PriVﬂtL‘ L‘Clucal‘i:)n at a
public university.

Vé 2 | Oregon Institute of Technology
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BEST ONLINE COLLEGES

IN OREGON
— DREBON TECH —

&g, *2017- o
"’-‘-‘mmiv‘

Hands-on Education

Qur individualized and applied approach to teaching, which
h](.']'ldh I.II(.'UT'J' ﬂ[ld pl'll(.'LiL'C. is L]‘L‘ Main reason our grzlduaLL‘s are
so avidly recruited. Whether they study software engineering,
vascular tcchnolog}-', management, or dental h}'gicnc. Oregon
T(T']\ ﬁllld(‘lllﬁ ]13\"(‘ amazing {IPP!)TH[I]iIil'& ({8 QPP])' what [')["‘\"
I(.'Jrll in ]ab-]mscd CIH.F&L'!“ L%Tlll'lll(_'ﬁ‘ externs IIPS ill'ld \\'Urkp]:lcc.\.
This practical focus is reinforced in the classroom by instructors
who come to Oregon Tech with relevant business, industrial, or
clinical experience.

And in every program, major studies are underscored by a
g{'l'l(‘l'ﬂl-('dll(‘Hlilll'I core thart h'l'”'l‘d[‘l'lﬂ S("dl‘l’lf&‘ llm‘lvrsranding
Ur lI'It' wor'd ﬂlld lL'}.'lL'l'IL'!i ll'li_'"'l o communicate (.'r&_'fl.i\"i_‘l,\'_.
SOI\"‘.‘ prnb'cms and think F:)r tl‘lcmst‘]\'{'s. Orcgo]‘l TC‘L"'I is hl.‘Sr
known for its rraditional engineering and technological core,
but new degree options {and surprising twists on old ones) are I
remarkably muld-dimensional. A Geomatics student might
use GIS rcchnnlng): to survey an RTC"I:‘.‘{)IO!_"‘.IC:‘] (.‘.‘CCR\'R[.H\T[,
or a M{'('I'Iﬂ”ic‘:ll Enginﬂ'riug &llld(.'l'l[ may L'UIIIP]C“.‘ a4 CToss-
disciplinary application in sustainability. A Communication
Srudies major might compile a technical manual for an Oregon
Rr:m'wahl(‘ F.nl'.l'g}’ Center prni{'ﬂ. II'IFUTITIRH”TI T(‘f'}\'l'lfill)y‘_\" ﬂ'l'ld
Health Informatics or Management students might specialize
in allied health management.

|
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MISSION

Oregon Institute of Technology offers innovative
and rigorous applied degree programs in the
arcas of engineering, engineering technologies,
health technologies, management, and the arts
and sciences. To foster student and graduare
success, the university prnvidvs an intimate,
hands-on learning environment, focusing on
application of theory to practice. Orepon ech
offers statewide educarional oppertunities for the
emerging needs of Oregon’s citizens and provides
informarion and technical expertise to srarte,
national and international constituents.

CORE THEMES

*  Applied Degree Programs

*  Student and Graduate Success

*  Statewide Educational Opportunitics
*  Public Service

Oregon Tech Strategic Plan:

www.oitedu/faculty-stafff resources/strategic-plan
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As OECSCm.s Institute c}f’[‘:\chnalog]‘, the university had another year af
amazing accomplishments and milestones that have moved us forward
in significant ways. Now in our 70th year, Oregon Tech can boast new
program opportunities, exciting industry partnerships and a growing
recognition of its unique programs and the value thar our graduares find
in their careers.

I was honored 1o be Jppointn‘({ as Or:‘gan Tech's 7th prcs[dcnt this year
to lead the university at an opportune time in its history. The Board of
Trustees and the university join me in thanking Dr. Jay Kenton who
served as interim president for Qregon Tech for one-year beginning in
spring of 2016. Among other things, Dr. Kenton also began the process
of bringing in new leadership in several areas. We have been able to
bring several of the searches that were pending during the transition 1o a

suceessful conelusion, including the appointment of our -

Ia

new provost and chiel information officer. I would also
like to thank Lita Colligan for her special contriburtions
as our associate vice president of government affairs
and strategic parmerships and wish her an enjoyable
retirement. Our new hires are joining the swrong team

already in place across Oregon Tech's campuses and sites
are bringing new expertise and energy ro our work.
Building an innovation eco-system

At the very end of Oregon’s 2017 Legislative Session,
Oregon  Tech’s proposed Center of Excellence in
Engineering and Technology (CEET) was approved,
providing $40 million in state bonding autherity which
will be marched by $2 million in university investment and donarions.
For Oregon Tech, CEET is not just a new building on the Klamath Falls
campus, it is an innovation eco-system that will help us chart a new
trajectory in technology and business, innovation and entreprencurship.
This is a game changer for Oregon Tech’s studemts and faculty, and
for our industry parmners as well as the state. Oregon’s economy,
particularly its rural areas, calls for the educarion and training of student
entrepreneurs who learn in real-world laboratories and classrooms,
nurturing an innovation culture that has a direct and pesitive return for
Oregon’s economy.

The CEET will also strengthen our community in Klamath Falls. This
investment will draw more industries, companies and college-educared
professionals to the region, and a growing tax base that will bolster the
city and the county for real, permanent growth and siability. The project,
which completes the new CEET and renovates Cornert Hall, will be
home o expanded interdisciplinary space, providing an innovative
model of learning thar creates an interactive workspace of classrooms,
maker spaces, labs, and offices that ignite innovation and collaboration,
preparing students for professional practice.

Partnerships bring new opportunities to excel

Last year Oregon ‘lech’s Trustees took a major step in elevaring our
relationship with industry when we became a partner in the Oregon
Manufacruring [nnovation Center Research and Development (OMIC
R&D). Modeled after Advanced Manufacturing Research Centers
previously developed by Boeing worldwide, OMIC R&D brings
together manufacturing industry partners with Oregon Tech and rwo
other Oregon public universities in an R&D facility being developed
in Scappoose, Oregon. This cellaboration will develop advanced metals
manufacturing technologies to increase commercial productivity and
augment state and regional capabilities. OMIC R8s state-of-the-art
facility will comprise talented engineers and rechnelogists from industry
and university faculty, and undergraduate and graduate students whe
will provide “outside-in" applied research, rechnical advice, and suppart
driven by manufacturing enterprises of all sizes to define the R&D focus.
Besides Boeing, other partners include Blount Invernational, Daimler
Trucks North America, and ATI, among others. Oregon Tech has a major
role in OMIC R&D, having been selected 1o serve as the host university

T W

Nagi G. Naganathan
Oregon Tech President

responsible for the organizational funetions, including Bcilitating the
work of the Board of Governors and working collaboratively with
industry 1o accomplish its research geals. The Center will be a true
training ground for our students and an oustanding applied research
and innovation proving ground for our E1I.‘ll]|}‘, as we solve tr}(hno'og}‘
problems presented by manufacturing partners and clients with state
of the art equipment and machinery. "This is a grear opportunity for
us to demonstrate and elevate our commitment to applied, hands-on
education and innovation at Oregon Tech.

Ancther collaboraton thar has grear potential is the Rural Health
Partnership (RHP) that Oregon Tech joined this year with Sky Lakes
Medical Center and Oregon Health & Science University. As a strategic
partnership, the RHP will accelerare the education of inter-disciplinary
teams of emerging rural health professionals, provide
opportunities for health occuparions’ students to practice in
rural setrings, and gain benefits for our students from shared

-3
‘-‘

clinical space and I';n.'u]l'_r expertise. Drcguu Techwill (.lcu':lup
three new health occupations degrees, including a Docrorate
of Physical Therapy, the first public offering of this program
in the state. We have also begun operating the Population
Health Management Research Center, in partnership with
OHSU and Klamath County Public Health, 1o provide
inter-professional educational research opportunities for the
OHSU Rural Campus Cohort and Oregon Tech students.

Oregon Tech accomplished another milestone this year
when we officially became a Blue Zone university, the first
in the nation to do so. The Blue Zeones parmership in Klamath Falls has
helped guide us in incorporating into our lifestyle the health principles
that will rransform Oregon Tech and our City into a place where people
can Ij\‘f l()ng:r. Ilﬂdlthiﬂf li\'cs. By s]']drl]l‘s our Wfkpldc: ﬂl]\'ilol‘]]‘f[\l
to support healthy behaviors, we can improve productivity, decrease
turnover, and see a reduction in overall healthcare costs.

Building reputational capital and a world-class polytechnic

Besides the high-potential partnerships and initiatives underway, Oregon
‘Tech has a solid foundation of assets thar rake us forward, including
a record number of degrees awarded over the past year; a successful
accreditation review that reinforced our strengths; op ranking in online
programs, and continued high marks from external reviewers of the
value that our in-demand degrees provide w0 our graduates, and o the
industries and organizations who hire them.

Just looking ar the top companies wha hire our graduares is very telling
of the quality “outpur” we produce: Boeing, Intel, Microsoft, Jeld-Wen,
Providence Health & Services, Sky Lakes Medical Center, OHSU,
International Game Technolagy, Daimler, and Mike, just to name the
top ten. Oregon Tech’s value proposition is becoming our calling card
for students who want a meaningful return on their higher education
investment. Qur graduates now have the highest ROL in the state, as
marked by natienal ranking organizations, with average starting salaries
now in cxcess of $56,000, and with a 95% success rate of graduates
being employed or in graduate school within six menths of carning their
degree.

Oregon ‘Tech is thriving, growing and extending our influence more
cach year. I would like to thank everyone who helped make this year in
particular so successful: our dedicated faculty, staff, and Trustees, our
diligent  students, committed partners, caring legislarive leaders,
generous donors and alumni, and the communities in which we offer
our innovative educarion programs. We are who we are because of you.

Ne oqe T NogurPey

Nagi G. Naganathan, Ph.D., ASME fellow

President, Oregon Institute of Technology
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* Dr. Nagi Naganathan joined Oregon Tech in 2017, in

its 70th year and as its 7th president, officially beginning
his duties in April.
Oft‘gﬂn T{:‘Ch Cuntinll('S o g(']l('l'a[(' grﬁ'at Stl]df‘nt illtt'l'ﬁ'st
in STEM education and polytechnic degree programs.
In fall 2016, Orugon served 446 additional students than
the previous fall term. This is a 9.3% percent growth in
headeount in Fall 2016. Student enrollment in Oregon
Tech has increased more than 65% over the last ten years
as the university has expanded its footprint in Oregon,
including growth atits Portland-Metro (Wilsonville) and
Online locations, new degree offerings in Klamath Falls
and other sites, and the growing value and recognition of
app]icd, relevant education approzlchcs.

The University continued to move forward as a partner
and host of the Oregon Manufacturing Innovation
Center Rescarch and Development {(OMIC R&D),
with plans to open the facility in 2017 (see President’s
Message). OMIC R&D is an industry/higher education
model of advancing regional manufacturing through
industry-relevant  rescarch  and  development  with
universitics, and comm unity cu”cgc training and

apprenti ceship programs.

A new Bachelor of Science in Professional Writing was
approved this year and will launch in 2017. The program
focuses on professional, technical, business, and scientific
writing; and prepares individuals for academic positions
or for professional careers as writers, editors, researchers,
and related carcers in business, government, nonprofic
sector, and the professions.

Ranking the top university in Oregon for Best Return
on Tnvestment, Oregon Tech is also in the top one
percent in the nation in PayScale’s most recent release
of top colleges based on graduates’ return on tuition and
borrowing investments. An Oregon Tech degree is noted
as having the highest return on investment (ROT) of
any college or university in Oregon. PayScale examines
which colleges and universities offer the best career and
salary return against tuition costs and any debt load that
students have incurred. Oregon Tech is tied as 17th out
of appmximatcly 1,400 schools natiunaﬂy for annual
ROI, which is the 20-year ROI annualized to represent
the percent of expected ROL received each year after
graduation.

| Oregon Institute of Technology

« For nearly 15 years Oregon Tech Online has been
providing students and professionals an affordable way
to earn a reputable bachelor's degree from a leading
institution. Our Online program is nationally recognized
as a Best Online Program by U.S. News & World Report,
and many of our individual online degrees have their
own accolades such as Diagnostic Medical Sonography,
Radiology, Health Informatics, Applied Psychology, and

In Fnrmation TC(']"\ HOIOg)'.

The third annual Catalyze Klamath Falls Challenge
brought in more competing student teams—and prize
money—than ever before. Six teams competed for
$20,000 in prize money and services to set up their
innovative businesses in Klamath Falls. The winning
project, Helios Hive, is an invention by Renewable Energy
Engineering student, Mathias Dean. The project is a
solar bee hive heating system that regulates temperature
within a hive to climinate a parasite currently leading to
mass losses in bee populations because of hive collapse.

The Oregon Tech Owls broke ground on a new Soccer
Ficld in September with both soccer teams winning their
first ever games on the new field starting in spring 2017.
The record setting 2016-17 scason was the first winning
season for men’s soccer while also marking the first time
the program made the Cascade Collegiate Conference
(CCC) post scason.

Both of Cross Country teams finished with the highest
ranking in Cregon Tech’s history as the women finished
Nao. 8 nationally and the men finished ar No. 19. Women’s
basketball had another strong year and made the National
Tournament for the 4th year in a row. The men hosted
the CCC Championship game for the first time since
2012, also qua]iFying for the National Tournament for
the first time in five years. Women'’s Golf won both the
regular season and the CCC Championship Tournament
on the way to a 15th place finish at the NAIA National
Tournament, rna.king their first appearance in school
history. Softball made the NAIA National Tournament
Opening Round for the 4th time in 5 years. Track and
Field had strong years with each team earing over 100
points at the CCC Tournament for the first time in 9

years.
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CliftonLarsenAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

CliftonLarsonAllen

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Members of the Board

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the
discretely presented component unit of Oregon Tech (the University), a component unit of the State of
Oregon, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the University's basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not
audit the 2017 and 2016 financial statements of the Oregon Tech Foundation (the Foundation), which
represents 100 percent of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the discretely presented component
unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us,
and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the discretely presented component
unit, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. The financial
statements of the Foundation, a discretely presented component unit, were not audited in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
University's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the University's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

A mamber of

Nexia

International
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Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type
activities and the discretely presented component unit of the University as of June 30, 2017 and 2016,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis on pages 10 through 19, the Schedule of the University's Contributions, the
Schedule of the University's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset/Liability, and the Schedule
of Funding Status of Other Postemployment Benefits listed as Required Supplementary Information in
the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’'s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements. The Message from the President is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The Message from the President has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on it.

Other Reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 30,
2017, on our consideration of the University's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the University’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the University’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

%@MM% L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Greenwood Village, Colorado
October 30, 2017
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 7, 2017

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 (dollars in thousands)

InTroDUCTION
The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

pr'm'id::s an overview of the financial position and activities of

Oregon Institute of Technology (Oregon Tech)/(Universicy) for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 with comparative dara for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015. This
discussion has been prepared by management to assist readers
in undcrstanding the accompanying financial statements and
footnotes.

ANNUAL FULL TIME EQUIVALENT STUDENT

ENROLLMENT SUMMARY:
017 2016 015 2014 13

OregonTech 3,209 3,159 2983 2,993 2900

Unperstanping THE FinANCIAL STATEMENTS

The MD&A focuses on Oregon Tech as a whole and is intended
to foster a greater understanding of Oregon Tech's financial
activities. Since this presentation includes summarized formats,
it should be read in conjunction with the financial statements
which have the lbllowiug six components:

Independent Auditors’ Report presents an unmodified opinion
rendered by an iudcpcndcm certified public accounting firm,
ClifronLarsonAllen LLE on the fairness in presentation (in all
material respects) of the financial statements.

Statement of Net Position (SNP) presents a snapshor of
Oregon Tech assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred
inflows under the accrual basis of accounting at the end of each
fiscal year presented. The SNP helps the reader understand the
types and amounts of assets available to support operations, how
much Qregon Tech owes to vendors, and net position delineated
based upon their availability for future expenditures.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net
Position (SRE) presents Oregon Tech revenues and expenses
categorized between operating, nonoperating, and other related
activities. The SRE reports Oregon Tech's operating resules for
cach fiscal year presented.

Statement of Cash Flows (SCF) provides information abour
Oregon Tech’s sources (receiprs) and uses (payments) of cash
during the fiscal year. The SCF classifies sources and uses of cash
into four categories, and assists in dcwrmlulng whether Orcgou
Tech has the ability to generate future net cash flows to meet its
ob|ig:1r'lons as th(:}r come due.

Notes to the Financial Statements (Notes) provide additional
information to c]nri)cy and expnm‘l on the financial statements.
The Compuuc.nl Unit, compriscd of a supporting foundation,
is r‘]iscretely presented in the Oregon Tech financial starements

and in Notes 2 and 20.
The MD&A provides an objective analysis of Oregon Tech’s

financial acrivities based on r:urrenrly known facts, decisions,
and conditions. The MD&A discusses the current and prior
year results in comparison to the current and two previous fiscal

ré 10 | oOregon Institute of Technology
=

years. Unless otherwise stated, all years refer to the fiscal year
ended June 30.

FinanciaL Summary

The University's financial position has improved over the past
two years with an increase to Net Position as of June 30, 2017 of
$3.543 and an increase of $46,516 in 2016. The largest increase
to Net Position in 2017 was to the Net Investment in Capital
Assers, which increased $4,298. The 2017 Unrestricted Net
Position decreased $1,277 due to changes o the Net Pension
Liability and other employment related liabilities in 2017 which
decreased Unrestricted Net Position by $2,270. These decreases
were offset by increases of $993 in business activities for budgered
and auxiliary operations.

The largest increase to Net Position in 2016 was to the Net
Investment in Capiral Assets, which increased $42,903 primarily
due to the removal of state paid debt (see Note 18. “Change
in Entity” for details) as part of the Oregon Tech change to an
independent university, The 2016 Unrestricted Net Position
increased $10,360 due to business actividies for budgeted and
auxillary operations, These increases were ].u'iluarily offset by
changes to the Net Pension Liability and other employee related
liabilities in 2016 which decreased Unrestricted Net Position by
$4,720.

A full discussion is included in the Statement of Net Position
section below.

Statement oF Ner Posimion

The term “Net Position” refers to the difference berween (a) assets
and deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources and is an indicator of Oregon Tech’s current
financial condition. Changes in net position that occur over time
indicate improvement or deterioration in Oregon Tech's financial
condition. The [bilowing summarizes Oi'cgun Tech assets and
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources, and net position:

Condensed Statement of Net Position

As of June 30, 2017 016 2015
Current Assets § 15407 § 15569 § 14506
Moncurrent Assets 24353 25,630 24,578
Capital Assers, Mat 97,159 93,615 95,257
Total Assets 3§ 137424 § 134814 3 134,541
Deferred Outflows of Resources 3 9,011 3 1433 3§ 3475
Cusecent Liabilities § 12449 ¥ 13711 § 15628
Moncurrent Liabilities 57,404 48239 92208
Total Liabilities 3 69,851 § 61,950 § 107 836
Dreferred Inflows of Resources 3 161 3 1467 § 4116
Met Inwestment in Capital Assets 3 5869 3§ 54361 3 11,458
Restricted - Expendable 5284 4762 6,789
Unrestricted 12,480 13,757 8,117
Total Mat Pesition § 75423 § 72880 § 26,364
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 (dollars in thousands)

TotaL Ner Posimon
As illustrated by the fullnwing gmph, the m:akﬁ'-up of net position
changed between 2017, 2016 and 2015.

FHO,000
$70,000
W Unrestocted
$60,000
$50,000
~ M Restricted -
Fi0,000 - Expendable
$30.000
$20,000 Nt Investment in
Capital Auser
$10,000
P

2017 2016 2015

Comparison of fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year 2016

Net Investment in Capital Assets increased $4,298 or 8 pereent.

¢ The net value of Capital Assets increased $3,544. See the
discussion in the “Capital Assets and Related Financing”
section of this MD&A and Note 5. "Capital Assets” for
further details.

*  The net value of Capital Assets is reduced by the Long Term
Debt associated with the purchase of capital assets and
increased by any unspent bond proceeds associated with
debt. The Long Term Debt and unspent bond proceeds

associated with capital asscts decreased $754 due primarily to

increased principal payments on long term debt, a decrease
of debt principal ductoa rcfunding, and decreased unspent
bond proceeds. Please see Note 9. “Long-Term Liabilities”
for additional information.

Restricted Expendable Net Position increased $322 or 11

percent.

®  Net position relating to funds reserved for debr service
decreased by $102. This is primarily related to a decrease
in debt service payments on student building fee funded
projects.

*  Net position relating to the funding of capital projects
increased $680. The increase is primarily due to matching
fl]llds I‘CSCI‘VCd f(}r thf rﬂn()\t'ﬂti()n ﬂf C()Ill(:tt Hall,

*  Ner position related to gifts, grants and contracts remained
relatively unchanged, with an increasc of $14.

¢ Net position related to student loans decreased $70 due to a
decrease in Perkins loan balances of $107, offset by increases
to other loan program balances of $37.

Unrestricted Net Position decreased $1,277, or 9 percent, due in

large part to the following:

+  Increases due to Oregon Tech budgeted and auxiliary
operations added $993 to net position.

+  Changes associated with year-end liabilicy accruals for
Compensated Absences, PERS State and Local Government
Rate Pool (SLGRP), Other Post-Employment Benefits
(OPEB), and Net Pension Liability decreased unrestricted
net position by $2,270.

See Note 10. “Unrestricted Net Position” for further details.

Comparison of fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2015

Net Investment in Capital Assets increased $42,903 or 374

percent.

*  The net value of Capital Assets decreased $1,642. See the
discussion in the “Capital Assets and Related Financing”
section of this MD&A and Note 5. "Capital Assets” for
further details.

*  'The net value of Capital Assets is reduced by the Long Term
Debt associated with the purchase of capital assets and
increased by any unspentbond proceeds associated with debt.
The Long Term Debt and unspent bond proceeds associated
with capital assets decreased $44,545 due primarily to the
removal of state paid debt from Qregon Tech’s books. Pleasc
see Note 18. “Change in Entity” for additional information.

Restricted Expendable Net Position decrcased $2,027 or 30

PC‘rCC‘l'lt.

*  Net position relating to funds reserved for debt serviee
decreased l)y $1,399. The decrease is related to the removal
of the state paid debt. Oregon Tech is no longer required
to pay debt service on the debt that was removed, which
dCCrt‘aﬁCS IITC amaount UF T’Cquier dClj[ SETViCC reserves il]
2016 and future years.

*  Net position relating te the funding of capital projects
decreased $842, The decrease is due to completed work on
construction projects and the release of restriction on funds
held in auxiliary cquipment and replacement funds. During
2016, construction was completed on the Tunnel Project,
Storm Drains related to the new soecer field, and other capita]
improvement projects. On July 1, 2015, when Oregon Tech
became an independent university, ORS 351.615, which
previously restricted the auxiliary operations equipment
and replacement funds, was repealed by Senate Bill 80. This
resulted in a decrease of $637. These funds are now reflected
in Unrestricted Net Position.

*  Net position related to gifts, grants and contracts increased
$118 due to an increase in State of Oregon grants and gift
funds.

*  Net position related to student loans increased $96 primarily
due to an increase in Perkins loan balances of $68 and other
long term loan program balances of $38. These increases
were offset by other nominal amounts.

Unrestricted Net Position increased $5,640, or 69 percent, due in

large part to the following:

¢ Increases due to Oregon Tech budgeted and auxiliary
operations added $10,360 to net position.

+  Changes associated with year-end lability accruals for
Compensated Absences, PERS State and Local Government
Rate Pool (SLGRP), Other Post-Employment Benefits
(OPEB}, and Net Pension Liability decreased unrestricted
net position hy $4,720.

See Note 10. “Unrestricted Net Position” for further details.
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ToraL Assers anp Dererrep QutrLows oF Resources

Total Assets increased $2,610, or 2 percent, during the year ended
2017, Total Assets decreased $27, or less than 1 percent, during
the year ended June 30, 2016. Deferred Qutflows of Resources
increased $7,528 in 2017 and decreased $1,992 in 2016.

Current Assets decreased $162 or | percent.

*  Current Cash and Cash Equivalents decreased $434. The
decrease is pr'lmari|}' due to a decrease in cash associated
with the primary business activities of the Univcrsi[y. This
decrease was offset by less cash held as investments at year-
end as well as increases in cash held for student loans and
cash held for repair and replacement.

*  Collateral from Securities Lending decreased $604.

*  Accounts Receivable increased $2,135 due to increases
across most categories. lhe largest increases included a
$746 increase to accounts receivable for capital construction
giﬁ's; a $552 increase in other receivables, which includes
receivables for third party contracts; and a $393 increase in
accounts receivable for student tuition and fees.

ed $36.

o Inventories in storerooms increased $60.

¢ Current Notes Recelvable inere

*  Prepaid Expenses decreased $1,355 primarily due o a
decrease in prepaid Direct Loans caused by timing differences
in the npplicallou of payments on student accounts for the
summer term.

Noncurrent Assets increased $2.772 or 2 percent.

*  Noncurrent Cash decreased $341 due mainly to decreases
in cash held for construction projects of $1,366 and student
building fee funds of $111. These decreases were offser by
less cash being held as investments at year end.

¢ Investments decreased $605 due primarily to a decrease
in the amount of cash being converted to investments of
$7,564 as well as a decrease in both unrealized and realized
gains on investments. These decreases were offser by the
establishment of a board designated quai-endowment in the
amount of $7,500.

*  Noncurrent Notes Receivable increased $174 primarily due
to a increase in notes receivable for federal Perkins loans of
$147.

¢ Capital Assets additions of $8,723 were offset by additions to
accumulated depreciation of $5.010 and net retirements of
$169, which resulted in a increase in the net value of Capiral
Assets of $3,544. See “Capital Assets” In this MD&A and
Note 5. “Capital Assets” for additional information relating
to these variances.

Deferred Outflows of Resources increased $7,528 or 508 percent

due in full te net increases related to r:hangcs in the reporting

of pension deferrals. Also see Note 6. “Deferred Inflows and

OQurflows of Resources” for additional detail on these changes.

Comparison of fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2015

Current Assets increased $963 or 7 percent.

¢ Current Cash and Cash Equivalents increased $1,679. The

dlaugc is duc‘ o increases across almost au ﬁ'llld arcas. ‘TIIC

]argcst increases were due to an increase in cash associated
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with the primary business activities of the University and a
$385 increase in cash held to pay payroll vendor payments.
These increases were offset by an increase of $8,416 in cash
moved to investments in the Oregon Intermediate Term
Pool and the Long-Term Pool.

Collateral from Securities Lending increased $52.

Accounts Receivable decreased $1,116 primarily due o
decreases in accounts receivable for student tuition and fees
of $756 and third party contracts receivable of $435. In
addition, due to the removal of state paid debt from Oregon
Tech’s bools (see Note 9. “Long Term Liabilities™ and Note
18. “Change in Entity” for addicional informarion), the
University no longer receives funds for lottery debt service.
Therefore, in 2016, Oregon Tech did not record a receivable
for these funds. In 2015, $846 was recorded. These decreases
were offser by increases in accounts receivable from the State
of Oregon for construction projects of $595 and a receivable
for a deposit on the OMIC building purchase in Scappoose,
Oregon.

Current Notes Receivable increased $163 due to a decrease
in the allowance for doubtful accounts for Federal Perkins
loans of $210 and increases to Institutional and Other
Student loans of $53. These changes were offset by a decrease
in Perkins loans of $100.

Inventories in storerooms decreased $11.

Prcpa'lr] F,xp::nscs increased $196 primari[);r due to pr(:pﬂid
Direct Loans caused by timing differences in the applicallon
of payments on student accounts for the summer term.

Noncurrent Assets decreased $990 or 1 percent.

Noncurrent Cash decreased $5,007 due mainly to decreases
in cash held for construction projects of $3,464 and student
building fee funds of $165. Cash held for construction
projects  decreased because constiuction projects which
are funded by bonds issued by the state are now on a cost
reimbursable basis. These decreases were offset b}' increases
in cash due to less cash converted to investments of $621.
Investments increased $8,075 due primar'lh-r o an increase
in total cash combined with a greater percentage of cash
be'lng converted to investments as well as an increase in both
unrealized and realized gains on investments.

Noncurrent Notes Receivable decreased $283 due 1o a
decrease in notes receivable for federal Perking loans of $228
and an increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts of
$141. These changes were offset by an $86 increase in nores
receivable for Institurional and Other Student Loans.

The Net Pension Asset as of June 30, 2015 of $2,133
declined to zero because the June 30, 2016 balance is a Net
Pension Liability. The change is primarily due to the Oregon
Supreme Court ruling on the Moro decision, see “Changes to
Plan Provisions” in Note 14, “Employee Retirement Plans™.
Capiral Assets Additions of $4,107 were offset by addirions
to accumulated depreciation of $4,713 and net retirements
of $1,036, which resulted in a decrease in the net value of
Capital Assets of $1,642. See “Capital Assets” in this MD&A
and Note 5. “Capital Assets” for addicional informartion

re]nring to these variances.
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Deferred Outflows of Resources decreased $1,992 or 57 percent.

¢ Deferred outflows decreased $2,599 due to the removal of
unamortized gainsﬂosscs on r::fund'lng of debrt as part of the
removal of state paid debt and the removal of gains/losses
from the institution paid debt.

*  Net increases of $607 related to changes in the reporting for
Met Pension Liabiliries.

Also see Note 6, “Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources”

for additional detail on these changes.

ToraL Liasiumies anp Dererren INFLows oF REsources

Total Liabilities increased $7,901 or 13 percent during the year
ended 2017. Total Liabilities decreased $45,886 or 43 percent
during the year ended 2016, Deferred Inflows of Resources
decreased $1,306 or 89 percent in 2017 and decreased $2,649 or
64 percent in 2016,

Comparison of fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year 2016

Current Liabilitics decreased $1,264 or 9 percent.

¢ The current portion of Long-Term Liabilities increased by
$39 due prim:lrii)«r to the addition of a mp'lm| lease and
increased principal payments due in the next fiscal year. See
Note 9. "Long-Term Liabilities” for additional information
on these changes.

¢ Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities increased $537.
The increase was seen across most categories with the largest
increase coming from payables for payroll benefits. The
amount of p:lyah](:s in this category dcpcm‘ls on the timing
of payments made to the various benefic vendors. Other
large increases were to payables for services and supplies and
to salaries and wages pa}'ch due to the timing of payment
for wages earned in fiscal year 2017, See Note 7. “Accounts
Payable and Accrued Liabilicies” for details.

¢ Unearned Revenue decreased by $1,224 due primarily to
decreased direct student loans which were not yer distributed
at June 30, 2017.

*  Deposits decreased $12.

*  Obligations Under Securities Lending decreased $6046.

Noncurrent Liabilitiesincreased $9,165 or 19 percent. A decrease

of $1,777 in Long-Term Liabilities was offset by an increase to

the Net Pension Liability of $10,942. See "Debt Administration”

in this MD&A, Note 9. “Long-Term Liabilities", and Note 14

"Employee Retirement Plans" for further details.

Deferred Inflows of Resources decreased $1,306, or 89 percent,

due o (.'}mngt:s in reporting for pension liabilities, pri mar'l|y

r:h:znges in projecr:e-d and acrual earnings on pension p] an
investments. See Note 6. “Deferred Inflows and Ouiflows of

Resources” for additional derail.

Comparison of fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2015

Current Liabilities decreased $1,917 or 12 percent.

*  The current portion of Long-Tcrm Liabilities decreased by
$2,602 due primarily to the removal of state paid debt from
Oregon Tech books as of July 1, 2015. See Note 18. “Change
in Entity” for additional details.

*  Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities increased $45.
See Note 7. “Accounts Payah] e and Accrued Liabilities” for
derails.

¢ Unecarned Revenue increased by $552 due primarily to
increased direct student loans which were not yet distributed
at June 30, 2016.

*  Deposits increased $36.

*  Obligations Under Securities Lending increased $52.

Noncurrent Liabilities decreased $43,969 or 48 percent.

*  Long-Term Liabilities decreased $49,996 primarily due
to the removal of $50,947 in state paid debt. See Note 9.
“Long-Term Liabilities™ and Note 18. “Change in Entiry”
for further derails.

*  Net Pension Liability increased $6,027 due to the change to
a Net Pension Liability at June 30, 2016 from a Net Pension
Asser as of June 30, 2015. This change is primarily due to
the Oregon Supreme Court ruling on the More decision,
see “Changes in Plan Provisions” in Note 14. “Employee
Retirement Plans™.

Deferred Inflows of Resources decreased $2,649, or 64 percent,
due to changes in reporting for pension liabilities, primarily
changes in projected and actal eamings on pension plan
investments. See Note 6. “Deferred Inflows and Outflows of
Resources” for addirional derail.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NeT
Posmion (SRE)

Due to the classification of certain revenues as nonoperating
revenue, Oregon Tech shows a loss from operations. State general
fund appropriations, nonexchange grants, and non-capital
gifts, although considered noneperating revenue under GASB
Statement No. 35 and reflected accordingly in the nonoperating
section of the SRE, are used solc]y for operating purposes.

The fo"owing summarizes the revenue and expense activity of
Ohregon Tech:
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 2016 2015
Operating Revenues ¥ 37,926 § 34,500 $ 33,03¢
Operating Hxpenses 75,017 70,548 1

Operating Loss (37,091) (35,958) (28,353)
Menoperating Revenues,

Met of Expenses 35,540 36,494 26,860
Other Revenues 5,094 2,354 4,000
Special and Extracrdinary Itermns - 43,626 2,980

Increase in Net Position 3,543 45,516 5583
Met Positen, Beginning of Year 72,880 26,364 24,676
Change in Accounting Principle - (3,895)
Met Positien, End of Year § 76,423 § 72,380 $ 26,364
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Total Revenues

Toral Revenues decreased $35,986, or 31 percent, in 2017 over
2016, Revenues increased $7.640, or 11%, excluding the decrease
due to the 2016 change in entity of $43,626.

Total Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Special Items

Fot the Year Fnded June 30, 2017 2016 2015
Student Tuition and Fees $ 24,673 § 23947 $ 21933
Grante and Contracts 2,532 1,663 2684
Auxiliaty Entetpises 9,456 8,327 7852
Llducational and Other 1,265 651 566
Total Operating Revenues 37,926 34.590 33,035
Apptoptiations 26,845 25,365 22 860
Financial Aid Grants 7,060 0,810 M5
Gilts 3,133 2875 274
Tavestment Activity 339 762 372
Capital Grants and Gafts 4,904 2,165 1,557
Special and Lixtracrdinary Items - 43,620 2980
Total Nenopetating Revenues 42,281 81,603 37525
Total Revenues § 80,207 § 116193 § 70560

Total Operating and Nonoperating Revenues

100%
| Other Nonoperating
0 Revennes
i 2
By B Appropriations
F
0% B Educations] and
Onher Revenmes
304
m Auxiliary Enferprises
40
s,
Ak B Operaiing Grats
S0 and Contracts
10 B Stodent Tuition and
Fees
0%
2017 2016 2015
Operating Revenues

Operating Revenues increased $3,336 in 2017, or 10 percent, over
2016, w $37,926, Operating revenues increased $1,555 in 2016,
or 5 percent over 2015, to $34,590.

Comparison of fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year 2016

Student Tuition and Fees increased $720, or 3 percent.

+  Higher enrollment increased the total by $1,132 while lower
fee rates accounted for a decrease of $11.

+  Fee remissions and scholarship allowances reduced tuition and
fees by $41 more than in the prior period.

= Bad debt expense, primarily related to the maintenance of the
allowance for bad debt, increased by $354, causing a reduction
to ruition.

Federal, State and Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts

increased $867, or 52, percent due to the following:

+  Federal grant and contract revenue increased $172 primarily
due ro an increase in grant revenues received as a subrecipient
of awards from the US Department of Labor.

Vé 14 | oregon Institute of Technology
-

+ Srare and local grant acrivity increased $966 primarily due
1o increased grant revenues from the Oregon Department of
Educadon for the Regional STEM Hub and from the Oregon
Employment Department Oregon Talent Council (OTC) for
cybersecurity and autism training.

+  Nongovernmental grant activity decreased $271 primarily due
to decreases in revenues from a commercial contract for dental
operations.

Auxiliary Enterprise revenues increased $1,129, or 14 percent,

due mainly to the following:

¢ Student Health and Incidental Fee revenue increased $51.

+  Housing and Dining revenues increased $737 due primarily
to increased revenue for room and board.

*  An insurance recovery also increased auxiliary revenues by
$371.

«  Other rental income increased $162, with the largest increase
in lease income.

¢ Revenue and reimbursements generated by the Bookstore
decreased $93.

+  Athletics revenue decreased $47 due primarily to decreased
reyenuc ﬁ]l’ SlJCCi'd.l CVENLS.

Educational Department Sales and Services revenues increased

3668, or 214 percent, mainly due to membership dues received as

part of a collaboration agreement.

Comparison of fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2015

Student Tuition and Fees increased $2,014, or 9 percent.
+  Higher tuition and fee rates accounted for $928 of the increase,

while higher enrollment increased the total by $2.017.

¢ Peeremissions and scholarship allowances reduced tuirion and
fees by $897 more than in the prior period.

¢ Bad debr expense, primarily relared to the maintenance of the
allowance for bad debt, increased by $34.

Federal, State and Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts

decreased $1,019, or 38 percent, primarily due to the following:

+  State and local grant activity decreased $898 primarily due
to decreases in revenues from the Oregon Department of
Education for the Regional STEM Hub and from the Oregon
Engineering and Technology Council, among other decreases
in grant revenue from the State.

+  Nongovernmental grant activiry decreased $120 primarily due
1o decreases in grant revenues from Oregon BEST of $103.

Auxiliary Enterprise revenues increased $475, or 6 percent, due

mainly to the following:

¢ Student Health and Incidenral Fee revenue increased $170.

+  Housing and Dining revenues increased $160 due primarily
to scholarship allowances, which decreased $155.

» Other external sales increased $145, with the biggest increase
in lease income.

Nonoperating Revenues and Special Items

Both the decrease of $39,322, or 48 percent, during 2017 and the
increase of $44,078, or 117 percent, during 2016 in Nonoperating
Revenues are primarily due w the recording of a special item in
2016. The special item was a change in entity due to Oregon Tech
becoming an independent university and the removal of state paid
debt from the University’s books.
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Comparison of fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year 2016
Government Appropriations increased $1,480, or 6 percent, due
to an increase in State appropriations for Oregon Tech operations,
See Note 13. “Government Appropriations” for additional
information relating to changes in appropriations.

Financial Aid Grants increased by $250, or 4 percent, primarily
due ro an increased number of PELL grants awarded.

Gifis increased $258, or 9 percent.

+  Gifts from private individuals increased $270.

+  Gifts from commercial businesses increased $37.

+  Gifts from the Oregon Tech Foundarion increased $169.

+  Gifts from foundations, associations, and socictics decreased
$218.

Investment Activity revenues decreased $423, or 56 percent. See

Note 11, “Investment Activity” for additional information relating

to these changes.

Capital Grants and Gifts increased $2,739, or 127 percent, due

primarily to the following;

+  Oregon Tech received a grant from the State for $2,500 w0
purchase the OMIC facility in Scappoose.

»  Oregon Tech received a perpetual access easement as a gift in
kind waorth $420 for access to the OMIC faciliry.

Spccial Item - Changc in Entity decreased $43,626 to zero as

there were no special items to record.

Comparison of fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2015

Government Appropriations increased $2,505 or 11 percent.

»  State appropriations for Oregon Tech operations increased by
$4,737 due to increased fulu]hlg received from the State of
Oregon.

. State appropriations for debt service decreased $2,232 due to
the removal of state paid debt from the University's books.
Oregon Tech will no longer receive general fund or lottery
funds for the repayment of XI-G, XI-Q, COPs, and lottery
debt which is paid by the Srate.

See Note 13. “Government Appropriations” for additional

information relating to changes in appropriations.

Financial Aid Grants decreased by $203, or 3 percent, primarily

due o a decreased number of PELL grants awarded.

Gifts increased $134 or 5 percent.

+  Gifts from private individuals increased $191.

+  Gifts from commercial businesses increased $33.

+  Gifts from foundations, associations, and socieries increased
$43.

¢ These increases were offset by a decrease in gifts from the

Oregon Tech Foundation of $133.

Investment Activity revenues increased $390 or 105 percent. Sce

Note 11, “Investment Activity” for additional information relating

to these changes.

Capital Grants and Gifts increased $608, or 39 percent, due

primarily to the following;

+  Capiral grants from state bond funded construcrion projects
of $1,686 were received in 2016. In prior years, state bond
funding was received as bond proceeds in exchange for debr.

As an independent university, Oregon Tech no longer receives
debt in exchange for assets for what is considered state paid
debt. Under the new process, Oregon Tech receives capital
grant fuuding as construction project expenses are paid to
vendors and reimbursed by the State of Oregon, This was
offset by a $1,550 state grant received in 2015 for a geothermal
project.
*  Oregon Tech received equipment gifts in kind of $325.
Special Item - Change in Entity increased $40,646 primarily due
to the removal of state paid debt from Oregon Tech’s books. See
Note 18. “Change in Entity” for more information,

Expenses
Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $4,469 in 2017, or 6 percent over
2016, to $75,017. Operating expenses increased $9,160 in 2016,
or 15 percent over 2015, to $70,548. The following summarizes
operating expenses by functional classification:

Operating Expense by Function

lior the Years I'nded June 30 2017 2016 2015
Instruction $ 28,721 $ 27919 $ 24286
Research 2,018 849 574
Public Service a8 95 192
Acadenic Support 6,840 6,792 5,233
Student Services 4,729 4,412 3,801
Auziliary Programs 1,682 14,291 9540
Institutional Support 8,685 84406 6,244
Operations and Maintenance of Plant 4,351 4,249 3,047
Srudenr Aid 5471 4,556 4,792
{ther Cperating Expenses 3,482 2,939 3073
“T'oral Operating | spenses s 75,017 § 70548 § 61388
2017 Operating Expense by Function
o 1 Other Operating
Iperations an, N e o Tastiiet
M . e o
anl =
6%
Lnstitutional .
Support
12%,
Ausiliary R R - N
Progeims Academic Snppor o

Public

: Service
% i

15% 9

Smdent Services
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The implementation of GASBs Nos. 68 and 71 had a profound
impact on the operating expenses reported by Oregon Tech. The
following shows the effect of the implementation on operating
expenses across the functional classifications. The $2,108
difference in expenses for 2017 is due to recording the
components of Net Pension Liability required by GASBs Nos.
68 and 71; change in Net Pension Liability, changes in
proportion, differences in expected and actual experience,
differences  between projecred and earnings
and amortization of Deferred Qutflows of
Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources. See Note 14.
“Employee Retirement Plans” for additional details.

actual on

investments,

The effect of GASBs No. 68 on Expenses by Functional Classifications

without
GASBs
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 as reported 68/71 difference
Instruction $ 23721 % 27,809 § 012
Rescarch 2,018 1,994 24
Tublic Service 38 2
Academic Support 6,840 276
Snudent Services 4,729 194
Auxiliary Programs 10,682 175
Instinutional Suppest 8,685 340
Operations & Maintenance of Plant 182
Student Aid -
Other Operating Expenses 3
Toral Operanng Txpenses $ 3 $ 2,108
without
GASBs
Tor the Year Ended June 30, 2016 as repocted 68/7L difference
Tnstruction § 27,919 % 25,796 $ 2,123
Research 849 192 57
Public Service 95 92 3
Academic Support 6,792 6,151 641
Student Services 4,412 3,961 151
Auxiliary Programs 10,291 409
Institutional Support 8,440 792
Operations & Maintenance of Plant 4,249 421
Srudent Aid 4,556 -
Other Operating Hxpenses 2939 7
Total Operting Expenscs $ 70,548 % 63,644 § 4,004
withour
GASBs
Tor the Year Eaded June 30, 2013 as reported 68/71 difference
Instruction $ 24286 % 25862 § (1,576)
Rescarch 574 592 (18)
Public Service 192 193 6]
Academic Support 5,233 5,541 (308)
Student Services 3,801 4.006 (205)
Ausaliary Programs 9546 197
Tnstitutional Support 6,244 (197)
Operations & Maintenance of Plant 3,047 (286}
Student Aid 4792 :
{ther Operating Hxpenses 3,673 =
Total Operating Expenscs $ 61,388 % 64,176 § (2,788)

Vé 16 | Oregon Institute of Technology
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Due to the way in which expenses are incurred by Oregon Tech,
variances are presented and explained by analyzing changes in
the natural classification of expenses. Each nacural classification
analysis can be applied to many of the functional expense
caprion irems.

The following summarizes operating expenses by natural
classification:

Operating Expenses by Natural Classification

For the Year Ended June 34, 2017 2016 2015
Compensation and Benefirs $ 48,913 § 47,962 $ 37,920
Services and Supplies 15,573 13,234 14,164
Scholarships and Fellowships 5,491 4,044 4,674
Depreciation and Amortization 5,011 4,713 4561
Other Tixpenses 29 5) 69
‘L'oral Operaring Expenses $ 75,017 £ 70,548 $ 61,388

2017 Operating Expenses by Natural Classification

Depreciation and
Amertization
o

Schalacships and
Tellowships

Olhiez Bapenses
8 T /S
Services and
Supplies

23%

0%

Compensaticn
and Benelits
65%

Comparison of fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year 2016

Compensation and Benefits costs increased $951, or 2 percenr,

primarily due ro:

¢ Unclassified salaries increased $1,966; classified salaries
increased $518; student wages decreased $94; and pay for
graduarc rc;]chlng assistants decreased $9.

¢ Costs for health and retirement benefits increased $1,175.

*  The pension expense recorded as a result of the required
reporting for the Net Pension Liability decreased by
$2,796. See Note 14. “Employee Retirement Plans” for
more information.

Services and Supplies expense increased $2,339, or 18 percent.

‘This increase was mainly caused by a $1,057 increase in services

and supplies for the University budgeted operations. In addition

there were increases for services and supplies in the following

darcas:

e Gilts, grants, and contracts services and supplies increased
$584.

e Services and supplies for non-capitalized construction costs
increased by $404.

*  Auxiliary programs services and supplies increased $313.

Scholarships and Fellowships cxpenses increased $847, or 18
percent, primarily due to an increase in Pell erants of $221 as
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well as increases in scholarships from foundations and orher
scholarship organizations of $255. Fee remissions of $4,401
were reclassed to be recorded as reductions to Student Tuition
and Fee Revenues. This is a reduction in the amount removed

of $314.

Depreciation and Amortization expense increased $298, or 6
percent, primarily due to the acquisition of the OMIC properry
in Scappoose.

Other Operating Expenses increased $34 due primarily to
increased bad debr expenses for student loans.

Comparison of fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2015
Compensation and Benefits costs increased $10,042, or 26
percent, primarily due to:

*  Anincrease of $7,692 was a result of the change in reporting
for the Net Pension Liabilicy. The change from a Net
Pension Asset to a Net Pension Liability is primarily due
to the Oregon Supreme Court ruling on the More decision.
See “Changes in Plan Provisions” in Note 14. “Employee
Retirement Plans”.

¢ Higher wage costs attriburable to increased FTE and salary
and wage increases contributed $1.517 to the change,
while increased costs for health and retirement benefits
contribured $907.

¢ The amounrts accrued for the Other Post-Employment
Benefits (OPEB) liability, Srate and the Local Government
Rate Pool, and the compensated absences liabilities
decreased a combined $84.

Services and Supplies expense decreased $930 or 7 percent
This decrease was seen across many categories including general
supplies, communication supplies, utilities, maintenance and
repairs, and fees and services expense, ‘This was partially offset
by higher urilites, travel, and rencals and leases.

Scholarships and Fellowships expenses decreased $30, or 1
percent, primarily due to a decrease in Pell grants of $367, offset
by an increase in stare need grants and foundartion scholarships.
‘This expense category does not include fee remissions, which
are reported as reductions to Student Tuition and Fee Revenues.

Depreciation and Amortization expense increased $152, or 3
percent, during 2016 primarily due to the Large Power Plant
being pur into service during the last half of 2015.

Other Operating Expenses decreased $74, or 107 percent,

due primarily to decreased bad debt expenses for student
loans.

Nonoperating Expenses

Nonoperating expenses increased $2,518, or 289, percent in 2017,
as compared to 2016 and decreased $4,460, or 124 percent, in
2016.

Comparison of fiscal year 2017 to fiscal year 2016

*  Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets decreased $3,020 due ro the
gain in 2016 from the sale of the Harmony Building,

¢ Interest Expense decreased $419 primarily due to a
decrease in the amount of interest associared with capiral
construcrion liabiliries.

*  Other Nonoperating Items increased by $83. Cha nges
included an expense of $115 due to the return of capital
for the Perkins Loan program. This was mainly offset by a
reduction of debt due to a refunding of underlying XI-F(1)
bond debt by the State which resulted in a net reducrion in
Oregon Tech's contracts payable to the State of $166.

Comparison of fiscal year 2016 to fiscal year 2015

*  Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets went from a loss of $2 in
2015 to a gain of $3,174 in 2016 due to the sale of the
Harmony building in 2016. This reduced nonoperating
expenses by $3,176.

*  Interest Expense decreased $1,386 primarily due to a
decrease in the amount of bond interest recorded as a result
of the change in entity and the removal of state paid debt.

e Transfers to Oregon Tech from QUS moved to zero in 2016
due to Oregon Tech becoming an independent university.

*  Other Nonoperating Items decreased by $10 due to prior
year adjustments to fixed assets.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Capital Assets

At June 30, 2017, Qregon Tech had $174,043 in capirtal assets,
less accumulared depreciation of $76,884, for nec capital assets
of §97.159. At June 30, 2016, Oregon Tech had $165,616 in
capiral asscts, less accumulared depreciation of $72,001, for net
capital assets of $93,615.

2017 Capital Assets, Net - $97,159 thousand

Improvements Other
Than Buildings
»1%  Library,

Lquipment

Comstrtion in Collections,
Progress Tatangibles
2% 2%
Perpemal

Infrastrucrure.

Tutangible Asseis
147 o

0%

Laud aud
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9%
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Changes to Capital Assets

2017 2016 2115
Capiral Asscts, Beginning of Year $ 165,616 § 103,931  § 163,000

Add: Purchases/Construction 8,724 4,107 3,004

Tess: Retirements/

Disposals/ Adjustments @97) 247 2,079
Total Capital Assets, Hnd of Year 174,043 165,616 163,931
Accorts, Depréciation, Beginring of Year  (72,000) {66.121)

Add: Depreciation Expense (5,011) 4,713) 1,561)

Less: Relirements/

Disposals / Adjustments 128 1,386 2,008
Total Accun, Depreciation, Lod of Year ___(76,884) __ (72.001) ___ {68,674)

Toral Capiral Assers, Ner, Hnd of Year  § 97,159 § 95015 § 95257

Capital additions totaled $8,724 for 2017, $4,107 for 2016, and
$3,004 for 2015,

Capirtal Asset additions for 2017 included:

*  $1.391 for ecquipment, which includes a $517 of technology
equipment purchased for campus upgrades.

¢ LEquipment CIP of $150 is primarily related to I'T upgrades
and classroom labs.

*  $4,105 for building CIP acquisitions and repair, including
$3,704 for the acquistion of the OMIC property in
Scappoose, which was complete and pur in service in June,
2017.

= CIP includes $438 for renovacions o Cornert Hall,

¢« Additions due to land improvements CIP totaled $972,
including $940 for the soccer field project.

*  Infrastructure CIP completed in 2017 included $124 for
the fiber network upgrade.

*  Oregon Tech also added $420 for a gift in kind of a perpetual
access casement connected to the OMIC properry.

Capital Asset Retirements totaled $297 for 2017, $2,422 for
2016, and $2,079 in 2015. During 2017, retirements were
primarily related to the sale of the president's residence, which
reduced capital assets by $209.

During 2017, accumulated depreciation increased $4,883 due
o depreciation of existing assets as well as the addition of the
OMIC building,

See Note 5. “Capital Assets” for additional information.

Debt Administration

During 2017, long-term debr held by Oregon Tech decreased by

$1,793, or 4 percent, from $41,136 to $39,343.

*  Long term debt decreased $1,371 due to principal payments
on contracts payable to the State of Oregon.

*  Long term contracts payable to the State decreased $166 due
to refunding of underlying XI1-F(1) bond debt by the State.

*  Longterm contracts payable to the State also decreased $130
due ro net changes in accrered interest.

* Long term debt also decreased $175 due to principal
payments on Oregon Department of Energy loans.

* A new capital lease increased long term debt $49.

Vé 18 | Oregonnstitute of Technology
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During 2016, long-term debt held by Oregon Tech decreased by

$52,458, or 56 percent, from $93,594 to $41,136.

*  Oregon Tech's long term debr decreased $50,947 due to the
removal of State paid debt from Oregon Tech's books, Sce
Note 18. "Change in Entity” for additional information.

¢ Long rerm debr decreased $1,434 due to principal payments
on General Obligations due to the State of Oregon.

»  Long rerm debr increased $79 due to ner changes in accrered
interest.

¢ Long term debr also decreased $156 due to principal
payments on Oregon Department of Energy loans.

Long-term Debt
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ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

Funding for the major activities of Oregon ‘Tech comes from

2015

a varicty of sources, including tuition and fees, financial aid
programs, state and federal appropriations, grancs, private and
government contracts, donor gifts, and investment earnings.
Among these many sources, student tuition and fees, net of
allowances, and government appropriations are by lar the largest,
representing 33.6 percent and 30.3 percent, respectively, and
combining for 69.9 percent of the combined operating and
nonoperating revenues during the year ended June 30, 2017,
‘The third largest revenue source, Auxiliary Enterprise revenues,
represents 12.9 percent of operating and nonoperating revenues
and, like tuition, is strongly correlated with enrollment.

State funding levels in Oregon have consistently lagged behind
those of other states on a per student basis and have been highly
volartile, suf‘ftrillg siglliﬁmm and lungvrcrm disinvestment since
the early 1990°s with minor reinvesuments during periods of
stare revenue growth, Reliance on state funding, though critical
o Oregon Techs continued success, continues o challenge
the institution and its mission as the Pacific Northwests only
polytechnic university. The innovative and rigorous applied
degree programs in various felds including engineering and
engineering trechnology, allied health, business and management,
and applied arts and sciences offered by Oregon Tech are
inherentdy equipment intensive and require relatively low
student-to-faculty ratios. These programs require large fixed
investments in equipment and faculty. When paired with volarile
state funding, this creates periodic mismatches between revenue
and expense drivers.
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F&F Committee

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 7, 2017

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 (dollars in thousands)

While state funding has increased coming out of the 2008
recession, and Is set to increase again during the current
biennium, it is still lower than pre-recession levels. l",xpe nses,
particularly those related to salary and benefits, continue to rise.

The undr.r]ying dynamics associated with each are to some extent
beyond the control of Oregon Tech. Specifically, state funding is
a function of legislative control and non-salary payroll expenses,
such as health and retirement benefits, are mandated by the
state. Additionally, some contracts are bargained centrally with
statewide labor unions.

Oregon Tech is mandated by statute to participate in two
employee benefic areas. The first concerns retirement benefits
and includes a defined retirement benefit program managed by
the Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) and a 401(a)
plan managed by the public universities. The second concerns
healch, dental and other employment related benefies which are
managed by the Public Employee Benefit Board (PEBB). As a

maudar.ory pu.l'chascr oflht‘su BCIVICES [IOI uui\'cwlLy cmplu}rccs.

Oregon Tech has no control over their cost or benefit level for
its employees. These benefits are significantly above comparator
public and private employer rates, and Oregon Tech has
]1ismrim|]y had little cost sh:!ring between the cmp]oycr and
employees. For fiscal year 2017, retirement expenses was 6.9
percent of total expenses while employee health care benefits
averaged approximately $18,600 per covered employee and has
increased steadily over the years.

The large unfunded liability associated with PERS (described in
Note 14) will continue to weigh against the state’s budger and
its ability to fund higher education as well as against Oregon
Tech's internal cost equation. Recognizing the challenge ahead,
the Governor has established a task foree to explore solutions
to defease the liability, some of which are as drastic as asset
sales, privatization of public resources and consolidation of
universities to offset furure cost of retiree benefits. The ultimare
outcomes of this rask force are unknown, bur the seriousness
and complexity of the issue cannot be overlooked. The PERS
Board has decreased its assumed rate of return several times over
the past years and is likely to continue deing so recognizing
slowing domestic and global growth. The unfunded actuarial
]lﬂbilir}r is high]}r sensitive to r:]mng(:s in the assumed rate of
return. Significant increases in PERS rates are forecast for at
least the next two biennia and may be extended if returns are
less than those assumed by the state.

‘This has, and will continue o put signiﬁmnt upw:lrd pressure
on tuition and require growrh in enrollment while increased
opt'l'alloual cﬁ]clcucy in order to maintain a strong financial
position and highly effective university.

The full phasc in of differential tuition for certain high-cosr
and high-return programs in both the College of Engineering,
Technology and Management as well as the College of Healch,
Arts and Sciences has increased tuition revenue overall and
better matches high cost programs with highcr tuition rates. In
academic year 2017, wition rates increased three percent. For
the year ended June 30, 2017 overall student tuition and fees
revenue, net of allowances increased three percent over the prior
year. The overall gmwth was due to the combination of increased
tuition rates, the mix of students (resident and non-resident,

undergraduate and graduate), as well as moderate growth in
enrollment. During fiscal year 2017 Oregon Tech organized
a new division focused on strategic enrollment management,
bringing in a new Vice President and increasing its resource
commitment and focus on enrollment management, retention,
and the pipeline of students into, through and out of Oregon
Tech. Investments in marketing and the physical plant are also
geared towards increasing interest from students and families
in the high return on investment technical, STEM, and health
oriented degree programs offered by Oregon Tech.

The state’s Higher Education Coordinating Commission
(HECC) instituted a new funding formula, the Student Success
and Completion Model (SSCM) during FY 2016. Fiscal Year
2018 will see the final year of transition before it is fully
implemented during FY 2019. The SSCM distribuces state
support to the seven pubhc universities based on primm’il}-r the
number and type of degree granted and to a lesser extent on
student enrollment and program mix. Additionally, the SSCM
includes weighting for students who enroll and complete in
high-cost STEM and health degree areas, for dual-credit (high
school) enrollment, and for students from certain priority
populations. These are areas and students which Oregon
Tech has a hisrory of sucr:cssfully serving. ‘The institurion has
invested in. and is kf:cnly focused on, initiatives dcsigm‘d €4
improve performance in student retention and completion.
Early results are promising, including the largest graduating
class in our history in June of 2017, and forecasts for increased
continuation rates from spring to fall term. These investments
and lessons learned will bear additional returns as they mature
in the coming years.

Oregon Tech was successful in gaining additional operating
funding, both recurring and one time from the legislature
for our applied research and industry oriented centers,
including the Oregon Renewable Energy Center and the
Oregon Manufacturing Innovation Center. The legislature also
appr:)w:d !hnding of a $42 million dellar investment in the
Center for Excellence in Engineering and Technology as well
as the complctiou of Phase 11 of the Cornett Hall renovation.
These investments show increased prominence and strategic
importance of Oregon Tech to the state, region and our industry
partners.

r\llhoug}l Oregon Tech faces several external financial chall::ngcs.
some within and some outside of the institution’s control, it is
financially healthy and enjoys growing recognition and market
position. As the Morthwests only polytechnic university, it
continues to see strong student demand and is actively sought
by government, industry, and other educational partners.

The assumption of governing authority by the Oregon Tech
Board of Trustees in 2015 from the former Oregon University
System, and the selection of permanent senior |c:|(‘|r:mhip ream
has increased the stability and vigor at Oregon Tech headed into
the years ahead. The Board of Trustees and management are
actively pursuing strategic investments which will build upon
current momentum, increase enrollment and prestige of the
institution while restructuring the management systems and
decision mnking process to create a more efficient and effective
institution.
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December 7, 2017

Statement of Net Position - Oregon Institute of Technology

University
As of June 30, 207 2016
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Current Asscts
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Mote Z) $ 7,756 $ 8,190
Collateral from Securities Lending, (MNote 2) 637 1241
Accounts Receivable, MNet (Note 3) 6,076 3,941
MNeotes Recervable, Net [Note 4) 404 368
Inventories 178 113
Prepaid Expenses 356 1,711
Total Current Assets 15,407 15,569
Nonecurrent Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) 861 1202
Investments (MNote 2) 21,762 22367
Motes Recervable, Net [Note 4) 2,235 2061
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation (Mote 5) 97,159 93,615
Total Noncurrent Assets 122,017 119,245
Total Assets 8 137,424 ] 134,814
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) § 9,011 § 1,483
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (Note 7) § 5,758 § 5221
Deposits 94 106
Obligations Under Secunties Lending (Note 2) 637 1.241
Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities (MNote 9) 2,963 2.924
Unearned Fevenues 2,995 4,219
Total Current Liabilites 12,447 13,711
Noneurrent Liabilities

Long Term Liabilites (Note ) 40,435 42212

Net Pension Liability Note 14) 16,969 6,027

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 57,404 48,239

‘Total Liabilities 3 49,851 § 61,950

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Note 6) § 161 § 1.467
NET POSITION

MNet Investment in Capital Assets 8 58,659 ] 54.361
Restacted For:

Expendable:

Gifts, Grants and Contracts 794 T80

Student Loans 3,228 3,298

Capital Projects 1,086 406

Drebt Service 176 278

Unrestricted (Note 10) 12,480 13,757

Total Net Position $ 76,423 § 72,880

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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December 7, 2017

Statement of Financial Position - Oregon Tech Foundation

Component Unit

As of June 30, 2017 2016
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 1,247 § 214
Accounts Receivable 455 397
Accounts Receivable - due from University
Prepaid Expenses 32 28
Investments 23,931 21,061
Split-Interest Agreements 676 635
Unconditional Promuses to Give 89 121
Other Assets 371 373
Total Assets S 26,824 § 22,829

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses § 2% § 220
Liabilities Under Split-Interest Agreements 91 99
Funds Held for Distribution 9203 987
Total Liabilitics $ 1,090 $ 1,306

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted § 9,489 § 8,303
Temporarily Restricted 6,133 4,156
Permanently Restricted 10,112 9,064
Total Net Assets $ 25,734 $ 21523
Total Liabilities and Net Assets S 26,824 § 22,829

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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December 7, 2017

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position - Oregon Institute of Technology

University
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 2016
(In thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES

Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Allowances of $7,828 and $7,431, Note 15) $ 24,673 $ 23,947
Federal Grants and Contracts 846 674
State and Local Grants and Contracts 1,374 408
MNongovernmental Grants and Contracts 312 583
Educational Department Sales and Services 980 312
Auzxiliary Enterprises Revenues (Net of Allowances of $449 and §505, MNote 15) 9,456 8,327
Other Operating Revenues 285 339
T'otal Operating Revenues 37,926 34,590
OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction 28,721 27,919
Research 2,018 849
Public Service 38 95
Academic Support 6,840 6,792
Student Services 4,729 4,412
Auxiliary Programs 10,682 10,291
Institutional Support 8,685 8,446
Operaton and Mantenance of Plant 4,351 ,249
Student Aid 5,471 4,556
Other Operating Expenses 3,482 2,939
Total Operating Expenses (Note 12) 75,017 70,548
Operating Loss (37,091) (35,958)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Government Approprations (Note 13) 26,655 25,176
Financial Aid Grants 7,060 6,810
Gifts 3,133 2,875
Investment Activity (Naote 11) 339 762
Gain on Sale of Assets, Net 154 3,174
Interest Expense (1,847) (2,266)
Other Nonoperating Items 46 (37)
Net Nonoperating Revenues 35,540 36,494
Income (Loss) Before Other Nonoperating Revenues (1,551) 536
Capital and Debt Service Appropriations (Note 13) 190 189
Capital Grants and Gifts 4,904 2,165
Total Other Nonoperating Revenues 5,094 2,354
Increase In Net Position Prior to Special/ Extraordinary Items 3,543 2,990

SPECTAL AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS

Special Item - Change in Entity (Note 18) - 43,626

Increase In Net Position After Special / Extraordinary Items 3,543 46,516
NET POSITION

Beginning Balance 72,880 26,364

Ending Balance § 76,423 $ 72,880

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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December 7, 2017

Statement of Activities - Oregon Tech Foundation

Component Unit
For the Years Ended June 30, 2m7 2016

(in thousands)

CHANGE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

REVENUES
Contributions and Grants § 772§ 158
In-Kind Donations 1 1
Investment Income 838 (255)
Other 7 15
Net Assets Released From Restrictions 851 1295
Total Revenues 2,469 1214
EXPENSES
Program Services 839 1,183
Management and General 415 400
Fundraising, 2 19
Impairment of Investment - 200
Change in Reserve for Uncollectible Pledges 8 3
Total Expenses 1,283 1.805
Increase (Decrease) In Unrestricted Net Assets 1,186 (591)
Begnning Balanee, Unrestrcted Net Assets 8,303 B804
Ending Balance, Unrestricted Net Assets $ 9,489 § 3,303
CHANGE IN TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
REVENUES
Contrbutions and Grants 1,422 413
In-Kind Donations 15 347
Investment Income 1,377 (590)
Other 14 32
Net Assets Released From Restncuons (851) (1,332)
Increase (Decrease) In Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 1,977 (1.130)
Beginning Balance, Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 4,156 5.286
Ending Balance, Temporarily Restricted Net Assets $ 6,133 § 4,156
CHANGE IN PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
REVENUES
Contributions and Grants 999 599
Change in Value of Split Interest Agreements 49 (24)
Net Assets Released From Restnctions - 37
Increase (Decrease) In Permanently Restricted Net Assets 1,048 G612
Beginning Balance, Permanently Restricted Net Assets 9,064 8,452
Ending Balance, Permanently Restricted Net Assets $ 10,112 § 9,064
Beginning Balance, Total Net Assets 21,523 22632
Total Changre in Net Assets 4,211 (1,109)
Ending Balance, Total Net Assets $ 25,734 § 21523

The accompanying notes are an ntegral part of these financial statements.
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December 7, 2017

Statement of Cash Flows - Oregon Institute of Technology

University
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 2016

Un thousands :l

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Tuiten and Fees § 24,402 i 24,908
Grants and Contracts 1,566 705
Educational Department Sales and Services 120 312
."\llxi]i:ury Fr]lr.q)risr.s Opcruli()ns 9,49[ 8,306
Payments to Employees for Compensation and Benefits (46,385) (42,885)
Payments to Supphers (15,175) (13,334)
Student Finaneial Asd (5,491) (4.044)
Other O [Jcr:l].irlg Rr.ccipl-s I:-Pﬂ.,'!llhlﬂﬁ::l 531 831
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (30,941) {25,801)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Government Approprations 26,655 25,176
Finaneial Aid Grants 6,940 7,280
Other Gafts and Prvate Contracts 3,]33 2,3?5
Net :‘\gr.m:y Fund Re(:cil)|:i [:Pﬂ.}'nir.ll]:i:l 59 36
Cash Transfers Due Ch:m(_:r n Entity - 1:4,34[;')
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 36,787 31,027
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Debt Service Appropriations 190 189
Capital Grants and Gifts 3,727 1,840
Sales of Capital Assets 323 4,209
Purchases of Capital Assets (8,174) (3,816)
Interest Payments on Capital Debt (1,951) (2,152)
Puncipal Payments on Capital Debt (1,680) (1,511)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (7,565) (1,241)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net Sales (Purchases) of Investments 005 (7,930)
Income on Investments and Cash Balances 339 617
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities 944 (7,313)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (775) (3,328)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
nﬂg&l‘l]‘ll‘g BH]H[‘[:E’ 9,392 12’?20
Ending Balance § 8,617 $ 9,392

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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December 7, 2017

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) - Oregon Institute of Technology

University
2016

(In thousands)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Loss $ (37,091) $ (35,958)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities:

Depreciation Expense 5,011 4,713

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable (1,389) 270
MNotes Receivable (210) 120
Inventories (60) 11
Prepaid Expenses 277 (196)
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 575 393
Long-Term Liabilities 55 (1400
Uneamed Revenue 217y a2
Pension Expense Related to Met Pension Liability 2,108 4,904

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ (30,941) $ (25,801)

NONCASH INVESTING, NONCAPITAL FINANCING, AND CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Capital Assets Acquired by Gifts-in-Find $ 431 $ 325

Increase in Fair Value of Investments Recognized as a
Component of Investment Activity - 145
50,947

Removal of State Paid Debt -
MNet Reduction of Contracts Payable to the State (166)

‘The accompanying notes are an mtegral part of these Anancial staternents,
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F&F Committee

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 7, 2017

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in thousands)

1. Organization and Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

The Oregon Institute of Technology (Oregon Tech)/(University)
is governed by the Board of Trustees of Oregon Instiute of
Technology (Board), a citizen board appeinted by the Governor
with confirmation by the State Senate. Prior to July 1, 2015,
Oregon Tech was a member university of the Oregon University
System (OUS) governed by the State Board of Higher Education
(SBHE}). With the passage of Senate Bill (SB) 270 by the Oregon
Legislature in 2013, Oregon Tech became an independent public

university on July 1, 2015, Oregon Tech has two campuses,
located in Klamath Falls and Wilsonville.

The Oregon Tech financial reperting entity includes Oregon
Tech and the Oregon Tech Foundation (Foundation) which is
reported as a discretely presented component unit under the
guidelines established by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units. Discretely presented means
that the statements are included scpararciy in the financial report.
See Note 20 “University Foundation” for additional information
relating to this component unit.

Because the Governor of the State of Oregon (State) appoints
the Board and Oregon Tech receives some financial support from
the State, the State determined that Oregon Tech is a discretely
prcs::ntcd component unit of the State and is included in the
Stare’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

B. Financial Statement Presentation

Oregon Tech financial accounting records are maintained in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
as prcscribcd in apphmhh: pronouncements of the GASB. The
financial statement presentation rcqulrcd }Jy GASBs No. 35
t5 — and M.
Analysis — for Public Colleges and Universities — an amendment
of GASB Statement No. 34, modified by GASB Statement No.
63, ftems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, provides a
comprehensive, entity-wide perspective of Oregon Tech assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of

Basic Financial Star v Discussion and

resources, net position, revenues, expenses, changes in net
position, and cash flows.

In preparing the financial statements, interfund transfers between
University funds, and internal revenues and expenses associated
with sc]F—suppo rting au‘xiliary and service center operations have
been eliminated. Unless otherwise stated, dollars are presented in
thousands.

Financial statements of the Oregon Tech Foundation for fiscal
years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 are discretely presented,
as discussed above. The Foundation’s financial statements are
prepa red in accordance with the pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB). As such, certain revenue
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from
GASBE revenue criteria and presentation. Accordingly, those
financial statements have been reported on separate pages

ré 26 | Oregon Institute of Technology
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following the respective counterpart financial statements of the
University. No modifications have been made to the Foundation’s
financial information included in the University’s financial report.

C. Basis of Accounting

For financial reporting purposes, Oregon Tech is considered
a special-purpose government engaged only in business-type
activities. Accordingly, the Oregon Tech financial statements are
prcsclllt:d usil.lg L}IC CCUIIOuliC TESOUIces measurement l—OCL'IS aIld
th(‘. ﬂCCrl]ﬂI hﬂsiﬁ anCCOllnting. ljnd(‘.r rhﬂ 3CCrl1:!l bﬂsis, revenucs
are rCCOgn-lZ(‘.d W]]Cn €a rncd :!ﬂd (‘.'xpﬁnﬁcs are rﬁﬂordcd “"h(‘.'n
incurred.

NEWLY IMPLEMENTED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Oregon Tech evaluated the implementation of GASB Statement
No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants,
effective June 30, 2017. GASB No. 79 addresses accounting and
financial reporting for certain external investment pools and pool
participants. It establishes criteria for an external investment pool
to qualify for making the election to measure all of its investments
at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. Qregon Tech
participates in the Public University Fund (PUF), investments
held in the PUF are reported at fair value for financial reporting
purposes, and therefore this statement does not currently apply

to On:gou Tech.

UPCOMING ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefis Other Than
FPensions. GASBs No. 75 improves the usefulness of information
about postemployment benefits other than pensions (other
postemployment benefits or OPEB) included in the general
purpose external financial reports of state and local governmental
OPEB plans for making decisions and assessing accountability
and is effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. Oregon
Tech does not currently have enough information from the
Public Employees Benefit Board (PEBB) actuary to determine the
potential fiseal impact of GASBs No. 75. However, the adoption
is cxpi.:clt‘d o cause an expansion in the l(‘qLIii’L‘d note disclosures

and could petentially impact the amount of the OTEB liability.

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary
Activities. GASB Statement No. 84 improves guidaucc l'cgardiug
the identification of ﬁduciary activities for accounting and
financial reporting purposes and how those activities should
be reported. The Statement establishes criteria for identifying
ﬁduciar}' activities and guidam’x: on how to report activities
meeting the eriteria in a ﬁ(hu‘.iary fund in the basic finaneial
statements. The Statement is effective for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2020 and does apply to custodial funds, primarily for
student groups, held by the University.

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. GASB
Statement No. 87 improves the accounting and financial reporting
for leases and is effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.
Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease
liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor
is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow
of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency
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F&F Committee

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 7, 2017

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in thousands)

of informarion about |c:zsing activities. This Statement will
substantially impact the University’s lease accounting and
reporting.

Berween July 2016 and June 2017, GASB issued the following
statements which do not apply Lo Orcgou Tech under current
circumstances:  Statement No. 83 Cupital Aset Retirement
Oiﬂfigdrx’om and Statement No. 86 Certain Debt E\:{iﬁg:tx'.tfnmmr
Jesues,

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes highly liquid investments
with or'lginnl maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash
equivalents consists of: cash on hand, cash and investments held
by the State of Cregon in the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF)
and cash held ac U.S. Bank.

E. Investments

Investments are reported at fair value as determined by market
prices. Unrealized gains or losses on investments are reported as
investment activity in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Chaugcs in Net Position. Investments are classified as noncurrent
assets in the Statement of Net Position.

F. Receivables

Aceounts receivable consists pri.marily of wition and fee t_'hargcs
to students and nnxiliary enterprise services pmvided to students,
faculty, and staff. Accounts receivable for tuition and fee charges
are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts in accordance
with ULS. generally accepted accounting principles.

GI'QIILS and contracts ]‘:Cﬂﬁjvﬂblﬂ i[ldl'ldc amounts (_{Ll(‘ rrr.)lll Pﬂdfl'al,
state and local governments, or private sources, in connection
with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant
to the University’s grants and contracts, Capital Construction
receivables include amounts due from the State of Oregon in
connection with reimbursement of allowable (:xpcnditurcs made
pursuant to the grant agreements between the University and the
State for facilities projects funded by the State.

Student Loans receivable consists of amounts due from the
Federal Perkins Loan Program, and from other loans administered
by the University. Construction Reimbursement loans receivable
are amounts receivable from the State of Oregon in connection
with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursnant ro
the contracts berween the University and the state for facilicies
projects funded by the University. Construction Reimbursements
can be current or |<>ng term dcpcnding on the estimated timing
of completion of construction projects. Oregon Tech does not
currently have Construction Reimbursement loans receivable.

G. Inventories

Inventories are recorded at the lower of average cost or market
and consist primarily of supplies in storercoms, information
LCC}IIIOIUL'}"‘ aud ph);sical plaul slores,

H. Capital Assets

Capital assets are recorded at cost on the date acquired or at
fair market value on the date donated. Oregon Tech capitalizes
equipment with unit costs of five thousand dollars or more
and an estimated uscful life of greater than one year. Oregon
Tech ::apil:a]i‘r.(:s real property cxp::ndirur(:s that increase the
ﬁlnctionality and/or extend the useful life of the real property if
total expenditures exceed the capitalization thresholds of $50 to
$100, depending on the type of real property. Intangible assets
valued in excess of $100 are capitalized. In addition, a group of
related assets may be mpimhzcd as a singh‘. asset when there is
a major assct with related underdying assets, valued separately
at under five thousand dollars, which must also be capitalized.
Expcnd.ilurcs below the capil.alizallon threshold and repairs and
maintenance are r:h:zrged to operating expense in the year in
which the expense is incurred.

Oregon Tech capitalizes interest expense as part of the historical
zed

is the portion of the interest cost incurred during the assets’

cost ofacqlliring mp'ltﬂl assers. The amount of interest capits

acquisition pnriods that could have been avoided if out]ays for
the assets had not been made. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017, Oregon Tech capitalized $66 of interest on projects which
had $71 of wtal interest. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016,
Oregon Tech capitalized $42 of interest on projects which had
484 of total interest.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets; generally 15 to 50 years for
buildings, 10 to 20 years for infrastructure and land improvements,
10 years for librm}' books and 5 to 11 years for equipment.
Amortization terms of intangible assets vary depending on the
factors l'claLi.ug to the spcciﬁc assel Dcprccla[lon is not appllcd
to land, easements, museum collections, works of art or historical
treasures, or library special collections.

I. Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues include amounts received for tuition and
fees, grants and contracts, lease income, and auxiliary enterprises
activities in which cash has been received, but revenues will be
earned in subsequenc fiscal year(s).

J. Compensated Absences

Oregon Tech accrues a liability for vacation leave and other
compensated absences that were earned but nor used during
the current or prior fiscal year for which employees can receive
compensation in a future period. An estimate is made to allocate
this liability between its current and nencurrent components.
Sick leave is recorded as an expense when paid. There is no
payout provision for unused sick leave and no |inbiliry exists for
terminated employees.

K. Net Pension Liability

The net pension |inbllity, deferred outflows of resources and
dCI‘CITCd iIlﬂOWS 0[ ICsources l'clal::d o pCllSiUIlS, aud l.‘Cl.I.SlO[l
CXPCI’ISC are actuaria"}' dctcrmincd ar f]'lC sysrx: m -\Y‘lf‘]{? P]:;n l("\"“l
am‘l are a“OCStﬁd to ﬁ['l'lpl(!}'f.‘fﬁ bﬂwd on th{:ir pmporrionarc
share. Oregon Tech is included in the proportionate share for
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all state agencies. The Oregon Tech proportionate share of all
state agencies is allocated ro Oregon Tech by the Oregon State
Department of Administrative Services. The system-wide Plan
uses the accrual basis of accounting, For more information, see
Note 14. “Employee Retirement Plans”.

L. Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent the use of resources
in one period that is applicable to, and will be recognized in, a
p(:riofl which is more than a year in the future. These deferred
outflows have a positive effect on net position that is similar to
assets but are not assets. Deferred inflows of resources represent
the acquisition of resources that is applicable to, and will be
recognized in, a period which is more than a year in the future.
These deferred inflows have a negative effect on net position,
similar to liabilicies but are not liabilities. Both deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources for Oregon Tech are
related to defined benefit pension plans.

M. Net Position

Oregon Tech’s net position s classified as follows:

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

Net investment in capira| assets represents the total investment in
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization,
and outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets.

RESTRICTED - EXPENDABLE

Restricted expendable includes resources which Oregon Tech is
]egﬂ]]y or mntmctunlly obligﬂted o spend in accordance with
restrictions imposed by external parties,

UNRESTRICTED

Unrestricted are resources that may be used at the discretion of
the Board.

N. Restricted/Unrestricted Resources

The University has no formal policy addressing which resources
to use when both restricted and unrestricted net position are
available for the same purpose. University p::mouucl decide which
resources to use at the time expenses are incurred. Factors used
to determine which resources to use include relative priorities
of the University in accordance with the University’s strategic
initiatives and cxtcm:i]ly imposcd marr:hing requirements of
certain restricted funds. Major capital purchases are many times
splir funded from mnlripl{: restricted and unrestricred ﬁ:nding

S0uUrces.

0. Endowments

The University has the authority to use the interest, income,
dividends, or profits of endowments. The Oregon Tech Board
po|i(.'y is o :mnua”y distribure, for spending purposes, four
percent of the preceding 20 quarter moving average of the market
value of the endowment funds and to maintain the purchasing
power of the funds as nearly as prudent investment permits. In
accordance with current Board policy, the amount available for
distribution during fiscal year 2018 is estimated to be $162.

ré 28 | Oregon Institute of Technology
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Oregon Tech’s endowments are not true endowments (in that the
donor does not require the corpus to remain intact in perpetuity)
and are included in the Expendable Gifts, Grants, and Contracts
on the Statement of Net Position. See Note 2B. “Investments” for
additional information.

P. Income Taxes

Oregon Tech is treated as a governmental entity for tax purposes.
As such, Oregon Tech is generally not subject to federal and state
income taxes. However, Oregon Tech remains subject to income
taxes on any income that is derived from a trade or business
regularly carried on and not in furtherance of the purpose for
which it was gmntcd exemption from income taxes. No income
tax provision has been recorded for the years ended June 30, 2017
and June 30, 2016 because there is no significant amount of raxes
on such unrelated business income for Oregon Tech.

Q. Revenues and Expenses
Oregon Tech has classified its revenues and expenses as either
operating or nonoperating according to the following criteria:

Operating revenues and expenses generally have the characreristics
of exchange transactions. These transactions can be defined as an
(:xr:hangc in which two or more entities both receive and sacrifice
value, such as purchases and sales of goods or services. Examples
of operating revenues include student tuition and fees, sales and
services of auxiliary enterprises, most federal, state and local
grants and contracts, and other operating revenues. Examples of
operating expenses include employee compensation and benefits,
scholarships and fellowships, utilities, supplies and other services,
professional fees, and depreciation expense for capital assets.
Nonoperating revenues and expenses generally have the
characteristics of nonexchange transactions. In a nonexchange
transaction, Omgon Tech receives value withour dlr{:r:r]y giving
equal value in exchange. Examples of nonoperating revenues
include state appropriations, nonexchnnge grants, giﬁ:s, and
contributions. Nonoperating expenses are defined in GASBs
No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Non-expendable
Trust Funds and Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting, and GASBs No. 34, Basic Financial Statement - and
Management Discussion and Analysis. Examples of nonoperating
expenses include interest on capital asset related debt expenses.

R. State Support

Oregon Tech receives support from the State of Oregon in the
form of General Fund and Lottery appropriations and debt
service appropriations for some Oregon Department of Energy
loans, see Note 13 for details on appropriations.

In addition to appropriations, the State of Oregon provides
funding for plant facilities on the University’s campuses. Capital
projects for new facilities and Capital Improvements and Repair
are funded by philanthrepy, campus paid debr and resources,
and state-paid debt. The State of Oregon Legislature considers
projects from all seven public universities for allocation of
Oregon’s bonding capacity. Funds for capital projects funded by
state-paid debt are provided through grant agreements berween

Oregon Tech Board of Trustees

Page 59

5.1 ANNUAL SINGLE AUDIT



F&F Committee

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 7, 2017

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in thousands)

Oregon Tech and the State of Oregon. Revenue is recorded as
Capital Grants in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position when appropriate expenditures are
reimbursable per the grant agreements. Funds for capital projects
funded by campus paid debt can also be funded through the State
of Oregon’s bonding capacity. At the time that the bonds are sold,
the State of Oregon instructs Oregon Tech to record a liabilicy for
the debt and a receivable for construction reimbursements. The
receivable is reduced as expenditures on the capital project are
completed and reimbursed by the State. Oregon Tech does not
(:urre*.nrhr have any mpim| projects funded with new bonded debt
which are campus paid.

Facilities funded by philanthropy, state-paid debt, and campus
pnid debr are reflecred as (:omp]ct(:d assels of construction in
progress in the accompanying Statement of Net Position. The
obligations for the bonds issued by the State of Oregon are
not obligations of Oregon Tech. Oregon Tech is obligated to
pay contracts for projects funded by campus paid debt, these
CONCracts pnyﬂble are included as current and |ong rerm liabilities
in the Statement of Net Position.

§. Allowances

Student tuition and fees and campus housing fees included in
auxiliary enterprises revenues are reported net of scholarship
allowances. A schciarship allowance is the difference between
the stated charge for tuition, fees, and housing provided by the
University and the amount that is billed to the student andfor
third parties ujaking payments on behalf of the student. Under this
npproar:h, schohrships awarded b}r the Univcrsity are considered
as reductions in tuition and fee revenues rather than as expenses.
Add.itimmﬂy, certain gov::mmcuta] grants, such as Pell grants, and
payments from other federal, state or nongovernmental programs,
are required to be recorded as either operating or nonoperating
revenues in the University’s financial statement. To the extent
that revenues from such programs are applied to wition, fees, and
other student charges, the University has reported a corresponding
scholarship allowance,

Oregon Tech has three types of allowances that net into auxiliary
enterprises revenues and mition and fees. Thition and housing
waivers provided directly by Oregon Tech amounted to $3,578
and $3,245 for the fiscal years ended 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Revenues from financial aid programs (e.g., Pell Grants,
Supplemental Educational Oppormunity Grants, and Oregon
Opportunity Grants) used for paying student tuition and fees and
campus housing was estimated to be $4,401 and $4,715 for the
fiscal year ended 2017 and 2016, respectively. Bad debt expense
is included as an allowance o operating revenues and s estimarted
to be $298 and ($24) for the fiscal years ended 2017 and 2016,

respectively.

T. Federal Student Loan Programs

Oregon Tech receives proceeds from the Federal Direct Student
Loan Program. Since Oregon Tech transmits these grantor
supplia'l moneys without ]1av'lng administrative or direct financial
involvement in the program, these loans are not rcpon:(:d in
operations. Federal student loans received by Cregon Tech students

but not reported in operations was $20,082 and $19,203 for the
fiscal years ended 2017 and 2016, respectively.

U. Deposit Liahilities

Deposic Liabilities primarily consist of fund balances held by
Oregon Tech on behalf of student groups and organizations that
account for activities in the Oregon Tech accounting system and
whose cash is part of the cash held on depaosit with the State
T‘l‘c‘asu[y.

V. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in cunfbunil}r with 1.5,
generally accepred accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that could affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses, and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
results could differ from those

ﬁnanci;ﬂ statements. ,‘\Ctlla]

estimates.

W. Reclassifications

Certain amounts within the June 30, 2016 financial statements
have been reclassified to conform to the June 30, 2017
presentation. The reclassifications had no effect on previously

reported total net position.

2. Cash and Investments

The majority of Oregon Tech's cash and investments were held in
custody with the Oregon State Treasury (State Treasury) during
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016. The Stave Treasury
manages these invested assets through commingled investment
pools. The operating funds of Oregon Tech are commingled with
cash and investments from five other public universities in Oregon
and are referred to collectively as the Public University Fund (PUF).
The investments held in the PUF are managed by the State Treasury
and administered by the statutorily defined Designated University,
currently Oregon State University. Each underlying investment
pool has an investment policy and set of objectives identifying risk
and return parameters for the respective investment pool. The State
Treasury invests these deposits in high grade, dollar-denominated,
short and intermediate-term fixed income securities. The Oregon
Investment Council (QIC) provides oversight and counsel on the
investment policies for each investment pool held in the PUE

In gunuml, dcposlls and investment securities as described below,
are (:xpo&cr‘] to various risks such as credit, concentration of credir,
custodial credit, interest rate and Forcign currency. J\lrhough the
objective of ecach investment pool Is to preserve capital within
defined risk parameters, it is lik::ly that the value of the investment
securities will Auctuate :]ur'lng short pt:riuds of time, and it is
possible that such changes could materially affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements. For more information on the
investment risk exposures, see Note 2B below.

For full disclosure regarding cash and investments held at che State
Treasury, a copy of the State Treasury audited annual financial
report may be obtained by writing to the Oregon State Treasury,
350 Winter St. NE, Suite 100, Salem, OR 97301 orvia the Internet

at oregon.gov/treasury/ Repores/ Pages! Annual-Reports.aspx.
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A. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents are classified as current and
noncurrent which include both restricted and unrestricted cash

and are summarized at June 30, 2017 and 2016 as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2017 2016
Current
Unrestricted § 4262 § 6020
Restricted For:
Gifts, Grants and Contracts = 121
Debt Service 573 361
Student Aid 474 273
Endowments 104 91
Payroll Vendor Payments 1,504 1,243
Student Groups and Campus
Organizations 37 24
US Bank - Perkins 723
Petty Cash 79 57
Total Current 7,756 8,190
MNoncurrent
Unrestrcted 538 523
Restricted For:
Capital 323 679
Total Noncurrent 861 1,202
Total s 8617 % 9392

Noncurrent, unrestricted cash consists primaril}' of student
building fee funds, which were historically restricted for future
debt service payments. The Board of Trustees now has spending
authority over these funds, which are no longer restuicted.
Currently, the Board has no plans to spend these funds in the
next fiscal year, as these funds will be used on future debt service
payments. As such, the University has classified these amounts
as noncurrent. The portion of the student building fee funds
that will be used for debrt service payable in 2018 is reported as

currentc r:nsh.

DEPOSITS WITH STATE TREASURY

Oregon Tech maintains the majority of its current cash balances
on deposit with the State Treasury. These deposits are held, on a
pooled basis as described above, in the Oregon Short-Term Fund
(OSTF). The OSTF is a short-term cash and investment pool
for use by all state agencies or, by agreement, for related public
bodies, such as Oregon Tech. The State Treasurer invests these
d::posiLs in hi.f);—grudc short-term investment securities, Because
Oregon Tech banks through the State Treasury, the University
does not have a statutory requirement to collateralize deposits,
but does have a concracrual obligntion thmugh their b:mking
agreement with the Stare to collaceralize deposits within 24 hours
of receipt. At the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, Oregon Tech cash and cash equivalents on deposit ac

State Treasury was $7,815 and $9,333.
CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK—DEPOSITS

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a financial

ré 30 | oOregon Institute of Technology
=

institution failure, cash deposits will not be retumed o a
depositor. The University and State do not have formal policies
rcg:;rd'lng custodial credic risk for dcpnsits. However, hanking
regulations and Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) Chapter 295
establish the insurance and collateral requirements for deposits in
the OSTE Oregon Tech cash balances held on deposit at the State
‘['rcasury are invested vnnrinuousiy, therefore, custodial credir risk
exposure to the State Treasury is low. Additionally, cash balances
on deposit with US Bank are collateralized, therefore invested
couLlnuoLl.sjy\ rcsulllug in low credic risk.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK—DEPOSITS

Deposits in forcign currency run the risk oFr:h:mg'lng value due
to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. State Treasury deposits
are denominated in U.S. currency and therefore not exposed to
ﬂ)rcign currency risk.

OTHER DEPOSITS

For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively, Oregon
Tech had vaule and petty cash balances of $79 and $57. Oregon
Tech also had cash held at US Bank for Title IV Perkins funds of

$723 ac June 30, 2017 and $0 at June 30, 2016,

B. Investments

Oregon Tech’s operating funds and some of the University's
quasi-endowments are invested in the PUE As of June 30, 2016,
investments in the PUF were allocated into two separate poo]s.
the intermediate-term pool and the long-term pool. As of April
3, 2017, the investment strategy and underlying securities of the
two investment pools were combined into one pool, known as
the Core Bond Fund. In addition, during the year ended June 30,
2017, the University established has a board-designated quasi-
endowment invested in the Oregon Intermediate-term Pool
(OI'TP), managed by State Treasury. The investment policies
are approved by the Board, with counsel and oversight from the
OIC. Investments are managed as a prudent investor would do,
exercising reasonable care, skill and caution. While the Srate
Treasury is authorized to utilize demand deposit accounts and
fixed-income investments, equity investments must be directed
by external investment managers who are under contract to the

OIC.

Investments are all classified as nonecurrent and include both
restricted and unrestricted funds. At June 30, 2017, Oregon Tech
had $21,762 in investments; of this, $14,273 was invested in
a core bond fund managed by State Treasury, and $7,489 was
invested in the OITD

At June 30, 2016, Oregon Tech had $22,367 in investments; of
this, $14,010 was invested in the Oregon Intermediate Term Pool
managed by State Treasury, $8,148 was the PUF Long Term Pool
managed by State Treasury, and $209 are temporarily restricted
endowments invested through the PUE

Due o the level of risk associated with cemain investment
securities, it is at least rcasonab|y possibic that changcs in the
values of investment securities could occur in the near term and
such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
Statement of Net Position.
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Significant events in domestic and international investment
markets or aggressive action by the Federal Open Market
Committee to influence both shore and ]ong-rcrm interest rates
contribute to price volatility. Consequendy, the fair value of
Oregon Tech’s portion of PUF pooled investments is exposed to
price volatility which could result in a substantial change in the
fair value of certain investments from the amounts reported as of

June 30,2017,

Investments of the Oregon Tech discretely presented component
unit are summarized at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively as

follows:
COMPONENT UNIT

Fair Value at June 30, 2017 2016
Inwestment Type:
Corporate Equity Securities (Level T) $ 19,794 1 17,743
Investment in Partnership (Level 11T) 1,616 1,616
Alternative Tnvestments {Level TT} 1,508 1340
Money Market Funds {Level T 1,013 362
Toral Investments s 2308 § 21,061
CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of an investment fails to
fulfill its obligations. Oregon Tech has an investment policy for
its operating and endowment assets. The PUF Investment Pool
totaled $312,900 and $321,409 at June 30, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, of which Oregon Tech owned $14,273 or 4.6
percent and $22,367 or 7.0 percent. As of June 30, 2017 and
2016, approximately 99.0 percent and 98.5 percent, respectively,
of investments in the PUF Pool are subject to crediv risk
reporting. Fixed income securities raced hy the credit agencies as
lower medium to ]1igh qu'.l]iry, indicaﬂng the issuer has a stro ng
capacity to pay principal and interest when due, totaled $272,151
and $305,760 in fiscal year 2017 and 2016, respectively. Fixed
income securities which have not been evaluated hy the rating
agencies toraled $37,721 and $10,935 in fiscal year 2017 and
2016, respectively.

CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event
of the failure of the counterparty to a rransaction, the University
will not be able o recover the value of an investment or collateral
securities in the possession of an outside party. The OIC has no
formal pnl'lr:)fY r{:garriing the holdi ng of securities by a custodian
or counterparty. For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016,
the Universiry’s investments were exposed to custodial credit risk
through the State Treasury.

CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Concentration of crediv risk refers w puwntial losses if total
investments are concentrated with one or few issuers. The po|icy
for reducing this risk for fixed income securities is that, with the
exception of U.S. Government and Agency issues, no more than
five percent of the bond portFo]'lo, at par value, will be invested
in securities of a single issuer or no more than five percent of the
individual issue. For all other types of fixed income investments,
not more than three percent of the market value of any investment
fund was invested in any sing[c security, unless part of an index

fund. Per policy. no total investments with any single issuer
comprised more than five percent of PUF investments.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency risk is the risk that investments may lose value
due to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. No Oregon Tech
investments had reportable foreign currency risk at either June

30, 2017 or 2016.
INTEREST RATE RISK

Investments in fixed income securities are subject to the risk
that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of the investments. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively,
securities in the PUF Investment Pool held subject to interest rate
risk totaling $309,872 and $316,695 had an average duration of
3.91 and 3.00 years. Duration measures the change in the value
of a fxed income sccurily that will result from a one percent
change in interest rates. At June 30, 2017, the total $7,489 of
the Oregon Tech board designated quasi-endowment invested in
the QITP were subject to interest rate risk and had an average
duration of 3.02 years.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Investments are reporter‘] ar estimared fair value as determined by
State Treasury, based on a falr value hierarchy which prioritizes
the input techniques used to measure fair value, The hierarchy
gives the highcst priority to Lewvel 1 measurements and the lowest
priority to Level 3 measurements:

¢ Level 1 — Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

+  Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted market prices that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly, including
inputs in markets that are not considered to be active; and

o Lewel3

relevant Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are not available,

[Ilpl.'lLS lhaL are ullObS(‘l’\'{iblU. lesc are (M.II}-r 'L'ISCd if

Inpurs are used in app|ying valuation tcchniqncs and brondly refer
to the assumptions that market participants use to make valuation
decisions, including assumptions about risk. In addition to the
underlying reported net asset values (NAV), which generally
serve as the primary valuation input, other inputs may include
|'lqu'ld ity factors and broad credit data. An investment’s level
within the fair value hicrarchy is based on the lowest level of any
input thar is signiﬁcant to the fair value measurement.

Ar June 30, 2017 the PUF Investment Pool totaled $312,900.
100 percent of the total was valued using level 2 inputs. At
June 30, 2016 the PUF Investment Pool totaled $321,409. 100

pﬁfl‘.{?ﬂt OF r]'l{? F()Fﬂl was V‘.‘!Illﬁd usi ng IEVC' 2 inpul:s.

At June 30, 2017, Oregon Tech's investments in the O1TP totaled
$7,489. 100 percent of the toral was valued using level 3 inputs.

C. Securities Lending

In accordance with the Swte investment pullcit's‘ the State
participates in securities |cn(‘|ing transactions. The '|‘rmsury
has, through a Securities Lending Agreement, authorized Stare
Street Bank and Trust Compauy (State Stl‘cct) to lend the State’s
securities pursuant to a form of loan agreement. Both the State
and borrowers maintain the r]ghL to terminate all securities
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lending transactions on demand. Oregon Tech’s cash on deposic
with the State Trca.sm'y is suhjc(:l. Lo securities lcudi.ng‘ There were
no significant violations of the provisions of securities lending
agreements during the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.
Durlng the year, State Street had the :mLhorlL)«' to lend short-term,
fixed income, and equity securities and receive as collateral ULS.
dollar and foreign currency cash, U.S. government and agency
securities, and foreign sovereign debt of Organizarion of Economic
Cooperation and Development countries. Borrowers were required
to deliver collateral for each loan equal to not less than 102 percent
of the market value of the loaned U.S. security. The custodian did
not have the ability to pledge or sell collateral securities absent
a borrower default, and during the year the State did impose
restrictions on the amount of the loans that the custodian made on
its behalf. The State Treasury is fully indemnified by the custodian
against losses due to borrower default. There were no losses during
the year from the failure of borrowers to return loaned securities.

State Street, as lending agent, has created a fund to reinvest cash
collateral received on behalfof the OSTF and Qtregon state agencies
and related agencies, including Oregon Tech. As permitted under
the fund’s Declaration of Trust ( Declaration), participant purchases
and redemptions are transacted at $1 per unit (“constant value™)
based on the amortized cost of the fund’s investments. Accordingly,
the securities lcudlug collateral held and the obllgmiuu to the
lending agent are both stated at constant value on the statement
of net position.

The fair value of investments held by the fund is based upon
valuations pm\"]d:‘.d by a rccogn'lzcd pricing service. These funds
are not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
but the cusrodial agent is sul‘)ject to the ovemig]\t of the Federal
Reserve Board and the Massachusetts Commissioner of Banks. No
income from the funds was assigned to any other funds.

The maturities of investments made with the cash collateral
gcuurally do not match the maturities of the securities loaned.
Since the securities loaned are callable on demand by either the
lender or borrower, the life of the loans at June 30, 2017 and 2016,
is effectively one day. As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, the state had

The fair value of the University’s share of total cash and securities
collateral received as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 was $813 and
$1,459, respectively. The fair value of the University’s share of

investments purchased with cash collateral as of June 30, 2017 and

2016 was $637 and $1,241, respectively.

3. Accounts Receivable

Accounts RCCCi\"ﬂh]ﬂ‘ inc] uding amounts d'l]l: fmm t]'l{: r:nmponnnt

unir, (:ompriscd the following:

June 30, June 30,
2017 2016
Student Tution and Fees $ 1,956 $ 1,563
Capital Construction Gifts, Grants, and Contra 1,341 595
overnunent, and Private
s and Contracts 924 573
Federal Grants and Contracts 482 241
Auhary Enterprises and Other
Operating Activities 289 274
Campanent Lnits 143 06
Other 1,248 G546
6,383 4,143
Less Allowance for Doubtfial Accounts (307) (207}
Accounts Receivable, MNet £ 6,076 3 3,941

4. Notes Receivable
Oregon Tech Notes Receivable has two main components.

Student loans made through the Federal Perkins Loan Program
are funded through interest earnings and repayment of loans.
Federal Perkins loans deemed uncollectible are assigned to the
U.S. Department of Education for collection. Oregon Tech has
provided an allowance for uncellectible loans which is caleulated
using the cohort default rate reported to the federal government.

Institutional and Other Student Loans incdude loans offered
lhwugh the University itsell and other various non-federal loan
programs.

June 30, 2017

no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the amounts owed to Current  Noncurrent Total
borrowers exceeded the amounts borrowers owed to the State.
‘The fair value of the University’s share of securities lending balances Imt!'tP hone andotier
- o ; - . - . Student Loans $ 90 846 % 936
on loan as of June 30, 2017 and 2016 comprised the following: s sdiral Sosng DRgH 251 1,568 1,922
June 30, June 30, FET] 2,414 2,858
ﬂ ﬂ Less: Allowance for Doubtful
Investment Type y Accounts (40) (179 (219)
US. Treasury and Ageney Seeunities  § 165§ 1,070 Motes Receivable, Net 5 404 § 2,235 S 2,639
Domestic Fixed Income Securities 630 360
Total $ 795 § 1430 June 30, 2016
Current  MNoncurrent Tetal
Institurional and Other
Student Loans § 86§ 338 % 924
Federal Student Loans 326 1,421 1,747
412 2,259 2,671
Less: Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts (44) (198) 247
Mates Recavable, Net g 368 § 2061 § 2,420
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5. Capital Assets

The following schedule reflects the changes in capital assets:

Balance Transfec Retire, Balance Transter Retire. Balance
July1, Completed And June 30, Completed And June 30,
2015 Additions Assels Adjust. 2016 Additi Assets Adjust 2017
Capital Assers,
Non-depreciable/Non-
amortizahle
Land § 5474 § § § (5T ¢ $ 363 S - 5 () 5 5609
Capitalized Collections 1,040 28 - - - 1,012
Constuction in Pregress 382 1873 (247) =)} 6,438 (6,951) - 1,488
Perpetual Intangible Assets - - - - - 420 - - 420
‘Total Capital Assets,
Non-depreciable/Non-
amortizable 6896 1873 (249) (190) 8,330 7221 (6,951) 1) 8,569
Capital Assets, Depreciable/
Amortizable:
Ecvipment 11764 1394 99 - 1,391 a2 (3%) 15,012
Library Materials 9,668 120 - (191) 17 - (19) 9,595
Buildings 110259 1 = (2,041) 108,219 = 4,124 (209) 12,134
Land Imgprovements 3278 3,278 - 2,018 - 5,296
Improverments Other Than
Buildings 456 1 - - 457 95 - - 532
Infrastructure 19,540 T18 150 - 20,508 - 407 - 20,915
Intangible Assets 1970 1,970 - - - 1,970
‘Total Capital Assets,
Depreciable/Amortizable 157,035 2234 249 157,286 1,503 6,951 (266) 165,474
Less Acenmulated Depreciation,
Amortization for:
Equipment 9.538) (705) - - (10,243) (830} - 4 (11,069)
Library Materials {B.88T) (181) 190 (8.878) (170) - 19 (9,029
Buildings (39,831) (2,742) 1,196 (@1,377) 2,691 - 108 (43,960)
Land Imprevements (20413 (103) - - (2,144) (280) - - (2424)
Impeovements Other Than
Buildings (228) 39) {267) (47) - - (314)
Infrastoucture {6,310) (B0 - - (7,200) (M7 - (3) (8,150)
Intangible Assets {1539) 53) - - 1,892} (#5) a > (193%)
Total Accumulated
Depreciation/
Amortization (68,674) (4713) : 1,386 (72,001) (5,011) - 128 (76,884)
Total Capital Assets,Net § 05757 §_ (500§ § (06 § 56§ 3753 S = S (I9) S 97,159

Capital Assets Summary

Capital Assets, Mon-depreciable/
Nen-amertizable § 6896 § 15713 % Qa9 0§ (90) § 830§ 7221 S 695) 5 () 5 8569
Capital Assets, Depreciable/

Amortizable 157,035 2734 240 (2.737) 157,786 1,503 6,51 (266) 165,474
Total Cost of Capital Assets 163,931 4107 E (2,422) 165,616 8,724 a (297) 174,043
Less Accumulated Deprecation/

Amertization (68,674) (4,713) 1,386 (72,001) (5,011) - 128 (76,584)

‘Total Capital Assets, Net § 0557 §  (05) § § (L,03) § 9365 § 375§ = $ (169 § 97,159

One of Oregon Tech’s geothermal power plants and related systems with a book value of $7,635 was idle as of June 30, 2017 due to

repairs in progress.
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6. Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources

Dt‘{‘t‘l’l’t‘d ]IlﬂUW.‘.i ﬂIld (_‘]LllﬂOW‘.‘j 0{. RCSGUI’CCS COIIll.Pl'l.‘.it‘d ll'l(‘ fbll()\\'illg:

June 30, June 30, June 30,
2015 Additons Reductions 2016 Additions Reductions 2017
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Gain/Loss on Refunding
of Debt 1 2,590 3 e § (2599 % - 3 - 3 - $ -

Pension Contributions Subsequent
to the Measurement Date 838 1.004 (B38) 1.004 1,044 (1,004) 1,044
Differences Between Pension

Contributions and Proportionate

Share of Contributions A8 153 (37) 154 390 (110) 434
Difference Between Expected and

Actual Expenence 399 (74) 325 384 (147) 562
Changes in Assumptions 4,461 (842} 3,619

Differences Between Projected and

Actual Earnings on Pension

Investments 4,983 (1,631} 3,352
Total § 3,45 § 1556 § (3548 § 1483 § 11,262 5 (3,734 § 9,011

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences Between Pension

Contributions and Proportionate

Share of Contributions § - § 250 § (46) § 204§ 5 % (48) § 161
Difference Between Projected

and Actual Earmings on Pension

Plan Investments 4.116 1.020 (3,873) 1.263 - (1,263) -
Total § 4116 § 1270 § (3019 § 1437 % 5 s (1,311) % 161
7. Accounts Payahle and Accrued Minimum future lease revenue for noncancelable operating leases
Liabilities at June 30, 2017 were:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities comprised the following: ~ For the year ending June 30,
June 30, June 30, 2018 § T40
2017 2016 2019 759
o 2020 128
Salares and Wages § 1,972 § 1,872 2021 5
Payroll Benefits Related 1,504 1,239 2022 2
Services and Supphes 1,453 1,245 2023-2027 7
Accrued Interest 825 863 2028-2032 7
Orther 4 ) 2033-2037 7
r 2038-2042 7
Total § 5,758 $ 5,221 20432047 -
2048-2052 1
Total Minimum Operating, Lease Revenues $ 1,667

8. Operating Leases

A. Receivables/Revenues

Oregon Tech receives income for land, property and equipment B. Pﬂyﬂbles/ EI]]BI'IS&S
thae is leased to third parties. Rental income received from leases
was $690 and $516 for the year ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, equipment under noncancelable operating leases. Toral expense

respectively. The original cost of assets leased, net of depreciation.  for siuch leases and rents were $682 and $697 for the year ended

was $5,288 and $5,104 for the year ended June 30, 2017 and
2016, respectively.

Oregon Tech leases building and office facilities and other

June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.  Minimum future lease
payments on operating leases at June 30, 2017 were:

For the year ending June 30,

2018 $ 680
2019 564
2020 531
2021 493
2022 284
Taotal Minnmum Operating Lease Payments i 2552
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9. Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term |inbiliry activity was as follows:

Balance Balance Amount
Juiy 1, June 30, Due Within - Long-Term
2016 Additions  Reductions 2017 One Year Portion
Long-Term Debt
Due to State of Oregon:
Contracts Payable § 39537 % 25 8§ (1,692 § 37870 8§ 1,563 § 36,307
Cregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 1,599 - (175) 1,424 96 1,328
Capital Leases 53 {4) 49 16 33
Total Long-Term Debt 41,136 8 (1,871) 39,343 1,675 37,668
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
PERS pre-SLGRF pooled Liability 1,722 - (80) 1,642 80 1,562
Compensated Absences 1,403 1,253 (1,032) 1,624 1,093 53
Other Postemployment Benefits 394 21 - 615 - 615
Employee Termination Liabilities 124 68 (124 68 [ -
Early Retirernent Liability 157 - (51) 106 47 59
Total Other Moncurrent Lisbilities 4000 1,342 (1,287) 4,055 1,288 2,767
Total Long-Term Liabilities § 45136 § 1,420 § (3,158) § 43,398 $ 2963 § 40,435
Balance Balance Amount Due
July 1, June 30, Within One  Long-Term
2015 Additions  Feductions 2016 Year Portion
Long-Term Debt
Dre to State of Oregon:
General Obligation Bonds XI-F(1) Contracts § 45928 § 177 % § w53 § 1526 § 38,011
General Obligation Bonds X1-G 13,651
General Obligation Bonds X1-Q 6,725
Certificates of Participation (COPs) 1424
Lottery Bonds 24,111 - - -
Oregon Department of Energy Loans (SELP) 1,755 (156) 1,599 158 1,441
Total Long-Term Debt 93,504 177 (52,635 41,136 1,684 30452
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
PERS pre-SLGRF pooled Liability 1,783 - (51} 1,722 61 1,661
Compensated Absences 1,458 932 (987) 1,403 1,004 309
Other Postemployment Benefits 662 - (68) 594 - 594
Employee Termination Liabilities 124 124 124
Early Retiremnent Liability 237 - (B0 157 51 106
Total Other Moncurrent Liabilities 4,140 1,056 (1,196) 4,000 1,240 2,760
Total Long-Term Liabilities § 9174 § 1,233 § (53831 § 45136 ] 2924 § 42,212
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T}l(‘ SC}IL‘(’JLIIC O{I IJl'lIi(_'.i].“dl H!ld interest l."d)-'ﬂl('ﬂ[.s for 01’(‘g01l T{:Ch d(_‘b[ is as [IOHU\VS:

Contracts Capital Total
For the Year Endmng June 30, Payable SELP Leases Payments Principal Interest
2018 § 3167 § 163§ 17§ 337§ 155 § 1,791
2019 3,131 151 18 3,300 1,551 1,749
2020 3,115 151 15 3,281 1,588 1,693
2021 3,036 151 3,187 1,650 1,537
2022 3,021 151 3,172 1,691 1,481
20232027 14,950 754 - 15,704 9,321 6,383
2028-2032 12,894 413 - 13,307 9144 4,163
20332037 9626 - - 9,626 7,533 2,093
2038-2042 4526 : . 4,526 3,855 671
20432047 1,198 1,198 1,140 58
Accreted Interest 314 (314)
§ 39343 § 21,305
Total Future Debt Service 58,664 1,934 50 60,648
Less: Interest Component
of Future Payments (20,794) (510 (1) (21,305)
Principal Portion of
Future Payments § 3330 % 1424 % 49 % 39,343

‘The State of Oregon issues various debr instruments to fund capital
projects at Oregon Tech, These debt instruments include General
Obligation Bonds under articles XI-F(1), XI-G, and XI-Q of the
Oregon Constitution, and Lottery Bonds. In addition, Oregon
Tech also borrows funds from the Oregon Department of Energy.
Due to Oregon Tech becoming a discretely presented component
unit rather than an enterprise fund of the State for financial
reporting, as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, all State paid
bonded debt recorded by Oregon Tech as a long-term liability was
removed and is now recorded by the State as the owner of the
debt. Oregon Tech has entered into contract loan agreements for
the principal and interest amounts due to the State. The State may
periodically issue new debr to refund previously held debt. Per the
loan agreements, when this lmppcns the State is quuil'::d to pass
the savings on to the University.

A. Contracts Payable

Oregon Tech has entered into loan agreements with the State for
repayment of XI-F(1) bonds issued by the State on behalf of the
University for capital construction and refunding of previously
issued debt. The University makes loan payments (principal and
interest) to the State in accordance with the loan agreements.
Loans, with interest rates ranging from 1.14 percent to 7.0 percent,

are due serially through 2044.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the State issued XI-
F(1) bonds for refunding of previously held debt, which resulted in
a net reduction to Oregon Tech’s contract payable of $166. Oither
changcs include debt service payment for principa| and accreted
interest of $1,526 and the addition of $25 for the amortization
of accreted interest applicable to zero coupon bonds sold prier to
2002,

ré 36 | Oregon Institute of Technology
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B. General Obligation Bonds XI-F(1)
As of July 1, 2015, $5,036 in premiums and discounts associated

with XI-F(1) debt were removed from the long-term liabilities
of Oregon Tech. See Note 18, “Change in Entity” for additional

informarion.

Oregon Tech no longer has a direct liability for XI-F(1) bends.
This liability is now in the form of long-term contracts payable.

C. General Obligation Bonds XI-G
As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, $13,651 in XI-G bonded

debr was removed from the long-term liabilities of Oregon Tech.
Oregon Tech retained no amount of XI-G bonded debt. See Note
1.A, “Reporting Entity”, Note 1.R, "State Support”, and Note 18.
“Change in Entity” for additional information on the change in
legal status.

The State no longer issues XI-G bonds which result in a liabilicy
to the University.

D. General Obligation Bonds XI-Q

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, $6,725 in XI-Q bonded
debrt was removed from the long-term liabilities of Oregon Tech.
Onregon Tech retained no amount of XI-Q bonded debt. See Note
1.A. “Reporting Entity”, Note 1.R. "State Support”, and Note 18.
“Change in Enrity” for additional information on the change in
lcgaj status. The State may, in the future, issue XI-Q bonds which

would result in a liability of the Universicy.

Oregon Tech Board of Trustees

Page 67

5.1 ANNUAL SINGLE AUDIT



F&F Committee

Notes to the Financial Statements

December 7, 2017

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in thousands)

E. Oregon Department of Energy Loans

Oregon Tech has entered into loan agreements with the State of
Oregon Department of Energy (DOE) Small Scale Energy Loan
Program (SELP) for energy conservation projects at Oregon
Tech. Oregon Tech makes monthly loan payments (principal and
interest) to the DOE in accordance with the loan agreements.
SELP loans, with interest rates ranging from 4.9 percent ro 5.08
percent, are due through 2030,

F. Certificates of Participation
As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, $1,424 in COPs debe

was removed from the long-term liabilities of Oregon Tech.
Oregon Tech retained no amount of COPs debt. See Note 1A
“Reporting Entity”, Note 1.R. "State Support”, and Note 18.
“Change in Entity” for additional informarion on the change in
legal status. The State no longer issues COPs,

G. Lottery Bonds

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, $24,111 in Lottery
bonded debt was removed from the long-term liabilities of Oregon
Tech. Oregon Tech retained no amount of Lottery bonded debr.
Note 1.A. “Reporting Entity”, Note 1.R. "State Support”, and
Note 18. “Change in Entity” for additional information on the
dmugc- in lcgul status.

‘The State no longer issues Lottery bonds which result in a liabilicy
of the University.

H. Capital Leases
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, Oregon Tech acquired

assets under capital lease agreements. The cost of Oregon Tech
assets held under capital leases totaled $53 as of June 30, 2017.
Accumulated depreciation of leased equipment totaled $1 at June
30, 2017.

The lease purchase (capital lease) contracts run through fiscal
year 2020, The capital leases are recorded at the present value of
the minimum future lease payments at the inception date. The
effective interest rate on the capitalized lease is 2.15 percent.

|. State and Local Government Rate Pool

Prior to the formation of the PERS State and Local Government
Rate Pool (SLGRT), the State and community colleges were
pooled together in the State and Community College Pool
(SCCP), and local government employers participated in
the Local Government Rate Pool (LGRP). These two pools
combined to form the SLGRD effective January 1, 2002, ac
which time a transitional, pre-SLGRP liability was created. The
pre-SLGRP liability is essentially a debt owed to the SLGRP by
the SCCP employers. The balance of the pre-SLGRP pooled
llabillly attributable o the State is buing amortized over the
period ending December 31, 2027, The liability is allocated by
the State of Oregon, based on salaries and wages, to all public
universitics, State proprietary funds, and the government-wide
reporting fund in the State Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report. Interest expense was paid by Oregon Tech in the amount

of §122 and $121 for June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Principal payments of $80 and $61 were applied to the liability
for June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

J. Employee Termination Liabilities

Oregon Tech has a severance agreement with one former employee
relating to early termination of their employment contract.
Future payourt of this liability extends through fiscal year 2018.
The value of future benefic payments were not discounted due to

the short term of the liabilicy.
K. Early Retirement Liability

Oregon Tech offered a tenure relinquishment plan that cdosed
December 31, 2013. Faculty that accepted the plan recired by
December 31, 2013 and are receiving a fixed subsidy amount for
health benefits covering the term until the faculty member turns
65. Four faculty members continue to receive payments under
this plan and a $106 liabilicy will be paid out through fiscal year
2021.

10.Unrestricted Net Position

Unrestricted net position is r:nmpriscd of the followi ng:

June 30, June 30,
017 2016

University Operations § M40 § 23487

Compensated Absences Liability (Note 5) (1,624) (1,403)
Other Post-Employment Benefits

Liability ( Motes 9 and 15) (b15) (594
State and Local Government Rate

Paal (Note 9) {1,642) (1,722)

Met Pension Luabihity (16,969) (6,027)

Pension Related Deferred Outflows (Note §) 9,011 1,483

Pension Related Deferred Inflows (Note §) !lﬁl! (1,467)

Total Unrestricted Net Position § 12480 § 12757

11. Investment Activity

Investment Activity detail is as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2017 2016

[nvestment H:nrliﬂg:—: ) 631 % G616
Temporarily Restricted Endowment

Income 11 10
Interest Income 5 1
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Investments - {109
Net Appreciation (Depreciation)

of Investments (308) 145

Total Investment Activity 3 339 $ 762
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12. Operating Expenses by Natural Classification

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reports operating expenses by their functional classificarion. The

table below displays operating expenses by both their functional classification and their natural dlassification. The Net Pension Liability
for fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016, affected the reported Compensation and Benefit Expenses of Oregon Tech, For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, changes in the Net Pension Liability and associated reporting requirements increased the reported

Compensation and Benefit expenses of Oregon Tech by $2,108. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, changes in the Net Pension

Liability and associated reporring requirements increased the reported Compensation and Benefit expenses of Oregon Tech by $4,904.

See page 16 of the Management’s Discussion & Analysis section of this report for additional details and discussion of the impact of

this change.

Sehal hip Dep -~
Compensation Services and axcd arncd

June 30, 2017 and Benefits Supplies Fellowships Amortization Other ‘Total
Instruction B 26,009 S 2,712 B - ] - B = B 28,721
Research 1,133 869 16 - - 2,018
Public Services 18 20 - - - 38
Academic Support 5.240 1,600 = - = 6,340
Student Services 3,818 892 19 - - 4,729
Auxiliary Services 3,789 5,140 65 1,688 = 10,682
Institutional Support 6,278 2,407 = = = 8,685
Operation & Maintenance 2,585 1,766 - - - 4,351
Student Add 49 2 5,391 - 29 5,471
Other (6) 165 — 3,323 - 3,482
Toral S 38,913 S 15,573 S 5,491 S 5,011 % 29 S 75,017

Scholarships Depreciation
Compensation Services and and and

June 30, 2016 and Benefits Supplics Fellowships Amortizanon Crther Total
Instruction ¥ 25,403 § 2,515 § £ # 1 % 27,919
Rescarch G651 192 El 1 549
Public Services 51 43 1 o5
Academic Support 5,431 1,361 - - - 6,792
Student Services 3,629 Too 14 - - 4,412
Auxiliary Services 3,823 4,904 61 1,503 - 10,291
Institutional Support 6,315 2,131 - - - B, 4406
Operation & Maintenance 2,658 1,591 4,249
Srudent Aid 2 = 4,563 = 7 4,556
Other 1 (272) = 2,210 E. 2,939
Tatal [ 37,962 § 15,234 3% 1644 § 4713 $ 5 % 70,548

13. Government Appropriations

Oregon Tech receives support from the State of Oregon in the
form of General Fund and Lottery appropriations. These
appropriations are in support of the operations of the University.
Appropriations for SELP debt service are dependent upen the loan
agreements between the University and the Oregon Department
of Energy. Government appropriations comprised the following:

June 30, June 30,
2017 2016
General Fund - Operations § 26,198 § 24719
General Fund - SELP Debt Service 190 189
Lottery Funding 457 457
Total Appropnations § 26,845 § 25365
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14. Employee Retirement Plans

f_)rcgon J] }TCi] Of'FCFS various retirement Plﬂ ns to q'l]:lliﬁ(fr] I:['l'lplo}'t‘.‘(fﬁ

as described below.

A. Public Employees Retirement Plan (PERS)

Organization: Oregon Tech participates with other state agencies
in the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System (System),
which is a cost-shari ng mult'lp](: cmp]oycr defined benefic pl:m.
Plan assets may be used to pay the benefits of the employees of
any employer that provides pensions through the plan. PERS is
administered in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS)
Chaprer 238, Chapter 238A, and Internal Revenue Code Section
401(a). The Oregon Legislature has delegated authority to the
Public Employees Retirement Board (Board) to administer and
manage the System.

Plan Membership: The 1995 Oregon Legislature enacted Chapter
654, Section 3, Oregon Laws 1995, which has been codified into
ORS 238.435. 'This legislation created a second tier of benefits for
these who established membership on or after January 1, 1996.
Membership prior to January 1, 1996 are Tier One members.
The second tier does not have the Tier One assumed earnings rate
guarantee and has a higher normal retirement age of 60, compared
to 58 for Tier One. Both Tier One and Tier Two are defined
benefir plans.
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The 2003 Legislature enacted HB 2020, codified as ORS 2384,
which created the Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan
(OPSRP). OPSRP consists of the Pension Program (defined
benefic, DB) and the Individual Account Program (IAP). The
IAD is a defined contribution plan. Membership includes public
employees hired on or after August 29, 2003.

Beginning January 1, 2004, PERS active Tier One and Tier Two
members became members of [AP of OPSRE PERS members
retain their existing Defined Benefic Plan accounts, but member
contriburions are now deposited into the member’s AP account,
not into the members Defined Beneht Plan account. Accounts are
credited with earnings and losses net of administrative expenses.
OPSRP is part of PERS and is administered by the Board.
Pension Plan Repurt: The PERS defined benefit and defined
contribution retirement plaus are rcporwd as pension trust funds
in the ﬁdncinry funds Comhining statements and as part of the
Pension and Oither Employee Benefit Trust in the State of Oregon
Comprehensive Financial Report. PERS issues a separate, publicly
available financial report that includes an audit opinion that may
be obrained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement
System, Fiscal Services Division, PO Box 23700, Tigard, OR
97281-3700. The report may also be accessed online at:
http://www.orcgon.gov/pers/Pages/Financials/Actuarial-
Financial-Information.aspx

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

participating in the Plan are rcquircd to report pension information

E.I.I]p IO}’C Is

in their financial statements for fiscal pcriods bcgimu'ug on or after
June 15, 2014, in accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Swatement No. 68, Accownting and

Financial Reporting for Pensions.

The requirements of this Statement incorporate provisions
intended to reflect the effects of transactions and events related to
pensions in the measurement of cmployﬁ:r liabilities for pensions
and recognition of pension expense and deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions.

Basis of Accounting: Conuributions for employers are recognized
on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions
to PERS are caleulated based on creditable compensation for
active members reported by employers. Employer contributions
are accrued when due pursnant o legal requirements. These are
amounts normally included in the employer statements cut off as

OFFhC ﬁfrh O]ct]'l(‘.' fo"owmg ITIOI'Itl'I.
Proportionate Share Allocation Methodology: The basis for the

cmploycr’s proportion is ar:ruar'la“}' determined by comparing
the cmp]oynr's pmjcr:t::d ]ong-rcrm contribution effort to the
Plan with the total projected long-term contribution effort of
all employers. The contibution rate for every employer has ac
least two major compenents; Normal Cost Rate and Unfunded

Actuarial Liabilicy (UAL) Rate.

Changes Subsequent to the Measurement Date: Management is
not awarc OF:]I'IY CI]:II'IgCS o bCI‘ICﬁt erms sub@rqucnr o I'I]C J'l]['l(‘.'
30, 2016 measurement date.

Collective Pension Plan l.lability: The COMPONEnts of the Plan's
collective net pension |iahi]1l:y as of the measurement dates ofjunn
30, 2016 and 2015 are as follows (dollars in millions):

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

‘Total Pension Liability $ 77,094 $ 70,665
Flan Fiduciary Net Positicn 62,082 64 924
Flan MNet Pension Liakility $ 15,012 i 5,741

As reflected in the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation, the
sys:rgm—wide actuarial accrued |iﬂbi]1ry has increased pr'lmnri]y
due to the Moro decision and assumption Ch:mgcs, nlong with
interest on the liability as current active members get closer
retirement. The Oregon Supreme Court decision in More o State
of Oregon, issued on April 30, 2015, reversed a significant portion
of the reductions passed by the 2013 Oregon Legislature, which
increased the benefits projected to be paid by Employers compared
to those previously developed and consequently increased Plan
liabilities. The employers’ projected long-term contribution effore
reflects the estimated impact of the More Decision. Following
the completion of the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation,
the PERS Board adopted several assumption changes, including

lowering the investment return assumprion from 7.7 5% to 7.50%.

OREGON PERS PENSION (CHAPTER 238) PROGRAM
Pension Benefits

The PERS retirement allowance is payable monchly for life.
It may be selected from 13 retirement benefit oplious. These
options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum refunds.
The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average
salary. A percentage (1.67 percent for general service employees) is
mulriplied by the number cfye:zrs of service and the final average
salary. Benefits may also be caleulated under either a formula plus
annuiry (for members who were contributing before August 21,
1981) or a money match computation if a greater benefit resules.
Monthly payments must be a minimum of $200 per month or
the member will receive a lump-sum payment of the actuarial
equivalence of benefits to which he or she is entitled. A member
is considered vested and will be cﬁgiblc at minimum retirement
age for a service retirement allowance if he or she has had a
contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached ar least
50 years of age before ceasing umplo}rmcm with a participating
employer. General Service employees may rerire after reaching
age 55. Tier One general service employee benefits are reduced
if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years of
service. Tier Two members are eligible for full benefits at age 60.
The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is closed to
new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.
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Death Benefits
Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a
lump-sum refund of the member’s account balance (accumulated
contriburions and interest). In addition, the beneficiary will
receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the
account balance provided one or more of the following conditions
are met:
¢ The member was employed by a PERS employer at the
time of death.
¢ The member died within 120 days after termination of
PERS-covered employment.
*  The member died as a result of injury sustained while
employed in a PERS-covered job.
* The member was on an official leave of absence from a
PERS-covered job at the time of death.

Disability Benefits

A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who
becomes disabled from other than duty-connected causes may
receive a nan-(‘lul‘yY d'ls:;b'lﬁty benefit. A :‘]isahiliry ntsu]t'lng from
a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member for disabilicy
benefits regardless of the length of PERS-covered service. Upon
qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is
compured to age 58 when determining the maonthly benefit.
Benefit Changes after Retirement

Members may choose to continue participation in a variable
equities investment account after retiring and may experience
annual benefit fluctations due to changes in the market value of
equity investments.

Under ORS 238.360, monthly benefits are adjusted annually
through cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs). The COLA is
capped at 2.0 pereent.

OREGON PUBLIC SERVICE RETIREMENT PLAN (OPSRP DB)
PENSION PROGRAM

Pension Benefits

The OPSRP provides a life pension funded by employer
contributions. Benefits are caleulated with the fo]lowing formula
for members who attain normal retirement age: 1.5 percent is
mulriplied by the number ofye:lrs of service and the final average
salary. Normal retirement age for general service members is age
65, or age 58 with 30 years of retirement credit.

A member of the pension program becomes vested on the earliest
of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours
of service in each of five calendar years, the date the member
reaches normal retirement age, and if the pension program is
terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.
Death Banefits

Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other
person who is t.'uusLiLuliona]]y rchlIi‘cd to be treated in the same
manner as the spouse, receives for life 50 percent of the pension
that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member.
Disability Benefits

A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits
before the member becomes disabled or a member who becomes
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disabled due to job—wlalcd injury shall receive a dlsability benefic
of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last full
month ochp]oymr.nr before the d'ls:ibiliry occurred.

Benefit Changes After Retirement

Under ORS 238A.210, monthly benefits are adjusted annually
through COLAs. The cap on the COLAs will vary based on 1.25
percent on the first $60 of annual benefit and 0.15 percent on
annual benefits above $60.

OREGON PUBLIC SERVICE RETIREMENT PLAN (OPSRP IAP)
PENSION PROGRAM

An [AP member becomes vested on the date the employee
account is established or on the date the rollover account was
established. Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP [AP may
receive the amounts in his or her employee account, rollover
account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment
or in equal insallments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or
an anticipated life span option. Upon the death of a non-retired
member, the beneficiary receives in a lump sum the member’s
account balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer
oprional contribution balance. If a retired member dies before
the installment payments are completed, the beneficiary may
receive the remaining installment payments or choose a lump—

sum payment.

Pension Plan Contributions

PERS and OPSRP employee contriburion requirements are
established by ORS 238.200 and ORS 238A.330, respectively,
and are credited 1o an cmploycc's account in the Individual
Account Program and may be amended by an act of the
Oregon Legislature. PERS funding policy provides for monthly
employer contributions at actuarially determined rates. These
contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are
intended to accumulare sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.
‘This funding policy applies to the PERS Defined Benefit Plan

and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans.

Employer contribution rates for the fiscal years ended June 30,
2017 and 2016 were based on the December 31, 2013 actuarial
valuation as subsequently modified by the More decision. The
rates are effective July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2017. The
employer contribution rates for the PERS and OPSRP are as
follows:

2017 2016
PERS Tier One,/ Two 13.28% 13.28%
OPSRP 7.31% 7.31%

Employer required contriburions for the years ended June 30,
2017 and June 30, 2016 were $1,246 and $1,186, respectively,
including amounts to fund employer specific liabilities associated
with the SLGRP liability. (See Note 91 foradditional information).
Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2017, the University reported a liability of $16,969
for its proportionate share of the PERS net pension liab]ll[),: The
net pension liability as of June 30, 2017 was measured as of June
30, 2016, and the rotal pension liability used to calculate the
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net pension liabil ity was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of December 31, 2014. At June 30, 2016, the University
reported a liability of $6,027 for its proportionate share of the
PERS net pension liability. The net pension liability as of June
30, 2016 was measured as of June 30, 2015, and the toral pension
liabil ity used to calculare the net pension liabil ity was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2013. The PERS
system does not provide Oregon Tech an audited proportionate
share as a separate {:mp|nycr‘. the University is a proportionarte
share of PERS employer state agencies which includes all state
agencies. The State of Oregon Department of Administrative
Services calculated Oregon Tech’s proportional share of all state
agencies 'mtcrn:!lly based on acrual contributions by Oregon Tech
cou.lpu.led to the total for ::mploym‘ state ug::ucl::s. The State of
Ohregon Audits Division reviewed this internal calculation. At
June 30, 2017, Oregon Tech’s proportion was 0.11 percent of the
statewide pension plan and .42 percent of employer state agencies.
At June 30, 2016, Oregon Tech’s proportion was 0.10 percent of
the statewide pension plan and 0.41 percent of employer state
agencies.

For the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, Oregon Tech
recorded total net pension expense of $3,152 and $5,908 due
to the increase in net pension l'lahi]iry and changcs to deferred
inflows and oucflows.

Deferred Items

Deferred items are calculated ar the system-wide level and are

allocated to employers based on their proportionate share. For

fiscal years ending June 30, 2017 and 2016, deferred items

include:

*  Difference between expected and actual experience

+  Changes in assumptions

*  Net difference between pm]cclcd and actual carnings

e Changes in employer proportion since the prior measurement
date

+  Difference berween employer contributions and
proportionate share of contributions

Differences between expected and actual experience, changes
in assumption, and changes in employer proportion are
amortized over the average remaining service lives of all plan
participants, in:‘.|ud'lng retirees, determined as of the ht:gin ning
of the respective measurement period. Employers are required
to recognize pension expense based on the balance of the closed
period “layers” attributable to cach measurement period. The
average remaining service lives determined as of the bcginning of
each measurement period are as follows:

+  Measurement period ended June 30, 2016 — 5.3 years

*  Measurement period ended June 30, 2015 — 5.4 years

*  Measurement period ended June 30, 2014 — 5.6 years

The difference between projected and actual earnings attributable
to each measurement period is amortized over a closed five-year
pe riod.

Ome year of amortization is recognized in the University’s total

pension expense for fiscal years 2017 and 2016.

At June 30, 2017, Oregon Tech reported deferred ourflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related o pensions
from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Defereed [nflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences batwesn expectad and actual
aperiencs § L) H
Changes of assumptions 3519
et difference between progected and
actusd sumings on pension plan
inwestments 3352
Changes in proportion and differences
between System's contributions and
proport share of contaibut 434 161
Total i 7967 i 161

et Dieferced Outflow/(Tnflow) of

Rescurces before Contributions

Subsequent to the Measurement Diate

0D) ; 7808
Contnbutions Subsaquent to the MD 1,044
MNet Dieferred Cutflow/(Inflow) of

Resouroes after Contributions

Subsequent to the MD

i &W}

Ar June 30, 2016, Oregon Tech reported deferred ourflows of
resources ﬂnd defﬂfff.‘d inﬂo\\'&‘ OF resources r&‘]ﬂted [£a] Pﬂnsl[ons
[1'01([ l}ll: ]-()llowillg sources:

Deferred Outflows
of Resources

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Differences between expected and actual

expenence i s H -

o S

Met difference between projected and

actual catnings on peasien plan

mnvestments 1,263

Changes in propocbon and differences

betwesn System's contrsbutions and

propechienate shace of contributions 154 204

Toml H 479 H 1,467

Met Diefereed Outllo f{Tnflonw) of

Resources before Contributions

Subsequent to the Measusement Date

(MD) §

(988)

Coateshutions Subsaquent to the MD 1,004
Met Defereed Outfl o f{Inflow) of

Resources after Contnbutmons

Subsequent to the MD § 16
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Of the amount reported as deferred outflows of resources, $1,044  Acruarial valuations of an ongoing plan invelve estimates of the
is related o pensions rcsulring from Oregon Tech contributions  value ofpmjccrcd benefits and assumptions about the prcbﬂbil ity
subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized asa  of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,  subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to
2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources  past expectations and new estimates are made about the furure.
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be  Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of even

recognized in pension expense as follows: numbered years.
Deferred Outflow/ {Inflow) Discount Rate
of Resources The discount rate used to measure the total pension liabilicy at

Year Ended Junc 0 June 30, 2017 and 2016 was 7.5 and 7.75 percent, respectively.
R The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate

- Py
éﬁ‘iﬁ ! o assumed that contributions from plan members and those of the
200 contributing employers are made at the contractually required
101 rates, as actuarially determined. Based on those assumprtions, the
2102 '295 pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available

W to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan
—_— members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions pension plan investmencs was applied to all periods of projected
The fo”owing methods and assumptions were used in the benefic payments to determine the total pension |inbiliry.

development of the total pension liability: Sensitivity Analysis
A ial Methods: ‘The sensitivicy analysis shows the sensitivity of the University's
As of: June 30, 2017 June 30,2016 proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the

discount rate. The following presents the University's
Valuation Date December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7.50 as of June 30, 2017 and 7.75 percent as

Measurement Date ung 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 . , .
— e \_{ ] TR d'l‘ T of June 30, 2016, as well as what the University’s proportionate
“ypenence shudy Keport npasned septemper U010 - . T

2l (L [T\IW 2P - & share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated
Actuanal Cost Method Entry Age Nomnal using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one
Actuarial Assumptions: percentage point higher than the current rate:
Inflation Rate 2.50 percent 2.75 percent

T o T Oregon Tech’s proportionate
L(xl.‘l_;-TE..]l ESWL'N Rate 7.50 pereent 7.75 percent share of the net pension liability
of Retum Tune 30, 2017
Dhscount Rate 1.50 percernt 7.75 percent 1 “/"6]?;‘/‘.9-“5" $ 27,399
Proje cted Salary Increases 3.50 percent 3.75 percent e
Current Discount Rate 16.969

P . Blend of 200% COLA and gmded COLA e
Cost LJH,:\nng 0 CTRIRS 8,251

{1.25%//0.15%) in accordance with Mor 85094
decision; blend based on service.

Acljuﬁ'.nu.‘:ll.ﬁ f_[':OT,.A.]

Oregon Tech’s proportionate

Hew':.fyr‘e!irv:,‘fw.ﬁ‘bmg’?ﬁw#es.‘ share of the net pension liability
y——m— —— June 30, 2016
_3001 : nel AT r Seal
RP-2000 Sex sLiT.c.L, generanonal per .I,..J..t‘ 1% Dhecoeaan s —
BB, with collar adjustments and set-backs as 6.75% -
P L e Poiey Ry ES Cu. t i t Rat
described n the valuation, fren _I'SC\O‘U‘J e 6,027
P - 7.75%
Ll mfirs.?r.. 1 % Increase -
Mortality rates are 2 petcentage of healthy 8.75% (1,152)
}v'[chI:iH].): retiree rates that vary |]:( group, 4s descobed m
the valuation, Depletion Date Projection
Disabled reterees: (GASBs No. 68 generally requires that a blended discount rate

be used to measure the Total Pension Liability (the Actuarial
Accrued Liability caleulated using the Individual Enty Age
Normal Cost Method). The long-term expected return on plan
investments may be used to discount liabilities to the extent that
the plan’s Fiduciary Net Position (fair market value of assets) is
projected to cover benefit payments and administrative expenses.

Mortality rates are a percentage (70% for males,
95% for females) of the RP-2000 Sex-distnet,
generationa] per scale BB, dissbled mortality
table,
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A 20-year high quality (AAfAa or higher) municipal bond rate
must be used for periods where the Fiduciary Net Position is not
pm]ccl‘c(‘f to cover benefit payments and administrative EXPEnses.
Determining the discount rate under GASBs No. 68 will often
require that the actuary perform complex projections of future
benefit payments and pension plan investments. GASBs No. 68
(paragraph 67) does allow for alternative evaluations of projected
solvency, if such evaluation can reliably be made. GASB does
not contemplate a specific method for making an alternative
evaluation of sufficiency; it is left to professional judgment.
The following circumstances justify an alternative evaluation of
sufficiency for Oregon PERS:
¢ Oregon PERS has a formal written policy to caleulate an
Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC), which is
articulated in the actuarial valuation report.
¢ The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortization period,
which means that payment of the full ADC each year will
bring the plan to a 100% funded posicion by the end of the
amortization prriod if furure experience follows assumption.
+  GASBs No. 68 specifies that the projections regarding future
solvency assume thar plan assets earn the assumed rate of
return and there are no future changes in the plan provisions
or actuarial methods and assumptions, which means thac the
projections would not reflect any adverse future experience
which might impact the plan’s funded position.
Based on these circumstances, it is the independent actuary’s
opinion that the detailed depletion date projections outlined
in GASBs No. 68 would dearly indicate that the Fiduciary Net
Position is always projcclcd to be suflicient to cover benefit
payments and administrative expenses.

Assumed Asset Allocation

Asset Class/ Low Range High OIC Target
Sirategy Range
Cash 0.00 % 3.00 % 0.00 %
Debt Securities 15.00 25.00 20,00
Pubshe Equity 3250 42.50 37.50
Private Equity 13.50 21.50 17.50
Real Estate 9,50 1550 12.50
Alternative - .

; 0,00 1250 12.50
Equity
Cppediuily 0.00 .00 0.00
Portfolio
Total 100.00 %

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

To deve!np an ann|yrir:n| basis for the selection of the ]ong-rerm
expected rate of return assumption, in July 2015 the PERS Board
reviewed long-term assumptions developed by both Milliman's
capital market assumptions team and the Oregon Investment
Council's (OIC) investment advisors. Each asset assumption is
based on a consistent set of underlying assumprions and includes
adjustment for the inflation assumption. These assumptions are

not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a
ﬁ)rward-looking Capiral market economic model. The table on
the Fnllowing page shows Milliman’s assumptions for each of the
asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on
the OIC long-term target asset allocation. For more information
on the Plan’s portfolio, assumed asset allocation, and the long-
term expected rate of return for each major asset class, calculated
using both arithmetic and geometric means, see PERS” audited
financial statements at: https/fwww.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/
docs/financial_reports/2016_cafr.pdf

Compound
Asset Class Target [Annual Return

(Geometric)
Cere Fixed Income B0 4.00%
Short-Term Eonds 8.00 3.61
Intermediate-Term Bonds 3.00 5.42
High Yield Bonds 1.00 .20
I.;d:gr..l" Mid Cap 15,75 &0
Srrall Cap US Eqy .31 .09
Micro Cap US Equities 1.31 A
Developed Foreign Equities 13.13 6.73
Emerging Market Equities 4.12 7.25
Mon-US Small Cap Equities 1.88 12
Private Equity 17.50 7.9
Feal Estate (Property) 10.00 5.84
Real Estate (REITS) 2.50 6.69
Hedge Fund of Funds - Diversified 2.50 4.64
Hedge Fund - Event-driven 0.63
[ Timber 1.88
Farmland 1.88
Infrastructure 375 713
Commoadities 1.88 4.58
Assumed Inflation — Mean | 250%

Bond Debt

The Retirement Bond Debt Service Assessment was authorized by
the State of Oregon Legislature in 2003 to sell general obligacion
bonds in the amount of $2 billion o pay a PERS unfunded
acmarial liability. This action reduced the PERS contribucion
rate for PERS covered employers in the State actuarial pool in

November 2003,

The Oregon Department of Administrative Services coordinares
the debt service assessments to PERS employers to cover the bond
debt service payments. PERS employers are assessed a percentage
of PERS-subject payroll to fund the payments. The assessment
rate is adjusted periodically over the life of the twenty-four year

dClJL epayme nt SCllt‘dUlC-

‘The payroll assessment for the pension obligation bond began
May 2004. The assessment rate for fiscal year 2017 was 6.0
percent. The assessment rate for fiscal year 2016 was 6.7 percent
throngh October 31, 2015 and was reduced to 6.0 percent
effective November 1, 2015. Payroll assessments paid by Oregon
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Tech for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 were $815
and $787, respectively.

B. Other Retirement Plans

OPTIONAL RETIREMENT PLAN

The 1995 Oregon Legislature enacted legislation that authorized
Oregon Tech to offer a defined contribution retirement plan
as an alternative to PERS. The Board appointed a Retirement
Plan Committee to administer the Optional Retirement Plan
{ORP) and named trustees to manage plan assets placed with
mutual funds and insurance companies. Beginning April 1,
1996, the ORP was made available to University academic
and administrative faculty. Employees choosing the ORP may
invest the employee and employer contributions in one of two
investment companies, either Fiddir.y or TIAA.

The ORP consists of four tiers. M::mb::rship under ORP Tier
One and Tier Two is determined using the same date of enury
eriteria as PERS, The third er is determined by the date of'uulry
applicable to the OPSRE. Employees hired on or after July 1,
2014 who elected the ORP are Tier Four members. The first
contributions for Tier Four were payable January 2015 after
six-months of qualifying service. Tier Four is a departure from
the other three tiers. The employee is entitled to an employer
contribution plus a “macch” contribution based on the employee’s
participation in the voluntary 403(b) investment plan. The
(:mp|oycr contribution is fixed at 8 percent hy plan rules and is
unaffected by PERS rates, unlike the other tiers. The employer
provides an ORP match contribution equal to 403(b) deferrals
up to a4 percent maximum. Under the ORP Tiers One, Two and
Three, the employee’s conuribution rate is 6 percent and is paid

b}" th cecm pll)}'(f I.

Tlu: Clll}‘lO)-’C!' COlll[lb'L'll.iOIl rafes [01' 1}16 ORP are as E-UUO\'VS:

017 2016
Tiee One/Twe 20.45% 20.45%
Tier Three 7.94% 7.94%
Tier Foue 8.00% 8.00%

OREGON PUBLIC UNIVERSITIES 401(A) DEFINED
CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Eligible ranked faculty participate in the Teacher’s Insurance
and Annuity Association {TIAA) retirement program, a defined
contriburion p|an, on all sa]ary in excess of ﬁ)rry—cighr hundred
dollars per calendar year. Employee and employer contributions
are directed to PERS on the first forty-eight hundred dollars. The
contribution to TIAA annuities are supplumuutal to PERS. To
participate in this retirement option, emp]oyees must have been
hired on or before September 9, 1995. This plan was closed o
new enrollment at the time the ORP started in 1996, The legacy
plan, Oregon University System 401(a) Defined Contribution
Plan, decument was amended and restated July 1, 2015 and the
Plan Sponsor is now the Board of Trustees for the University of

01’(‘ gon.
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SUMMARY OF OTHER PENSION PAYMENTS

Oregon Tech total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2017 was
$32,134, of which $11,727 was subject to retirement plan
contributions. The following schedule lists payments made by
Oregon 'Tech for the fiscal year:

June 30, 2017
As a% of As a% of
Employer Covered Employee Covered
Contribution Payroll Contribution Payroll
ORP $ 1,458 1243% % 43 6.34%
TIAA 7 0.06% 7 D06%
Tatal 5 1,465 12.49%  $ 750 6.40%

Of the employee share, Oregon Tech paid $743 of the ORP and
§7 of the TIAA employee contribution amounts on behalf of
their employees during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

Oregon Tech total payroll for the year ended June 30, 2016 was
$29,724, $11,427 was

contributions. The Fol]ow'lng schedule lists payments made by

of  which subject to  retirement

Omgou Tech for the fiscal year:
June 30, 2016

Asa%of Asa% of
Employer Covered Employee Covered
Contribution Payroll Coniribution Payrell
ORFP 3 1,442 12.62% ¥ 733 G4
TIAA 7 0.06%0 7 0.06%
Totd } 1,449 12.68% & 740 6.43%

Of the employee share, Oregon Tech paid $704 of the ORP and
§7 of the TIAA employee contribution amounts on behalf of
their employees during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

15. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description

Oregon Tech participates in a defined benefit postemployment
healthcare plan, administered by the Public Employees Benefit
Board (PEBB), which offers medical, dental and vision benefits to
ellgiblc‘ retired state cmployccs and their beneficiaries, The PEBB
plan is an agent multiple-employer postemployment healtheare
plan. Chapter 243 of the ORS assigns PEBB the authority to
establish and amend the benefit provisions of the PEBB plan. As
the administrator of the PEBEB plan, PEBB has the autherity to
determine post-retirement benefit increases and decreases. PEBB
does not issue a separate, pnbl'lr:ly available financial report.

The PEBB plan allows qualifying Oregon Tech employees retiring
under PERS or OPSRP to continue their healtheare on a self-pay
basis until eligible for Medicare, usually at age 65. The PEBB
Plan allows qualifying retired employees to continue their “active”
health insurance coverage on a self-pay basis. However, the
premium amount is based on a blended rate that is determined
hy pooling the qna|1fying retirees with active cmp]oym:s, thus,
creating an “implicit rate subsidy” under GASBs No. 45. Health
care premiums priced only for retirees, who on average incur
higher health care claims costs than younger active employees,
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would be more expensive than health care premiums that are
priccd to cover the average costs of both active and retirees
combined. GASBs No. 45 states that this implicit subsidy must
be included in the liabilities and costs reported on the enrity's
financial statements.

The PEBB plan is also offered to retirees of other Oregon state
agencies. Therefore, the amounts presented in this note are
limited to Oregon Tech’s share, estimated at 0.85 percent of the
total PEBB plan costs attributable to the State of Oregon. This
allocation was based on health insurance premiums paid by state
agencies during fiscal year 2017,

Funding Policy

The PEBB’s funding policy provides for employer contributions in
amonnts sufficient to fund the cost of active employee health benefies,
i.uclud.i.ng the retiree rate subsidy, on A pay-as-you-go basis. For
fiscal years 2017 and 2016, Oregon Tech paid healthcare insurance
premiums of $7,212 and $6,569, respectively. The portion of the
insurance preminms artributable to the implicic rate subsidy was
estimated to be $36 and $39 for the fiscal years ended 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is the amount PEBB
would be required to report as an expense for the fiscal year under
GASBs No. 45. The ARC is equal to the Normal Cost plus an amount
to amortize the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL). The
amortization method is level dollar over a pcriod of one year. MNote,
the ARC represents an accouu[lug CAPENSE, but neither PEBB nor
its covered agencies are required to contribute the ARC to a separate
trust. Because funds are not set aside equal to the ARC cach year, the
Annual OPEB Cost (less actual benefic payments) will accumulate
as a liability (Net OPEB Obligarion) on PEBBS and Oregon Tech’s
Statement of Net Position. The Net OPEB obligation is allocated to
the participating entities based on their proportionate share of annual
health insurance premiom costs.

The following table shows the components of Oregon Techs annual
OPEB expense for the year, the amount actually contributed to the
plan, and changes in Qregon Tech’s ner OPEB obligation:

June 30, June 30,
2017 2016
Al Required Contabution H 9% 3 644
Interest con Net OPEB Chligation 22 24
Adjustment to Annual Required Contnbuton 661 (597)
Anrual OPEB Cost 57 (29)
Contmbutions Made (36) 35)
Increase (Decrease) n Net OPEB Ohbligation 2 (68)
Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 594 662
Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year s 615§ 504
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The Oregon Tech annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual
QOPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the change in net OPEB
obligation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, 2016 and
2015 were as follows:

Year Annual  Percentage of Annual  Net OPEB
Ended  OPEE Cost OFEE Cost Conmbuted  Oblization
m? § 57 e § 615
2016 (29) 5% 504
2015 a7 13% 662

Funding Status and Funding Progress
The funded status of the Oregon Tech OPEB plan for June 30,
2017 and 2016 were as follows:

June 30, June 30,
2017 2016

Actuarial Accrued Lisbilites $ 624§ 591
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets . .
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability $ 624 3 501
Funded Ratio 0.00% 0.00%
Covered Payroll (active plan members) § 25560 § 24330
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Lisbility asa

Percentage of Coversd Payrell 2.44% 2.43%

Actuarial valuations, prepared biennially, involve estimates of the
value of reported amounts and assumprtions about the probabilicy
of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the
funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions
of the umplu}rcr are subjcct to continual revision as actual results
are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.
I Method

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan

L

and A

as understood by the employer and plan members) and include
the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern
of sharing benefit costs between Oregon Tech and the plan
members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term
perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and The PEBB
postemployment healthcare benefit obligation was determined as
part of the actuarial valuation prepared by the PEBB consulting
actuary at July 1, 2015, Significant methods and assumptions

t]'IC actuaria| v:-:]uc OF ASECE.

WCIC as 1-0110 Wl

June 30, 2017 Tune 30, 2016
Actuarial Valuation Date 7/1/2015 7/1/2015
Actuanial Cost Method Entry Age Mormal Entry Age Normal
Amoctization Method Level Dollar Level Dollae
Amortization Pericd 1year {open} 1year (open)
Inwestment Rate of Return 3.5% 3.5%

5.1% (medical),
2.3% (dental)
5% (medical),

5% (dental)

5.1% (medical),
2.3% (dental)
5% (medical),

5%b (dental)

Initial Healtheare Inflation Fates

Ultsmate Healtheare Inflation Rates
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Notes to the Financial Statements

December 7, 2017

For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in thousands)

16.Risk Financing

Oregon Tech isa member of the Public Universities Risk Management
and Insurance Trust (Trust). The Trust is a separate legal entity which
operates for the benefit of the member universities (Member). The
Trust is gm'x:rncd by a Board of Trustees mmpriscr] of a representative
of each Member of the Trust. The Trustees administer an insurance
program wherein the Members share risk by pmling their losses and
claims and jointly purchasing insurance and administrative services
through the Trust. In exchange Members pay annual assessments
and pmv‘]dc the Trustees with information or assistance as necessary
for the Trustees to determine annual assessments and to purchase
insurance or reinsurance, By participating, Oregon Tech transfers the

followiug 1'15]( o lllC Tl'U.SL:

- Real property loss for a university owned bu]l(.{lug, equipment,
automabiles and other types of properry

- Tore liahilir}' claims hmught against a university, its officers,
employees, or agents

+  Workers' compensation and cmploycrs liabﬂlly
¢ Crime, Fiduciary

- Spcr:'l:lltylincs of business inr:|l1r‘]ing marine, medical practicums,
international travel, fine art, aireraft, camps, dinics and other
items.

Ohregon Tech retains risk for losses under §5, which is the deductible
per claim for insurance purchased through the Trust.

Ohregon Tech is charged an assessment to cover the Trust’s cost of
servicing daims and payments based on the Risk Allocation Model
and actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and
current-year claims. The amount of setdlements has not exceeded
insurance coverage over the past three years.

In addition, Oregon Tech purchases various commercial insurance
po] icies to cover the deductible amounts of inrercollegi::re athletics
insurance provided through the National Association of Intercollegiate
Adhletics, and o provide coverage for special events and student
]':abi|iry.

17. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Ourtstanding commitments on partially completed and planned
but not initiated construction projects totaled approximartely
$19,780 and $3,577 at June 30, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
These commitments will be prim:irily funded from giﬂ's and
grants, bond proceeds, and other Oregon Tech funds. Refer to the
table accompanying this note for projects relating to construction
commitments as of June 30, 2017.

Ohregon Tech is contingently liable in connection with certain
other claims and contracts, inciuding those currcntl}' in l'lt'lgarinn,
arising in the normal course of its activities. Managt:m::n[ is of the
opinion thar the outcome of such marrers will not have a marerial
effect on the financial statements.

Oregon Tech participates in cerrain federal grant programs. These
programs are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantor or its representative. Such audits could lead to requests for

ré 46 | Oregon Institute of Technology
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reimbursement to the grantor for expenditures disallowed under
terms of the grant. Management believes thar disallowances, if
any, will not have a material effect on the financial statements.

Unemployment compensation claims are administered by the
Oregon Employment Division pursuant to QRS Chaprer 657.
Oregon Tech reimburses the Oregon Employment Division on a
quarterly basis for actual benefits paid. Each year resources are
budgeted to pay current charges. The amount of future benefit
payments to claimants and the resulting liability to Oregon Tech
cannot be reasonably determined at June 30, 2017.

CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2017
Total Completed  Outstanding
C i 1o Date C i

Center for Excellence in Engineering

and Technology - Comnett Hall

FRenovation § 16T % 562§ 11,108
Utlity Corridor and Storm Drainsge 5,000 166 4834
Capital Repair & Renewal 1842 491 3,381
Utility Tunrel Repau 1,098 793 305
Information Technology Capital Renewal 1,009 1,817 182

T 26§ 369§ 1780

18.Change in Entity

Senate Bill 270 was passed by the Oregon Legislature during
fiscal year 2013 which established a pathway for Oregon Tech
to become an independent public body legally separate from
the OUS. The State Board of Higher Education unconditionally
endorsed Oregon Tech to become a separate legal entity wich an
independent governing board effective July 1, 2015. Prior to July
1, 2015, Oregon Tech was a parc of the OUS, a state agency of the
State of Oregon. As a state agency, some assets were held centrally
by OUS. These assets were distributed to the seven member
universities, including Oregon Tech, on or before the June 30,

2015 closing of QUS.

The changc in entity also changnd the allocation of bond debt held
in the name of the State. The Oregon Department of Administrative
Services, State Treasury, and Department of Justice all concluded
that a pertion of the debt previously allocated te OUS and the
seven member institutions as state agencies was the rnspcnsibi]iry
of the State to repay. Oregon Tech still has rcspousibﬂi[y to repay
XI-F(1) and SELP debt. See Note 9. "Long Term Liabilities" for

additional information.

F&F Committee
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in thousands)

Chaugcs in Net Position due to the (:.hangt' in entity L'OIIlpi'iSUd
the following:

June 30, 2016

State Paid Debt Transferred to the State Resulting in an
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position
General Obligation Bonds KI-F(1) b 5,036
General Obligation Bonds KI-G 13,651
General Obligation Bonds EI-Q 6,725
Certificates of Participation 1424
Lottery Bonds 24,111
Deferred Outllows - Unamortized Gain/Loss

on Fefunding (2,599}
Accrued Interest Payable Removed 464
Total Debt Transferred to the State $ 48512
Other Changes
Lottery Accrual for State Faid Debt Reversed (B46)
Cash Held by Trustee for State Pard Debt Remowved (4,340)
Total Change due to Change in Entity 5 43,626

19.Subsequent Events

Oregon Tech management has reviewed events and transactions
that occurred subsequent to the Statement of Net Position date
of June 30, 2017 and has found none that required adjustment

or disclosure in the financial statements.

20. University Foundation

Under pulk:lcs appmvcd by the Board, individual university
foundarions may be established to provide assistance in fund
raising, public outcach and other support for the mission of
Oregon Tech. The Oregon Tech Foundation (Foundation)
is a lcgally separate, tax-exempt entity with an indcpcndcnr
governing board. Although Oregon Tech does not control the
timing or amount of receipts from the Foundarion, the majority
of resources, or income thereon, that the Foundation holds and
invests are restricted to the acrivities of the University by the
donors. Because these restricted resources held by the Foundation
can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the University, the
foundation is considered a component unit of Oregon Tech and
is discretely presented in the financial statements. The financial
activity is reported for the year ended June 30, 2017.

During the years ended June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016
gifts of $563 and $531, respectively, were transferred from the
Foundation to Oregon Tech. The Foundation is audited annually
and received an unmodified audit opinion.

Please see the financial statements for the Oregon Tech

compenent unit on pages 21 and 23 of this report.

Complete financial statements for the foundation may be
obtained by writing to the following:

Oregon Tech Foundation, 3201 Campus Drive, Klamath
Falls, OR 97601-8801
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SCHEDULE OF OREGON TECH'S CONTRIBUTIONS *
Public Employees Retrement System

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Contuactually rsquired contribution § 104 § 1004 § EE 780 § 70§ o=\
Contabutions in relation to the contractually required contribution 1,044 1,004 838 780 710 658
Contribution deficiency (sxcese) $ - 3§ - 3 .4 _ - B -
Oregen Tech's coversd payroll $ 1383 § 12912 § 11891 § 10803 § 10215 § 9,967
Contabutions as & percentage of coversd payroll 7.5% 75% T.0% 7.2% 7.0% 6.5%

SCHEDULE OF OREGON TECH'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION ASSET (LIABILITY)*

Publie Employees Retirement System

As of June 30, 2017 2016 2015
Oregen Tech's proportion of the net pension asset /lahbility 0.11% 0.10% 0.0
Oregen Tech's proportionate shars of the net pension asset/ (iability) § (16969 § (602§ 2133
Oregen Techs coversd payroll $ 13833 § 12912 § 11,891
Oregen Tech's proportionate share of the net pension asset/lability as a perentage of its covered payroll 122.67% 4668%  17.94%
Flan fiduciary net postion as a percentage of the total pension asset /Hability £0.53% 9LEE%  103.50%%

FUNDING STATUS OF OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL asa
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage of
Value of (AAL)- AAL Funded Covered Covered
Fiscal Year Actuarial Assets Entry Age {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Ended Valuation Date (1) (b (b-a) (a/b) (c) {(b-a)/c)
6/30,2013 77172011 § - § 1232 § 1232 00%  § 20,784 5.9%
6/30/2014 7/1/2013 - 837 837 0.0% 21,484 3.9%
6/30/2015 7/1/2013 - 842 842 0.0% 23,146 3.6%
6,/30,/2016 7/1/2015 591 591 0.0% 24,339 2.4%
6/30,/2017 7/1/2015 - 624 624 0.00% 25,560 2.4%

*These schedules will eventually contain 10 years’ worth of data. Only the data shown above was available at this time.
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For information about the financial data included in this report, contact:

Vice President for Finance and Administration
Oregon Institute of Technology

3201 Campus Drive

Klamarh Falls, OR 97601

541-885-1105
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Oregon Institute of Technology
www.oit.edu; 541-885-1105
Office of the Vice President for Finance and Administration
Snell Hall 211
Klamath Falls, OR 97601

@© 2017 Oregon Institute of Technology
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ClifionLarsonAllen LLP

ClAconmect.com

CliftonLarsonAllen

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER. MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

COregon Tech
Klamath Falls, Oregon

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activities and the discretely presented component unit of Oregon Tech (the University), a component
unit of the State of Oregon, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the University's basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2017. Our report includes a
reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of the Cregon Tech Foundation, a
discretely presented component unit, as described in our report on the University's financial
statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of intemal control over
financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.
The financial statements of the discretely presented component unit were not audited in accordance
with Govermment Auditing Standards.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the University’s internal
control over financial reporting (intemal control) to determine the audit proceduras that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control doss not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A materal weakness I1s a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a matenal
misstatement of the University’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and comected
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control that is less severe than a matenal weakness, yet important enough to mernt attention by those
charged with governance.

A member of

Nexia (1)

Internathonal
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Members of the Board
Cregon Tech

Cur consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in infemal control that might be matenal
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, matenal weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, dunng our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be matenal weaknesses. However, matenal
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in intemal
control, described as item 2017-001 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the University's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to descnbe the scope of our testing of intemal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
University's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the University's internal conftrol and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

W&M//P

CliftonLarsonéAllen LLP

Denver, Colorado
Cetober 30, 2017

iZ)
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ChftonLarsonAllen LLP
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM, REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE, AND
REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Members of the Board
Cregon Tech
Klamath Falls, Oregon

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Oregon Tech's (the University) compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and matenal effect on the
University's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2017. The University's major federal
program is identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur responsibility is fo express an opinion on compliance on the University's major federal program
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Reguiations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and matenial effect on a major federal program occumred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the University'’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the University's
compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Oregon Tech complied, in all materal respects, with the types of compliance
requirements refermed to above that could have a direct and matenal effect on its major federal program
for the year ended June 30, 2017,

A member of
-

Nexia (3)

Irtermatfonal
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Members of the Board
Oregon Tech

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procaedures disclosed an instance of noncompliance, which is required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as 2017-002. Our opinion on the major federal program is
not modified with respect to this matter.

The University's response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is descnbed in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The University's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the University is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the University's internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and matenal effect on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
intemal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the University's intemal control over compliance.

A deficiency in infemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the nomal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A maternal weakness in infernal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that matenal noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of
a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less
severe than a material weakness in intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with govemance.

COur consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be materal weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, matenal
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
we identified a certain deficiency in intemal control over compliance, as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as 2017-002 which we consider to be a significant
deficiency.

The University's response to the internal control over compliance finding identified in our audit is
descnbed in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. The University’s response
was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.

(4}

Oregon Tech Board of Trustees
F&F Committee Page 87 5.1 ANNUAL SINGLE AUDIT



December 7, 2017

Members of the Board
Cregon Tech

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to descrbe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and the discretely presented
component unit of the University, a component unit of the State of Oregon, as of and for the year endad
June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
University's basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2017, which
contained unmodified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose
of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was denved from and relates
directly to the underying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Wm//ﬁ

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Denver, Colorado
October 30, 2017
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OREGON TECH
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

December 7, 2017

Passed
Federal CFDA Pass-Through Through to
Cluster: Grantor: Program Title Number Pass-Through Entity Emntity ID Mumber Subrecipients Expenditures
Student Financial Assistance
Department of Education
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity
Grants B4.007 ¥ - % 126,151
Federal Work-5tudy Program B4.033 - 153,238
Federal Perkins Loans B4.038 - 2,142,698
Federal Pell Grant Program B4.083 - 5452053
Federal Direct Student Loans B4.288 - 17.871.578
Total Department of Education and Student Financial Assistance Clusfer $ - % 25753616
Research and Development
Department of the Interior
Fish, Wildlife and Plant Conservation Resource
Management 15231 - 12,731
Emvironmental Quality and Protection 15.2386 - 12,805
Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act 15.517 - 19,627
Fish and Wildlife Management Assistance 15.608 - 9,089
Endangered Species Conservation Recovery
Implementation Funds 165.857 - 4 595
Youth Engagement, Education, and
Employment 15.676 - 4,338
Department of fhe Interior Total - 63,185
Department of Transportation
University Transportation Centers Program 20.701 Portland State University 218211580 - 4,250
University Transportation Centers Program 20.701 Portland State University NITCN-OIT-04 - 2,143
University Transportation Centers Program 20.701 Portland State University NITCN-OIT-DG - B.607
University Transportation Centers Program 20.701 Portland State University NITCN-OIT-08 - 372688
University Transportation Centers Program 20.701 Portland State University NITCN-OIT-08 - 14,877
University Transportation Centers Program 20,701 Portland State University NITCN-0IT-10 - 15,000
University Transportation Centers Program 20.701 Portland State University NITCH-0IT-11 - 22870
University Transportation Centers Program 20.701 Portland State University NITCN-OIT-12 - §2.427
Department of Tranzportation Tota! - 167,638

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017
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FPassed
Federal CFDA Pass-Through Through to
Cluster: Grantor: Program Title MHumber Pass-Through Entity Entity ID Number  Subrecipients Expenditures
Research and Development (Continued)
Matiomal Science Foundation
Mathematical and Physical Sciences 47.048 University of Nebraska-Linceln 25-05210177-002 268,241
Education and Human Rescurces 47.076 Worcester Polytechnic Institute MNSF 0182688 408
National Science Foundation Total - 26,847
Total Research and Development Cluster $ - % 257 451
TRIO
Department of Education
TRIO Student Support Services B4.042 3 - % 250,851
Total Department of Education and TRIO Cluster % - % 250 851
WIA Adult Program
Department of Labor
OR Higher BEd Coordinating
WIDA Adult Program 17.2868 Commissicn HECC 18-208 - 140,000
Total Department of Education and WIA Adult Program Cluster % - % 140,000
COther Programs
Matiomal Aeronautics and Space Administration
Science 43.001 Oregon State University LW 14384 55 747
Education 43,008 Oregon State University MS2650-4 2,502
Nationa! Aeronaufice and Space Adminisfrafion Total 65 250
Matiomal Science Foundation
Education and Human Resources 47.078 5,064
National Science Foundafion Tofal 5,064
Total Other Programs $ - % 70314
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ - % 26472232

See motes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.
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OREGON TECH
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

NOTE1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule”) includes the federal
award activity of Oregon Tech under programs of the federal government of the year ended
June 30, 2017. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.5. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of Oregon Tech, it is not intended to and does not
present the financial positon, changes in net position, or cash flows of Oregon Tech

NOTEZ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts
shown on the Schedule, if any, represent adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business
to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Oregon Tech has elected not to use the 10-percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE3 FEDERAL STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS

The federal student loan programs listed subsequently are administered directly by Oregon Tech, and
balances and transactions relating fo these programs are included in Oregon Tech's basic financial
statements. Loans outstanding at the beginning of the year and loans made during the year are
included in the federal expenditures presented in the Schedule. The balance of loans outstanding at
Jume 30, 2017 consists of:

Program Title CFDA Number Amount COutstanding
Perkins Loans a4.038 1920840

(=)
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December 7, 2017

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Section | — Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements

1. Type of auditors’ report issuad: Unmodified
2. Intemal control over financial reporting:
+ Material weakness(es) identified? [lyes [dno
+ Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Bdyes [ none reported
3. Noncompliance matenal to financial statements noted? Cyes [Eno
Federal Awards
1. Internal control over major federal programs:
» Material weakness{es) identified? [lyes [no
« Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Bdyes [ none reported
2. Type of auditors’ report issued on
Compliance for major federal programs: Unmeodified
3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)? Byes [no
Identification of Major Federal Programs
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
d4.007, 84.033, 834.038, Student Financial Assistance Cluster
84 063, 84 268
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: 5750,000/5198,542
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Llyes [Hno

@)
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OREGON TECH
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Section Il — Financial Statement Findings

2017001
Type of Finding:

s Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Condition: During our testing over the information technology (IT) control environment, we noted that
certain programmers had the ability to execute, update, and read production programs and data files in
Banner.

Criteria or specific requirement: When users have the access rights described above there is a risk
of unauthorized programs being introduced into the production environment.

Context: Our testing noted four users had these access rights.

Effect: Unauthorized programs which have not been approved by the user community may perform
illegitimate functions or cause errors due to being poorly tested.

Cause: The University was not aware of these incompatible nghts at the time the users were set up.
Repeat Finding: No
Recommendation: We recommend that the University review its programmer access rights and

ensure that users maintain only inquiry access to the production environment. Privileged access should
only be granted in the event of a problem in production which needs to be addressed.

Section Il — Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Programs

2017002

Federal agency: Department of Education
Federal program title: Student Financial Assistance Cluster

CFDA Number: 84.007 — Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants
84.033 — Federal Work Study Program
84 038 — Federal Perkins Loans
84 063 — Federal Pell Grant Program
84 268 — Federal Direct Student Loans

Award Period: July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017
Type of Finding:
s Compliance, Special Tests
e Significant Deficiency in Intermnal Control over Compliance

(10}
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OREGON TECH
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

Criteria or specific requirement: The Code of Federal Regulations, 2 CFR 200.303 requires
nonfederal entities receiving Federal awards establish and maintain internal controls designed to
reasonably ensure compliance with Federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions of the
Federal award.

Condition: The University's process to comply with 2 CFR 200.303, as it relates to the special test
verification, involves secondary review of the verification process. During our testing of internal controls

over compliance related to venfication, we noted that there was one student selected for venfication
that was not properly reviewed.

Questioned costs: None

Context: We selected 40 students for testing of internal controls and compliance over verification.
While we noted no instances of noncompliance with venfication procedures, we did note one instance
where the control process was not followed.

Cause: The student's file was missed in the University’s review process.

Effect: Failing to follow intemal conftrol procedures in place over venfication can lead to noncompliance
due to error or fraud over the student verification process.

Repeat Finding: No

Recommendation: We recommend that the University ensure that all students selected for verification
are subject to the intemal control process in place.

(11}
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WETIW I TECH

Oregon Institute of Technology

Section IV — Prior Year Findings

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
2016 — 001

Condition: During our audit, we noted that certain users had update capabilities in the Banner
production environment assigned to them.

Status: This item was not resolved, see 2017-001.

FINDINGS - FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDITS
2016 - 002

Condition: Review of enrollment reporting data from the University showed that errors were not
corrected and returned to MSLDS within the prescrbed timeframe (10 days). Yet, per a sample
of 40 students whose underlying enrollment reporting data was tested for accuracy of status and
timeliness of reporting, no student statuses were reported incomectly or untimely to NSLDS.

Status: The University was in compliance with reporting requirements during 2017, this item
was resolved.

2016 — 003

Condition: During our testing over Federal Aid recipient eligibility, we noted that one student out
of our sample of forty, while receiving Pell, was awarded FSEOG despite not having the lowest
EFC. The institution did not exhaust the number of students with a lower EFC prior to awarding
the student in question.

Status: Shortly after Oregon Tech became aware of the emor, Oregon Tech staff adjusted
FSEOG awards for any student without a “0" Expected Family Contribution (EFC) for the
2016-2017 award year. Uregon Tech then submitted an adjusted FISAP as a result of the FSEOG
corrections. The adjusted FISAP was acceptad.

Hands-on education for real-world achievement.
3201 Campus Drive, Klamath Falls, OF. 97601 | 541 885.1000 | www.oitedn
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Oregon Lv,

Department of Health and Human Services

Oregon Tech respectfully submits the following comective action plan for the year ended
June 30, 2017.

Audit period: July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

The findings from the schedule of findings and questioned costs are discussed below. The
findings are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule.

FINDINGS—FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
SIGMIFICANT DEFICIENCY
2017001 Developer access rights in IT production environment

Recommendation: We recommend that the University review its programmer
access nghts and ensure that users maintain only inquiry access to the production
environment. Privileged access should only be granted in the event of a problem
in production which needs to be addressed.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the
audit finding.

Action planned in response to finding: The current Banner application is in the
process of being upgraded and migrated to a hosted infrastructure platform. The
Banner upgrade will be a “baseline” installation (no modifications) and the
permissions structure for all users, including developers, will be modified as part
of the upgrade. The upgraded Banner application will be implemented with
standard best practices, thus, programmers will no longer be able to use their
credentials to modify source code, databases, web forms, or any other aspect of
the production environment. Standard change management procedures will be
utilized for the transition of code from the development and test environments into
production. The Banner upgrade project will be completed by January, 2019. At
that time the cument nisk presented by unauthonzed program changes will be
resolved.

Mame(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for corrective action: Jim R. Jones,
Associate Vice President for Information Technology and Chief Information Officer.

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: January, 2019

Hands-on education for real-world achievement.
3201 Campus Drive, Klamath Falls, OF. 97601 | 541 885.1000 | www.citedn
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WETIWITECH

FINDINGS—FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDITS
Department of Education

2017002 Student Financial Assistance Cluster —

CFDA No.

84007 — Federal Supplemental Education Opportunity Grants

84033 — Federal Work Study Program

84.038 — Federal Perkins Loans

64063 — Federal Pell Grant Program

84,268 — Federal Direct Student Loans

84 379 — Teacher Education Assistance for College and Higher Education
Grants

Recommendation: The University’s process to comply with 2 CFR 200.303 as it
relates to the special test verification involves secondary review of the verification
process. During our testing of internal controls over compliance related to
verfication, it was noted that there was one student selected for venfication that
was not properly reviewed.

Explanation of disagreement with audit finding: There is no disagreement with the
audit finding.

Action taken in response to finding: Management has documented and formalized
a policy to review files for verification, which was in place as of July, 2017.

Mame(s) of the contact person(s) responsible for comective action: Tracey
Lehman, Director of Student Financial Aid.

Planned completion date for corrective action plan: Recommendation is in place
as of September, 2017.

If the Department of Health and Human Services has questions regarding this plan, please call
Tracey Lehman, Director of Student Financial Aid at (541) 885.1291.

Hands-on education for real-world achievement.
3201 Campus Drive, Flamath Falls, OF. 97601 | 541 885.1000 | www.oitedn
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General Fund Monthly Report

October 2017
FY17 Year-End YTD as % of Prior YTD as % Board Adopted Forecasted (1) Variance from
Acct Actuals FY17 Oct Actuals  FY18 Oct Actuals Forecast of PY Actuals Budget Budget Adopted Budget
State Allocations 26,388 15,817 16,432 60.3% 59.9% 24,948 27241 in 2,293
Tuition & Fees 32,053 12,750 13,207 39,9% 29.8% 37,038 33,097 i3 (3,941)
Remissions (3,578) {1,157} {1,295} 34.0% 32.3% (4,278) (3,806) (4 472
Other 2,182 272 323 21.3% 12.4% 1,391 1,519 128
Total Revenue 57,044 27,681 28,668 49.4% 48.5% 59,009 58,051 (1,048)
Unclassified Staff 22,515 5175 5,594 23.3% 23.0% 24,812 23,994 (3 (818)
Classified Staff 5,206 1,707 1,760 34.3% 32.8% 5,539 5129 s (410)
Student 623 184 221 27.9% 29.5% 753 791 38
GTA 22 - 1 1.2% 0.0% 40 42 2
OPE 12,957 3,184 3,697 24.6% 24.6% 15,738 15,023 (5 (715)
Total Labor 41,323 10,249 11,273 25.1% 24.8% 46,382 44,979 (1,903)
Service & Supplies 9,665 2,564 2,931 28.2% 26.5% 11,185 10,391 (794)
Internal Sales {1,225 {4086) (331) 29.9% 33.1% (1,107) {1,107} -
Debt Service 1,438 551 585 39.7% 38.4% 1,472 1,472 -
Capital Expense 376 157 206 79.6% 41.9% 802 259 {543)
Utilities 1,357 398 359 27.2% 29.4% 1,318 1,318 -
Transfers Out 1,204 653 674 50.5% 56.7% 1,334 1,334 (5 -
Total Direct Expense 12,313 3,949 4,423 32.4% 30.8% 15,004 13,667 (1,337)
Total All Expense 54,135 14,198 15,696 26.8% 26.2% 61,886 58,646 (3,240)
Net from operations 2,908 13,483 12,972 (2,787) (595) 2,192
Extraordinary Transfers In 113 0.0% 0.0% 5 6 3
Extraordinary Transfers Out (7,500) - - -
Miscellaneous -
Special Projects (1,485) (430) (1,122) 7} (1,122)
Fund Additions/(Deductions) 133 -
Change in Fund Balance {5,831) 13,483 12,972 (3,217) (1,711)
Beginning Fund Balance 18,945 17,8586 13,114 9,682 13,114
Ending Fund Balance 13,115 31,479 26,085 6,475 11,403
Ending Cash Balance 24,447 19,728
% Operating Revenues 23.0% 113.7% 91.0% 11.0% 19.6%
Notes:

Education & General - Adopted Budget vs Forecast

{1) Forecast budgetiscaculated as 5-year average of spanding, with a few noted exceptions.

[F]

State funding wasincreased beyond Board spproved budget through legislative action. Update includes revised HECC alocation.

{2) Per BOT approval, twition increase was reduced to 5%, SCH was bel ow forecast (actual 4th week numbers). Fee paying nen-ACP student enrollment was significanty below forecast, and included an
adverse change in student mix, which resulved in dgnificanty lower estimated wition. Winter and Spring Term enrollment are assumed to be down in equal rates to Fall Term.

{4) Fearemissions are estimated at 11.5% of tuition, correspanding with Tuition Recommendation Committee recommended increase.

{5) Unclassified and Classified |abor and OPE expensa forecast basad on 5-yaar ralling average spending trends. Thera are approximataly $2.7 million dollars of salary and OPE in unfillad but budgetad positions.
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